
 
 35200 West 91st Street 
 De Soto, Kansas  66018 
 Phone:  913/667-6200 
 FAX:  913/667-6201 
 e-mail:  rwimmer@usd232.org 
 
 Dr. Ron Wimmer 
 Superintendent  

 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
The mission of De Soto Unified School District 232, a dynamic learning community, is to inspire the creative genius in each person by: leading in educational 
innovation and academic excellence; building visionary, world-class educational opportunities; fulfilling the evolving needs of citizens as lifelong learners; 
integrating the heritage and promise of our diverse rapidly growing community; and respecting the importance of the individual while promoting the common good. 
 

Unified School District 232 
 
De Soto – Shawnee – Lenexa – Olathe 
w w w . u s d 2 3 2 . o r g  
 

_Six Pillars of Character_ 
_Trustworthiness – Respect – Responsibility – Fairness – Caring – Citizenship__ 

U S D   2 3 2   B O A R D   O F   E D U C A T I O N 
R E G U L A R   M E E T I N G   A G E N D A 

Administrative Offices (35200 West 91st Street, De Soto, Kansas) January 11, 2010  

*** Please silence cell phones prior to the beginning of this meeting. *** 

6:00 P.M. 
 

I. MEETING OPENING. 
A. Call to Order. 
B. Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

 

  II. CONSENT AGENDA.   
These items represent matters which the Board may approve without detailed discussion.  Any item on the Consent Agenda 
may be removed for separate discussion as an Action Item upon request by the Superintendent or any board member.  The 
Board has received supporting information on all items prior to action on the Consent Agenda. 

A. Adopt agenda.  
B. Approve minutes of December 14 regular meeting. 
C. Approve payment of bills. 
D.   Approve transfer of funds (if appropriate). 
E. Approve personnel recommendations made on January 5, 2010. 
F.  Approve personnel recommendations made on January 11, 2010. 
G. Approve Special Education Policies, Practices & Procedures Manual. 
H. Approve Letter of Agreement between St. Luke’s Hospital of Kansas City and USD 232 for 

Health and Productivity Management Services. 
I. Approve proposals from Turner Construction Company and Construction Management 

Resources, LLC for construction consulting services. 
J. Grant approval for the District Treasurer to file an application with the Board of Tax Appeals to 

levy an ad-valorem tax to finance a portion of the costs attributable to the opening of new school 
facilities as provided in K.S.A. 72-6441. 

K. Approve Change Order No. 3 on the Belmont Elementary project in the amount of $15,639.00. 
L. Approve Change Order No. 4 on the Mill Valley High School expansion project in the amount of 

$31,436.00. 
M. Accept donation of $750.00 from Mr. & Mrs. Troy Oberle to the De Soto High School Football 

Team. 
N. Accept donation of $500.00 from a USD 232 family to a Special Education program. 
O. Accept donation of $50.00 from Hello Beautiful LLC to USD 232/Division of Teaching & 

Learning Services. 

 
 
 
 



BOARD AGENDA 
January 11, 2010 
Page No. 2 
_________  
 

  
 

 III. GOOD NEWS. 
A. Teacher Recognition.  [Alvie Cater]     
 

 

 IV. PATRON INPUT.  

 V. ACTION ITEMS. 
A.  Bond Sale.  [Ken Larsen & Roger Edgar, George K. Baum] 
B. Capitol Outlay Projects.  [Denis Johnson] 
C. Data Center Hardware.  [Jeff Mildner] 
D. Shawnee Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District.  [Tim Blankenship & Dr. Ron Wimmer] 
E. Possible Relocation of Early Childhood Programs.  [Joan Robbins & Dr. Mark Schmidt] 

 

 

 VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS. 
A. No Child Left Behind (NCLB) Update.  [Earl Martin] 
B. School Safety.  [Jack Deyoe] 
C. Budget Reductions.  [Alvie Cater]  
D. Web Casting of Board Meetings.  [Alvie Cater] 
E. E-Funds On-line Payment System.  [Alvie Cater]  
F. Morgan Hunter Education Division Substitute Contract.  [Dr. Mark Schmidt] 
G. KASB Convention Report.  [Dr. Ron Wimmer, Tim Blankenship, Janine Gracy, Jim Thomas] 
H. Continuous Improvement.  [Tim Blankenship] 
 

 

 VII.   WRITTEN REPORTS. 
A. February 2010 Board Calendar. 
B. Bond Construction Update. 
C. Differentiated Professional Development Day Update.  
 

VIII.   EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
A. Attorney/Client Privilege. 
B. Non-Elected Personnel. 
C. Negotiations. 
 

 

 IX. ADJOURNMENT.  
#  #  #  #  # 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RW/wsd010610 
 



 

BOEMinutes121409 

 
 
 
 

U S D   2 3 2   B O A R D   O F   E D U C A T I O N 
 

O F F I C I A L   M I N U T E S  - - R E G U L A R   M E E T I N G  
 
Administrative Office (35200 West 91st Street, De Soto, KS) December 14, 2009 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:01 p.m. by the Board President, Mr. Tim Blankenship.  A quorum of the 
Board was present.  Board members and administrators present were as follows: 
 
 Board Members: Tim Blankenship 
  Don Clark 
  Bill Fletcher 
  Janine Gracy 
  Randy Johnson 
  Tammy Thomas 

 Absent: Jim Thomas 

 Administrators: Alvie Cater, Director of Community Relations 
  Jack Deyoe, Director of Operations 
  Cindy Fouraker, Coordinator of Grants and Programs 
  Renee Hultgren, YouthFriends Coordinator 
  Barbara Inman, Director of Parents as Teachers 
  Denis Johnson, Director of Facilities 
  Ken Larsen, Director of Budget & Finance 
  Earl Martin, Director of Teaching & Learning 
  Jeff Mildner, Director of Technology 
  Dave Morford, Principal, De Soto High School 
  Joan Robbins, Director of Special Services 
  Mark Schmidt, Director of Human Resources 
  Ron Wimmer, Superintendent of Schools 

Olivia Harding, 8th grader at Mill Creek Middle School, led those in attendance in reciting the Pledge of Alle-
giance. 

Mr. Blankenship asked if there were any changes to the Agenda or Consent Agenda. 

Dr. Wimmer asked to make the following agenda changes: 

1. Add “H. Classified Handbook Update – Emergency Closing Procedure” under “VI. ACTION ITEMS”. 

2. Add “Executive Session for Negotiations and Non-Elected Personnel” prior to “IX. ADJOURNMENT”. 

3. Remove “D. Overview of No Child Left Behind” under “VII. DISCUSSION ITEMS”. 

Bill Fletcher requested removal of consent agenda items “S. Approve revised Board Policy GAJ - - Gifts – All 
Employees”,  “T. Approve revised Board Policy GAOB - - Drug-Free Schools & JDDA - - Drug-Free Schools”, 
and check number 12348 for approval separately.   

  De Soto  -  Shawnee  -  Lenexa  -  Olathe 
  w  w  w  .  u  s  d  2  3  2  .  o  r  g  

 Unified School District 232 35200 West 91st Street    De Soto, Kansas  66018 

Phone:  913/667-6200    FAX:  913/667-6201 



USD 232 Board of Education Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2009 
Page No. 2 
_________  
 
 

BOEMinutes121409 

Tim Blankenship noted that he would add time for Continuous Improvement discussion later in the agenda. 

Motion by Mr. Don Clark and seconded by Mrs. Tammy Thomas to adopt the Agenda and approve the Consent 
Agenda as amended. 

Carried 6/0. 

The following Consent Agenda items were approved: 

1. Minutes of the November 9, 2009, regular meeting. 

2. Payment of bills and issuance of checks numbered 12001 - 12167, 12174 – 12347, and 12349 - 12408.  

3.  Transfer of funds as follows: 
a.  $375,000.00 from General Fund (06) to Special Education (30) 
b. $50,000.00 from Local Option Budget (08) to At-Risk K – 12 (13) 
c. $20,000.00 from Local Option Budget (08) to Bi-Lingual (14) 
d. $20,000.00 from Local Option Budget (08) to Parents as Teachers (28) 
e. $100,000.00 from Local Option Budget (08) to Vocational Education (34) 

4. Personnel recommendations as follows: 
 Employment – Classified  
 Danielle Burgeron, Assistant Softball Coach, MVHS 
 Janice Church, Substitute Student Nutrition Assistant 
 Marjorie Lisbona, Substitute Student Nutrition Assistant and Paraprofessional 
 Cody Ptacek, Girls’ Assistant Basketball Coach, MVHS 
 Resignations - Classified 

Michael Peterson, Lead Custodian, MVHS (effective December 30, 2009)  
Kevin Robinson, At-Risk Aide, MVHS 
Termination – Classified   
Traci Griffin, School Nurse (LPN), CLC 
Employment – Certified 
Stacy Panagakis (Currently the school nurse at Mize Elementary, hired to become a District Supervisory 
Nurse effective January 4, 2010.) 

5. 2010 USD 232 Employee Benefits Package. 

6. Change in district Accounting, Payroll and HR software from the current Skyward System to Harris Sys-
tems software with an implementation date of July 1, 2010. 

7. 2009-10 USD 232 Legislative Platform. 

8. Appoint Jack Deyoe as the USD 232 Homeless Coordinator for the 2009-10 school year. 

9.     Belmont Elementary mascot – Bulldogs, and school colors – Purple/Gold. 

10. Acknowledge that elementary staff did not recommend removal of scissors from student supply lists as in-
dicated in the October 12th board minutes. 

11. Change Order No. 2 on the Belmont Elementary project in the amount of $71,340.00. 

12. Change Order No. 3 on the Mill Valley High School expansion project in the amount of $2,944.00. 

13. Donation of $300.00 from the Clorox Company Foundation to Mill Valley High School. 



USD 232 Board of Education Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2009 
Page No. 3 
_________  
 
 

BOEMinutes121409 

14. Donation of $500.00 from Baker Bookkeeping & Tax Service to Mill Valley Robotics. 

15. Donation of $400.00 from Hallmark Corporate Foundation as follows - $200.00 to Prairie Ridge Elementa-
ry School in the name of Hallmark employee Tanya Gillig and $200.00 to Mize Elementary School in the 
name of Hallmark employee Lisa Moose. 

16. The following donations to the USD 232 YouthFriends program: 
• $500.00 from Farmer’s Insurance Group 
• $250.00 from AE Enterprise Corporation 
• $750.00 from Huhtamaki - Americas 
• $250.00 from Capitol Federal Bank 

17.  “Race to the Top” grant project Memorandum of Understanding.  

GOOD NEWS.   Renee Hultgren, YouthFriends Coordinator, shared information on a pilot program called Men-
torMail, put into place at Mill Creek Middle School this year.  She noted this was a way for professionals in the 
community to mentor students electronically.  Mrs. Hultgren recognized Rachel Wilbanks, a teacher at Mill 
Creek Middle School, for successfully implementing MentorMail at her school with more than 60 e-Mentors 
participating.  Ms. Wilbanks spoke about the positive impact she has seen in 8th grade students taking part in the 
program.   

PATRON INPUT.  Mr. Blankenship asked if there were any requests to speak to the board received.  Wendy 
Denham, Clerk, noted that there were none.   

ACTION ITEMS. 

Bill Fletcher declared a conflict of interest and left the meeting at 6:11 p.m. 

Motion by Mr. Don Clark and seconded by Mrs. Tammy Thomas to approve payment to Kansas Land Manage-
ment, LLC in the amount of $6,577.37 with check number 12348. 

Carried 5/0. 

Bill Fletcher returned to the meeting at 6:11 p.m. 

Revised Board Policy GAJ - - Gifts – All Employees.  Bill Fletcher requested this policy be re-worded to state 
that there should be no significant gifts given to employees.  He also asked if it would be possible to earmark 
donations to a certain fund or program.  Dr. Wimmer suggested that the policy could be worded to allow contri-
butions in recognition of a staff member.  Tim Blankenship noted that he would like to see this policy applicable 
to board members.  Board members directed the administration to revise the language of this proposed policy 
and bring it back for approval. 

Revised Board Policy GAOB - - Drug Free Schools & JDDA - - Drug Free Schools.  Bill Fletcher noted that 
he wanted to make sure the police would handle these matters and not just school administrators.  Dr. Wimmer 
noted that authorities would be involved just as they are with illegal drugs.  Janine Gracy explained that K2 is a 
legal manufactured synthetic substance that has the same effects on a user as marijuana and clarified the need for 
policy to address students and staff that are under the influence of it. 

Motion by Mr. Bill Fletcher and seconded by Mrs. Janine Gracy to approve revised board policy GAOB  - - 
Drug Free Schools & JDDA - - Drug Free Schools.  

Carried 6/0. 



USD 232 Board of Education Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2009 
Page No. 4 
_________  
 
 

BOEMinutes121409 

Audit Report.  Mr. Ken Larsen, Director of Budget & Finance, introduced Mr. Jim Long of Long CPA, PA who 
reviewed the district’s 2009 fiscal year audit with the board.  He gave clean opinions on internal control and 
compliance and reported that there were no statutory violations.  Board members were given the opportunity to 
ask questions regarding the audit. 

Motion by Mrs. Janine Gracy and seconded by Mr. Don Clark to approve the 2009 fiscal year audit as pre-
sented. 

Carried 6/0. 

Legal Services.   Tammy Thomas highlighted the Legal Services Review Committee interview process and 
noted that five board members participated in some capacity.     

Motion by Mr. Bill Fletcher and seconded by Mrs. Tammy Thomas to select the legal firm of Norris Keplinger 
LLC (Mr. Michael Norris) to serve as General Counsel to USD 232 effective January 15, 2010, with the Clerk 
providing 30 day notice of cancellation to Lathrop & Gage. 

Carried 6/0. 

Advanced Placement (AP) & Pre-AP Implementation.  Board members thanked Cindy Fouraker and the staff 
for their efforts to bring more rigorous courses to the high schools.  Mrs. Fouraker noted that chances were good 
that the district would receive grant money to help with the costs of start-up.  Board members were given an op-
portunity to ask questions.   

Motion by Mrs. Tammy Thomas and seconded by Mrs. Janine Gracy to approve implementation of the Advanced 
Placement and Pre-Advanced Placement Plan as proposed. 

Carried 6/0. 
 

USD 232 Advanced Placement & Pre-Advanced Placement Phase-In Timeline & Expenditures 
 FALL 2010 FALL 2011 FALL 2012 FALL 2013 

De Soto High AP Lang. & Comp AP Chemistry AP Physics Determine need for 
additional AP courses 

 AP Lit. & Comp AP Psychology AP Calculus 
AB 

 

 AP Music Theory    
 AP Statistics    
 Pre-AP Topics: Interdis-

ciplinary Strategies for 
English & Social Studies 

Pre-AP Topics: 
Vertical Teams 

in Science. 

Pre-AP Topics: 
Vertical Teams 

in Math. 

Determine need for 
additional Pre-AP 
strategies training. 

Mill Valley 
High 

AP Lang. & Comp AP Chemistry AP Physics Determine need for 
additional AP courses 

 AP Lit. & Comp AP Psychology AP Calculus 
AB 

 

 AP Music Theory AP Biology   



USD 232 Board of Education Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2009 
Page No. 5 
_________  
 
 

BOEMinutes121409 

 

USD 232 Advanced Placement & Pre-Advanced Placement Phase-In Timeline & Expenditures 
 FALL 2010 FALL 2011 FALL 2012 FALL 2013 

Mill Valley 
High (cont.) 

AP Statistics    

 AP Studio Art    
 Pre-AP Topics: Interdis-

ciplinary Strategies for 
English & Social Studies 

Pre-AP Topics: 
Vertical Teams 

in Science. 

Pre-AP Topics: 
Vertical Teams 

in Math. 

Determine need for 
additional Pre-AP 
strategies training. 

MTMS, 
LTMS, MCMS 

Pre-AP Topics: Interdis-
ciplinary Strategies for 

English & Social Studies 

Pre-AP Topics: 
Vertical Teams 

in Science. 

Pre-AP Topics: 
Vertical Teams 

in Math. 

Determine need for 
additional Pre-AP 
strategies training. 

Expenditures $61,550 $32,102 $31,264 To be determined 
 
Weighted Grades.  Mrs. Fouraker explained the process used by the district to develop a policy and plan to im-
plement a weighted grading system.  Board members were given an opportunity to ask questions.         

Motion by Mrs. Janine Gracy and seconded by Mrs. Tammy Thomas to implement a weighted grading system at 
the high school level with the beginning of the 2010-11 school year and applying to students who are Juniors in 
the 2010-11 school year (the graduating class of 2012). 

Carried 6/0. 

The following language will be inserted into the high school course description guide:  
 To encourage and reward students who complete more rigorous courses, USD 232 will award an additional 
grade point earned for Advanced Placement or College Now courses completed on De Soto school campuses.  
The formula for USD 232 weighted Grade Points Per Course = Standard grade points + 1 point, for grades A, B 
or C.  Weighted Grade credit is awarded only for course completion. 
Students transferring into USD 232 will receive weighted grade credit only for courses designated as weighted 
courses by USD 232. 
The weighted grading system will be used to determine De Soto student honors and distinctions, including class 
rank.  Universities will be informed of the dual grading system when they receive the student’s USD 232 tran-
script. 

DISCUSSION ITEM. 

Legislator Introductions and Comments.  Jack Deyoe, Director of Operations, welcomed Representative An-
thony Brown, Representative Owen Donohoe, Senator Mary Pilcher-Cook, and Senator Julia Lynn to the meet-
ing.  He then reviewed the board approved Legislative Platform for 2009-10.  The legislators were given an op-
portunity to provide their thoughts on the 2010 legislative session as it relates to the overall economy in Kansas 
and funding for public schools.  Board members were given time to ask questions.   

Tim Blankenship declared a ten minute break at 7:29 p.m. 

The board returned to open session and Mr. Blankenship called the meeting back to order at 7:40 p.m. 



USD 232 Board of Education Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2009 
Page No. 6 
_________  
 
 

BOEMinutes121409 

ACTION ITEMS (continued).   

Academic Expectations for Extra-Curricular Participation.  Dr. Wimmer noted that during the process of 
developing this policy he reviewed the Student & Family Handbook the board had adopted in March and found 
similar language to what is being proposed.  He pointed out that it has been tweaked and asked the board to con-
sider the addition of language that is stricter before the handbook takes effect in January.   

Motion by Mr. Don Clark and seconded by Mrs. Tammy Thomas to replace the last two sentences in paragraph 
two under the 2009-10 Student and Family Handbook section titled “Academic Expectations for Participation  
in Extra-Curricular Activities” with the proposed language.   

Carried 6/0.      

The following language was added to the Student & Family Handbook:  If a student does not meet academic 
guidelines, the athletic director will give the student a one (1) week warning of pending academic probation.  If 
the student fails to improve grades to meet the academic standards within one (1) week of the warning, the stu-
dent will be put on academic probation.  During this academic probation the student will not be allowed to com-
pete, but will be required to attend practices/rehearsals. 

De Soto High School Expansion.  Dr. Wimmer noted that board members had been given information relating 
to the expansion of De Soto High School.   He pointed out that the projects proposed in Phase 1 of the school’s 
expansion are a part of the overall bond issue approved by voters in November 2008 and that these projects were 
being recommended to meet immediate needs at the school, while limiting impact on the mill levy due to the 
current economic situation.  Mark Franzen, HTK Architects, reviewed drawings showing location of the pro-
posed Phase 1 projects.   He noted that the estimated high cost for this expansion was $3.8 million.  Board mem-
bers were given an opportunity to ask questions. 

Motion by Mr. Randy Johnson and seconded by Mr. Bill Fletcher to approve the secured entryway at De Soto 
High School and postpone all other projects proposed in Phase 1 of the expansion. 

Failed 1/5.  (Tim Blankenship, Don Clark, Bill Fletcher, Janine Gracy and Tammy Thomas dissented.) 

Motion by Mr. Tim Blankenship and seconded by Mrs. Tammy Thomas to approve Phase 1 of the De Soto High 
School Expansion Project which includes:  1. Corridor 400 Link & Flex Classrooms Addition (Courtyard Area), 
2. Main Entry Vestibule Security Renovation (staff planning area), and 3. Fine Arts Addition (5 class-
rooms/storage/restrooms/mechanical room). 

Carried 5/1.  (Randy Johnson dissented.)   

The board did not approve an expansion of De Soto High School’s south parking lot that was proposed to be a 
part of Phase 1. 

Data Center Hardware.  Jeff Mildner, Director of Technology, explained that the HP hardware in the data cen-
ter was in its final year of support.  He noted that the Technology Department has assessed hardware and support 
from HP, IBM, Cisco and Dell and recommended moving forward with Dell.   Mr. Mildner pointed out that it 
was the goal of the Technology Department to move forward with server consolidation and virtualization.  He 
explained the following aspects of this plan compared to the current data center set-up:  1. current hardware will 
no longer be supported after June 30, 2010, 2. 280 current servers would be consolidated down to 64 servers in a 
virtual environment, 3. electrical savings, 4. expanded data storage for students and staff, 5. creation of a true 
off-site back-up model for disaster recovery, and 6. Dell Tier 2 reimbursement.  In conclusion, Mr. Mildner pro-
vided cost comparisons and information on 3, 4 or 5 year lease to purchase options.  After discussion, board 



USD 232 Board of Education Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2009 
Page No. 7 
_________  
 
 

BOEMinutes121409 

members suggested that Tim Blankenship, Don Clark and Jim Thomas visit the Technology Department to tour 
the data center and review the consolidation and virtualization plans before taking action.          
Classified Handbook Update – Emergency Closing Procedure.  Dr. Mark Schmidt, Director of Human Re-
sources, noted that aides, paraprofessionals, and secretaries lose compensation on emergency closings (snow 
days).  He stated that the Human Resource and Finance Departments would like to correct the Classified Hand-
book to reflect compensation to those employees that have less than 260 day contracts. 

Motion by Mr. Don Clark and seconded by Mrs. Janine Gracy to approve recommended modifications to 
language in the Classified Employee Handbook under Emergency Closings and Superintendent Emergency Day. 

Carried 6/0. 

Changes to language in the Classified Handbook will read as follows: 

Emergency Closings 
At times, emergencies such as severe weather, fires, or power failures, can disrupt school district operations. In 
extreme cases, these circumstances may require the closing of a work facility. In the event that such an emergen-
cy occurs during non-working hours, local radio and/or television stations will be asked to broadcast notification 
of the closing. 

As part of their regular duties, employees with year round (260 day) work agreements will be expected to work 
when school operations are officially closed due to emergency conditions.  If the year-round employee is not 
able to work on a closing day, he/she will be required to use a vacation, discretionary or an unpaid leave day.  

Classified employees who have less than year round (less than 260 days) work agreements, and are scheduled to 
work, and are not on paid or unpaid leave on the day operations were closed, will not be expected to work, but 
will receive regular pay (limited to the number of “snow days” built into the district calendar).  In a few cases, a 
supervisor may require these employees to work for which they will receive their normal daily rate for the hours 
worked and be entitled to paid time-off equal to the actual hours worked that day not to exceed eight hours.  
Their immediate supervisor will inform them of the manner in which they are to take those earned hours. 

District Office Emergency Closing Day 
In the rare event that the superintendent determines that conditions require that the District Offices must be 
closed, regular year-round (260 day) employees will not report to work, but they will receive their normal daily 
rate.  Emergency employees (custodial, maintenance, grounds), will be informed by their immediate supervisor 
when they are expected to report to work that day.  In addition to receiving their normal daily rate for the hours 
worked, they will be entitled to paid time-off equal to the actual hours worked that day not to exceed eight 
hours.  Their immediate supervisor will inform them of the manner in which they are to take those earned hours. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS.    

Budget Reductions.   Ken Larsen, Director of Budget & Finance, explained the disparity in the way legislators 
look at reductions in state aid and school personnel look at it.  He distributed and reviewed graphs showing ex-
penditures in the General Operating Budget and Total Operating Funds.  Dr. Mark Schmidt, Director of Human 
Resources, explained some areas where the administration is considering making cuts: 1. Transfer salaries to the 
Capital Outlay Account (as allowed by law), 2. Comprehensive evaluation of district and building staffing le-
vels, 3. Further reduction in allocated budgets, 4. Reduction in professional development expenditures, and 5. 
Evaluate summer school.  Dr. Schmidt noted that the district may need to utilize the limited Contingency Re-
serve Fund to meet its financial obligations and maintain vital instructional programs if expenditures exceed re-
ceipts.  Dr. Wimmer noted the administration has been trying to implement a plan that doesn’t raise concern, but 
pointed out that this is a serious situation that would require difficult decisions to be made.  He added that in 
January the board will start to hear about steps that need to be taken to address the budget for next year.     



USD 232 Board of Education Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2009 
Page No. 8 
_________  
 
 

BOEMinutes121409 

Instrument Rental Program.   Dr. Wimmer stated that after he had met with band teachers it was apparent they 
would need additional time to develop alternative instrument rental solutions to bring back for board considera-
tion.   He recommended that a committee be formed to obtain input from vendors and parents on this matter.  
Tammy Thomas volunteered to serve on this committee.  Dr. Wimmer noted that staff should be able to bring 
options to improve current practices back to the board for approval in February.     

Community Focus Group Update.  Alvie Cater, Director of Community Relations, informed the board about a 
Community Focus Group meeting taking place on January 20, 2010.  He noted that this is an informal meeting 
designed to give stakeholders in the community an opportunity to share their perceptions of the district and iden-
tify ideas for improving the overall quality of the school system,  improving student learning opportunities, and 
addressing significant issues the district will face in the future.  Board members were invited to join in on the 
meeting.        

Video Surveillance.  Jeff Mildner, Director of Technology, asked board members for direction on how to pro-
ceed with research regarding video surveillance options.  He noted that solutions and pricing have changed since 
the subject was last discussed in June 2009.  Board members asked Mr. Mildner to provide information on how 
other districts in the area are using video systems and the benefits of having video surveillance in place.  They 
requested this report in February. 

Tim Blankenship asked if board members had any continuous improvement items they would like to discuss.   

Don Clark requested information on distribution of flyers via E-Backpack.  Wendy Denham, Clerk, explained 
the process. 

Bill Fletcher suggested getting staff input on budget reductions.  Ken Larsen, Director of Budget & Finance, ex-
plained that administrators are still working from the original list of budget reductions proposed by the Budget 
Reduction Committee that was formed last year and comprised of patrons, staff and students. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION. 

Negotiations/Non-Elected Personnel.   

Motion by Mr. Tim Blankenship and seconded by Mr. Randy Johnson to go into executive session at 9:30 p.m. 
for a period of fifteen minutes with Dr. Ron Wimmer, Dr. Mark Schmidt and Mr. Ken Larsen to discuss employ-
er-employee negotiations to protect the district’s right to the confidentiality of its negotiating position and the 
public interest and to discuss non-elected personnel in order to protect the privacy interests of an identifiable 
individual and to return to open session at 9:45 p.m. at this location. 

Carried 6/0. 

Dr. Schmidt and Mr. Larsen returned to open session at 9:40 p.m. 

The Board returned to open session at 9:46 p.m. and Mr. Blankenship called the meeting back to order. 

WRITTEN REPORTS.  The following written reports were included in the board packet for this meeting: 1. 
January 2010 Board Calendar, 2. Morgan Hunter Education Division Substitute Contract, 3. SRO Team School 
Safety Suggestions, 4. Special Education Policies, Practices & Procedures Manual, 5. 2009 YouthFriends Re-
port, 6. 2010-11 Negotiations Notice, 7. Mill Valley High School Parking Assessment, 8. Mill Valley High 
School Parking Lot Repairs, and 9. Major Capital Outlay Projects.   



USD 232 Board of Education Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2009 
Page No. 9 
_________  
 
 

BOEMinutes121409 

Tim Blankenship adjourned the meeting at 9:46 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

    
Date Approved  Clerk, Board of Education 
  

 
  President, Board of Education 

 



12/17/09 1

CHECK # VENDOR NAME INVOICE # PO # DESCRIPTION DETAIL ACCOUNT # CHECK DETAIL CHECK TOTAL

12413 Antonia Hauck 11/30/09-12/11/0 330100155 Interpreter Services for 30 E 1000 563 0000 000 896.10 896.10
Student @ KSD in Vo-Tech
programs

12414 Art Video World SI-327694 450100076 Resource Materials 06 E 1000 610 0045 020 79.80 79.80
12415 B & H Photo Video Pro Audio 40261472 180100137 5 WD 1T My Book Essential 08 E 2900 430 0018 000 539.80 674.75

Mirror (TC & LTMS)
40261472 180100137 5 WD 1T My Book Essential 16 E 1000 730 0000 020 134.95

Mirror (TC & LTMS)
12416 Barnes & Noble IN 1750824 310100186 The Silent Crisis Destroying 06 E 2220 640 0031 000 22.49 22.49

America's Brightest Minds
12417 Best Books, Inc. 520227 220100075 28 library books.  List 06 E 2220 640 0022 000 496.47 496.47

e-mailed to Jodie Saultz
12418 C & C Produce Co., Inc. Misc Inv 240100132 Produce purchased for the 24 E 3100 630 0000 000 2,800.23 2,800.23

school lunch program.
12419 Cass County Publishing Co. 214370 300100157 65% printing for November 08 E 1000 680 0000 000 275.82 275.82

Green Pride newspaper
12420 Coleman Equipment Inc. CM LE32947 150100638 Service Call-Invoice #32912 16 E 2600 430 0000 153 -120.70 303.36

Compressor & Air Hose
PC52719 150100015 Supplies-Grounds 06 E 2600 610 0015 300 22.06
LE32912 150100638 Service Call-Invoice #32912 16 E 2600 430 0000 153 402.00

Compressor & Air Hose
12421 Ecolab 1023697 240100117 For delivery on 12/11/09 24 E 3100 610 0000 000 758.00 1,606.95

1023697 240100117 For delivery on 12/11/09 24 E 3100 610 0000 000 187.45
1023697 240100117 For delivery on 12/11/09 24 E 3100 610 0000 000 661.50

12422 Fastenal Company KSKCY104828A 150100633 Maint. Supplies 06 E 2600 610 0015 400 288.70 590.12
KSKCY104828 150100002 Supplies-Maintenance 06 E 2600 610 0015 400 301.42

12423 Follett Library Resources 656757F-0 210100059 replacements/ first in a 06 E 2220 640 0021 000 30.85 30.85
series titles

12424 Francis Sporting Goods, Inc. WB007957-WH 300100134 Basketball Equipment Purchas06 E 1000 680 0030 040 903.07 903.07
12425 EDTEC/Graphic Communication 40150 190100020 Screen printing for CLC 4 yr 11 E 1000 610 0000 000 22.00 22.00

old program
12426 Great Plains Locating Service 1109DESO 180100142 November '09 Services (24 08 E 2900 352 0018 000 216.00 216.00

Reg. Locates)
12427 Horizon Elementary Petty Cash 410100085 Petty Cash 06 E 1000 610 0041 000 66.04 369.22

Petty Cash 410100085 Petty Cash 06 E 1000 610 0041 134 32.59
Petty Cash 410100085 Petty Cash 06 E 2400 531 0041 000 113.09
Petty Cash 410100085 Petty Cash 06 E 2400 610 0041 000 157.50

12428 IBC Wonder/Hostess Misc Inv 240100130 Bread items purchased for the 24 E 3100 630 0000 000 1,707.82 1,707.82
school lunch program.

12429 Industrial Webbing Corporation 77627 180100136 1 Spool of 1"x12" Strap (450 08 E 2900 650 0018 000 182.11 182.11
Count Spool/Black) for TC

12430 Kansas Sales Tax November 30100199 Kansas Sales Tax 06 E 2590 890 0003 002 3,440.78 3,440.78

CHECK JOURNAL  -  12/17/09



12/17/09 2

CHECK # VENDOR NAME INVOICE # PO # DESCRIPTION DETAIL ACCOUNT # CHECK DETAIL CHECK TOTAL
CHECK JOURNAL  -  12/17/09

12431 Kansas Gas Service Misc INv 30100197 Heat 06 E 2600 621 0021 000 161.29 457.99
Misc INv 30100197 Heat 06 E 2600 621 0031 000 49.10
Misc INv 30100197 Heat 06 E 2600 621 0040 000 247.60

12432 Daniel Albright 36012 150100635 Service Call-Invoice #36012 16 E 4700 430 0000 021 150.00 150.00
Replace one bottom arem &
re-install green banner

12433 K.C. Air Filter Company, Inc. 94052 150100634 Service Call- Invoice #94052, 16 E 4700 430 0000 042 362.47 1,023.43
#94053, #94057 HV Pleats

94053 150100634 Service Call- Invoice #94052, 16 E 4700 430 0000 043 357.76
#94053, #94057 HV Pleats

94057 150100634 Service Call- Invoice #94052, 16 E 4700 430 0000 010 303.20
#94053, #94057 HV Pleats

12434 Kendall/Hunt Publishing Co 10756488 330100140 Reading assessments - SPED 30 E 1000 610 0000 003 203.95 203.95
12435 Laurie Winter 0/14, 11/6,13, 12 190100021 Consulting for Title I 90 E 1000 330 0000 000 1,900.00 1,900.00

Starside
12436 LibrarySkills, Inc 8027 460100060 Library Supplies 06 E 2220 640 0046 000 159.58 159.58
12437 Joni Wilson rollment Fee Re 330100159 Refund of preschool 30 R 1990 000 0000 001 50.00 50.00

enrollment fee
12438 Olathe Band Instrument 10677 300100138 Bassoon Repair - take from 16 E 1000 731 0000 030 80.00 80.00

capital outlay
12439 Olathe Medical Center, Inc. 13371 30100196 Monthly Athletic Trainer 08 E 1000 680 0000 001 7,249.11 7,249.11

Srvcs
12440 Pepco, Inc. 10246 150100587 Archeological Dig Tables for 16 E 1000 736 0000 001 11,200.00 11,200.00

new Archeology Class
12441 Perma-Bound 1337871-00 210100066 class set of novels 06 E 1000 610 0021 161 339.00 339.00
12442 Pitney Bowes 453270 300100153 cartridge for postage machine 06 E 2400 610 0030 000 54.99 54.99

(red)
12443 Pitsco 431056-2 220100083 Industrial Tech supplies 06 E 1000 610 0022 060 206.01 1,023.27

431056-1 220100083 Industrial Tech supplies 06 E 1000 610 0022 060 817.26
12444 Professional Turf Products, LP 1091948-00 150100569 Crank arm, Brg Housing Asm, 16 E 2600 430 0000 153 226.79 984.70

Spring Asm, Shaft Crank for
Soil Reliever

1091948-01 150100569 Crank arm, Brg Housing Asm, 16 E 2600 430 0000 153 757.91
Spring Asm, Shaft Crank for
Soil Reliever

12445 Prufrock Press Inc 277159 330100072 Gifted Child Today - Carmen 30 E 1000 610 0002 000 40.00 40.00
Shelly

12446 Really Good Stuff, Inc. 2867620 450100080 supplies for first grade 06 E 1000 610 0045 000 70.92 130.88
classroom

2867037 460100029 5th grade budget-magnetic 06 E 1000 610 0046 000 59.96
letters

12447 School Specialty Inc 208103346244 430100081 Art Supplies for the 2009 - 06 E 1000 610 0043 020 20.59 39.43



12/17/09 3

CHECK # VENDOR NAME INVOICE # PO # DESCRIPTION DETAIL ACCOUNT # CHECK DETAIL CHECK TOTAL
CHECK JOURNAL  -  12/17/09

2010 school year
208103354047 200100058 dry erasers and ceiling clips 06 E 2400 610 0020 000 18.84

12448 Smallwood Lock Supply 421291 150100011 Open Requisition 06 E 2600 610 0015 400 95.00 95.00
12449 Spatula Central 208183 240100131 Equipment for kitchen - 24 E 3100 730 0000 000 389.00 389.00

Riverview
12450 Starside Elementary School Petty cash 430100087 Postage Stamps 06 E 2400 531 0043 000 88.00 88.00
12451 Stephanie Cooper 12/2,8,10 310100220 Choir accompanist fee 06 E 1000 610 0031 040 120.00 120.00
12452 The McGraw-Hill Companies 51808440001 330100139 Horizons reading teachers 30 E 1000 610 0000 003 264.02 264.02

manual - MTMS
12453 Tierney Stationery Company 83059 460100068 Classroom Budget 2009 - 2010 06 E 1000 610 0046 132 174.55 199.53

83102 460100068 Classroom Budget 2009 - 2010 06 E 1000 610 0046 132 24.98
12454 Touchtone Communications 9135838300 30100198 Long Distance 06 E 2300 532 0000 000 387.49 387.49
12455 Turner's Cycling & Fitness, Inc. 924508 300100155 2-GIANT DUAL FIT EXERCIS16 E 1000 730 0000 030 699.95 1,399.90

BIKES
924506 300100155 2-GIANT DUAL FIT EXERCIS16 E 1000 730 0000 030 699.95

BIKES
12456 Turner High School Mill Valley HS 310100219 Boys Basketball Tournament 06 E 1000 680 0031 040 200.00 200.00

Entry Fees, JV & Freshman
12457 Unisource Document Products AR359453 180100143 November '09 District Copy 08 E 2300 449 0000 001 7,352.61 7,352.61

Machine Meter Counts
12458 United Office Products, Inc. 197176 240100118 Self Inking Stamp 24 E 3100 610 0000 000 19.00 19.00
12459 UNUM Life Insurance Company 40148 30100200 STD PAYEMENT TO UNUM f 06 E 2300 213 0000 001 962.47 962.47

Dec-09
12460 US Foodservice 3943647 240100092 For delivery on 11/12/09 24 E 3100 630 0000 000 17,377.02 81,482.03

4018678 240100108 For delivery on 11/19/2009 24 E 3100 630 0000 000 27,941.28
4151171 240100112 For delivery on 12/3/09 24 E 3100 630 0000 000 16,812.73
4225219 240100115 For delivery on 12/10/09 24 E 3100 630 0000 000 19,351.00

132,663.32TOTAL OF COMPUTER CHECKS:



12/22/09 1

CHECK # VENDOR NAME INVOICE # PO # DESCRIPTION DETAIL ACCOUNT # CHECK DETAIL CHECK TOTAL

12461,62,63 Amazon.Com Corporate Credit 258112840865 300100154 bilingual dictionaries 06 E 1000 610 0030 210 9.93 2,166.99
219693551773 300100154 bilingual dictionaries 06 E 1000 610 0030 210 7.39
268929847605 300100154 bilingual dictionaries 06 E 1000 610 0030 210 14.08

6275651871 300100154 bilingual dictionaries 06 E 1000 610 0030 210 15.66
215503419459 60100116 Book- Teacher Materials - 55 E 1000 644 0000 000 29.78

High School New Honors Course
286380347337 300100154 bilingual dictionaries 06 E 1000 610 0030 210 11.98
146492726395 300100148 RCA Rp5022 64 Mb voice 06 E 1000 610 0030 150 61.32

recorder w/Usb
22968436986 310100179 Classroom Supplies - Novels 06 E 1000 610 0031 110 471.88

136370147068 450100065 Batteries from Amazon 06 E 2400 890 0045 000 32.56
74128907041 450100077 2 Way Radios for Discovery 06 E 1000 610 0045 221 106.50

Room
126589257376 330100131 Reading Assessment for each 30 E 1000 610 0000 003 91.71

school
153805527203 460100054 Instructional materials 06 E 1000 610 0046 200 7.80
294057710068 400100094 Amazon.com PTA Grant - 06 E 1000 610 0040 000 145.62

McWhirt
23405082769 460100054 Instructional materials 06 E 1000 610 0046 200 33.88

294058766696 400100094 Amazon.com PTA Grant - 06 E 1000 610 0040 000 98.04
McWhirt

294056731093 400100094 Amazon.com PTA Grant - 06 E 1000 610 0040 000 41.12
McWhirt

22964277513 310100179 Classroom Supplies - Novels 06 E 1000 610 0031 110 130.52
126946853520 60100105 Professional Development 06 E 2212 330 0006 000 77.85

materials
255466036036 450100071 Amazon book order for Carrie 06 E 1000 610 0045 000 22.95

Handy
101946530166 300100154 bilingual dictionaries 06 E 1000 610 0030 210 10.94
136379159687 450100065 Batteries from Amazon 06 E 2400 890 0045 000 52.00
126944635784 60100105 Professional Development 06 E 2212 330 0006 000 103.80

materials
126941100537 60100105 Professional Development 06 E 2212 330 0006 000 77.85

materials
126947115503 60100105 Professional Development 06 E 2212 330 0006 000 109.81

materials
130612965985 60100108 Professional Development 06 E 2212 330 0006 000 44.98

Books
123904628880 60100123 PD Book- Learning Services 06 E 2212 330 0006 000 45.00
73997284071 220100081 portable dvd player for 06 E 1000 610 0022 070 179.44

foreign language
18822581328 330100127 Classroom materials for 30 E 1000 610 0000 003 25.63

CHECK JOURNAL  -  12/22/09



12/22/09 2

CHECK # VENDOR NAME INVOICE # PO # DESCRIPTION DETAIL ACCOUNT # CHECK DETAIL CHECK TOTAL
CHECK JOURNAL  -  12/22/09

Communication class
126584892194 330100131 Reading Assessment for each 30 E 1000 610 0000 003 91.71

school
219972415619 330100127 Classroom materials for 30 E 1000 610 0000 003 15.26

Communication class
12464 Anderson Erickson Dairy Co. Misc Inv 240100133 Milk purchased for the school 24 E 3100 630 0000 000 17,857.97 17,857.97

lunch program.
12465 Atmos Energy Misc Inv 30100206 Heat 06 E 2600 621 0030 000 111.41 214.75

Misc Inv 30100206 Heat 08 E 2600 621 0018 000 103.34
12466 AT&T Internet Services Acct #: 82928235 30100205 Internet Services 08 E 1000 532 0018 002 3,578.00 3,578.00

12/05/09-01/04/10
12467 Austin Peters Group, Inc. , 10/1/09-12/31/0 190100022 Data collection and 92 E 1000 330 0000 000 1,438.67 1,438.67

evaluation for 21st Century
grant @ Starside

12468 BP tmnt # 2254418 30100203 District Fuel Charges 06 E 2600 626 0015 000 159.38 414.18
11/18/09-12/17/09

Stmnt # 2254418 30100203 District Fuel Charges 06 E 2720 626 0012 000 82.44
11/18/09-12/17/09

Stmnt # 2254418 30100203 District Fuel Charges 18 E 2650 626 0000 000 120.01
11/18/09-12/17/09

Stmnt # 2254418 30100203 District Fuel Charges 30 E 2720 626 0000 000 52.35
11/18/09-12/17/09

12469 Card Services 12/15/09 TC 180100146 Monthly Statement 12/15/09 08 E 2900 531 0018 000 11.30 4,434.38
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2300 580 0004 001 100.00
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2212 581 0006 006 259.31
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2212 610 0006 000 47.51
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2130 610 0011 000 147.12
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2300 580 0011 000 175.98
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2300 610 0011 001 37.50
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2600 610 0015 300 147.08
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 1000 610 0020 080 244.11
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2400 531 0020 000 152.33
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2400 531 0021 000 160.00
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2400 890 0021 000 489.10
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 1000 610 0022 080 141.86
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2400 531 0022 000 96.74
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2400 531 0030 000 200.00
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 1000 610 0031 000 52.78
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2400 531 0031 000 175.00
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 1000 610 0040 000 3.96
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2400 890 0041 000 12.70
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 1000 610 0045 000 18.75



12/22/09 3

CHECK # VENDOR NAME INVOICE # PO # DESCRIPTION DETAIL ACCOUNT # CHECK DETAIL CHECK TOTAL
CHECK JOURNAL  -  12/22/09

12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2400 531 0045 000 108.67
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 06 E 2400 531 0046 000 65.20
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 16 E 2600 730 0000 043 76.43
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 16 E 4700 430 0000 021 500.00
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 16 E 4700 430 0000 030 63.75
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 16 E 4700 430 0000 043 250.00
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 30 E 1000 610 0000 003 331.68
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 30 E 1000 610 0000 005 53.28
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 30 E 2300 531 0000 000 121.83
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 30 E 1000 330 0000 001 168.46
12/15/09 Stmnt 30100204 Misc Purchases 12/15/09 30 E 1000 610 0000 040 21.95

12470 CarterEnergy Corporation 606331 120100014 Invoice # 606331 - 5003 06 E 2720 626 0012 000 11,969.53 11,969.53
gallons clr bld 70/30 winter
w/additive - 8800 Penner, De
Soto

12471 Classroomdirect 206700918821 400100088 DR Supplies from Grant 06 E 1000 610 0040 000 66.63 517.90
206700918820 450100079 Classroom Direct order for 06 E 1000 610 0045 112 90.64

Garretson
306700151124 800100024 materials for storage of OWE 14 E 1000 610 0000 000 360.63

curriculum and white board
for new area at RE

12472 Coleman Equipment Inc. PC52956 150100050 Equip Repair-Grounds 16 E 2600 430 0000 153 222.16 222.16
12473 Constellation Energy C187876 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0015 000 40.16 3,618.15

#C188999, C187876
C187876 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0020 000 204.24

#C188999, C187876
C187876 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0021 000 242.72

#C188999, C187876
C187876 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0022 000 97.47

#C188999, C187876
C187876 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0030 000 221.32

#C188999, C187876
C187876 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0031 000 45.34

#C188999, C187876
C187876 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0042 000 128.91

#C188999, C187876
C187876 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0046 000 40.75

#C188999, C187876
C188999 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0015 000 102.17

#C188999, C187876
C188999 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0020 000 519.61

#C188999, C187876



12/22/09 4

CHECK # VENDOR NAME INVOICE # PO # DESCRIPTION DETAIL ACCOUNT # CHECK DETAIL CHECK TOTAL
CHECK JOURNAL  -  12/22/09

C188999 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0021 000 617.50
#C188999, C187876

C188999 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0022 000 247.96
#C188999, C187876

C188999 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0030 000 563.05
#C188999, C187876

C188999 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0031 000 115.35
#C188999, C187876

C188999 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0042 000 327.94
#C188999, C187876

C188999 110100042 November Use Bill - Invoice 06 E 2600 621 0046 000 103.66
#C188999, C187876

12474 De Soto Feed & Garden, LLC F 127223 150100020 Open Requisition 06 E 2600 610 0015 200 102.00 102.00
12475 E & K Of Kansas City, Inc 40157 150100636 Labor and Materials for work 16 E 4700 450 0000 031 285.00 285.00

performed on temporay wall at
MVHS that was vandalized by
students. District will be
reimbursed.

12476 Eric Armin Inc. INV0427251 400100092 PTA Grant - Mantel 06 E 1000 610 0040 000 307.76 307.76
12477 ETA/Cuisenaire 50326653 220100087 6th grade 06 E 1000 610 0022 161 46.90 46.90
12478 Follett Library Resources 652963F-3 450100063 Fall Book Order- 2009 06 E 2220 640 0045 000 176.81 176.81
12479 GLS 478748 310100182 Soccer Equipment 06 E 1000 680 0031 105 857.25 857.25
12480 Gourmet Grocer Catering, LLC 527 50100057 Deposit for YouthFriends 35 E 1000 610 0000 002 161.38 161.38

Volunteer luncheon in spring
2010. Paid with corporate
donations. No taxpayer
dollars used.

12481 Grainger 9136014744 150100005 Supplies-Maintenance 06 E 2600 610 0015 400 8.13 51.65
9136014751 150100005 Supplies-Maintenance 06 E 2600 610 0015 400 29.72

CM 9136882066 150100005 Supplies-Maintenance 06 E 2600 610 0015 400 -8.13
9137333705 150100005 Supplies-Maintenance 06 E 2600 610 0015 400 13.80
9137333697 150100005 Supplies-Maintenance 06 E 2600 610 0015 400 8.13

12482 Lakeshore Learning Materials 406118 400100091 PTA Grant - Ptacek 06 E 1000 610 0040 130 191.82 191.82
12483 Lathrop & Gage LLP 1337269 10100034 Legal Svcs & Expenses - 06 E 2300 345 0000 000 1,907.49 2,281.89

General & SPED
1337270 10100034 Legal Svcs & Expenses - 06 E 2300 345 0000 000 374.40

General & SPED
12484 Keil Hileman 11/4 - 12/6 30100202 Archaeology Class Supplies 16 E 1000 736 0000 001 817.87 1,338.87

40160 30100202 Archaeology Class Supplies 16 E 1000 736 0000 001 521.00
12485 Morgan Hunter Companies 19834 40100013 Sub Teacher Pay 06 E 1000 110 0000 060 966.00 14,053.00

19837 40100013 Sub Teacher Pay 06 E 1000 110 0000 060 1,196.00
19833 40100013 Sub Teacher Pay 06 E 1000 110 0000 060 1,242.00



12/22/09 5

CHECK # VENDOR NAME INVOICE # PO # DESCRIPTION DETAIL ACCOUNT # CHECK DETAIL CHECK TOTAL
CHECK JOURNAL  -  12/22/09

19835 40100013 Sub Teacher Pay 06 E 1000 110 0000 060 552.00
19836 40100013 Sub Teacher Pay 06 E 1000 110 0000 060 828.00
19838 40100013 Sub Teacher Pay 06 E 1000 110 0000 060 1,656.00
19839 40100013 Sub Teacher Pay 06 E 1000 110 0000 060 1,914.75
19840 40100013 Sub Teacher Pay 06 E 1000 110 0000 060 2,346.00
19841 40100013 Sub Teacher Pay 06 E 1000 110 0000 060 713.00
19842 40100013 Sub Teacher Pay 06 E 1000 110 0000 060 1,581.25
19843 40100013 Sub Teacher Pay 06 E 1000 110 0000 060 1,058.00

12486 Office Depot 500384523001 210100073 paper for newspaper 06 E 1000 610 0021 100 36.23 746.18
501479568001 310100217 8.5" x 14" binder 06 E 2400 610 0031 000 14.30
501189331001 300100156 supplies 06 E 1000 610 0030 000 31.66
501189331001 300100156 supplies 06 E 2400 610 0030 000 16.01
500562188001 110100038 Print cartridges 06 E 2300 610 0011 000 112.68
500566938001 310100207 Supplies 06 E 2400 610 0031 000 45.00
500764809001 330100150 In-Service supplies, CLC 30 E 1000 610 0000 000 48.00

supplies
500764809001 330100150 In-Service supplies, CLC 30 E 1000 610 0000 005 67.75

supplies
500764813001 220100091 office supplies 06 E 2400 610 0022 000 107.81
500764814001 220100091 office supplies 06 E 2400 610 0022 000 8.06
501302909001 150100639 Replacement Bookcase for 16 E 2600 730 0000 040 186.69

Prairie Ridge
500566839001 460100067 flash drive 06 E 1000 610 0046 060 71.99

12487 Oriental Trading Co., Inc. 635820141-01 450100081 Oriental Trading - 5th TEAM 06 E 1000 610 0045 000 70.89 70.89
12488 PC Mall Gov S55565480101 180100139 Logitech Desktop Microphone 30 E 1000 650 0000 000 10.84 10.84

600 for SPED for MVHS
12489 Pitney Bowes 6968952-DC09 300100073 POSTAGE EQUIPMENT RENT06 E 2400 890 0030 000 81.00 81.00

6/30/09 THRU 9/30/09
12490 Pitney Bowes 4666534-DC09 30100201 Lease-Postage Meter 08 E 2300 449 0000 002 627.00 627.00
12491 Predator Termite & Pest 120709 150100556 Monthly Pest Control Service 08 E 2600 425 0000 000 1,707.00 1,707.00
12492 Pur-0-Zone, Inc 483827 150100600 Large Gloves @ $42.90 a case 06 E 2600 610 0015 200 42.90 5,960.90

483827 150100600 Large Gloves @ $42.90 a case 06 E 2600 610 0015 200 2.50
483780 150900716 Custodial Supplies for 06 E 9000 000 0099 999 5,915.50

2009-2010 School Year
Approved by BOE 4/20/09

12493 Rew Materials 2714410 150100644 Expansion Joints For 16 E 4700 430 0000 043 90.80 90.80
Discovery Area

12494 Sax Arts & Crafts/Sw Branch 306300088885 430100077 Art Supplies for the 2009 - 06 E 1000 610 0043 020 537.03 537.03
2010 School Year

12495 School Specialty Inc 308100502339 400100102 Classroom supplies from Kerri 06 E 1000 610 0040 115 25.60 631.62
Lovejoy's classroom budget

208103356496 460100069 Classroom budget 06 E 1000 610 0046 000 12.64



12/22/09 6

CHECK # VENDOR NAME INVOICE # PO # DESCRIPTION DETAIL ACCOUNT # CHECK DETAIL CHECK TOTAL
CHECK JOURNAL  -  12/22/09

208103356496 460100069 Classroom budget 06 E 1000 610 0046 133 96.39
208103356496 460100069 Classroom budget 06 E 2400 890 0046 000 21.77
208103349035 400100093 2nd grade supplies, Sahadeo 35 E 1000 610 0000 003 195.64
208103365005 470100063 Supplies 06 E 1000 610 0047 142 37.88
208103351638 400100097 PTA Grant 2 - First Grade 06 E 1000 610 0040 000 241.70

12496 Staff Development/Educators REG-1107339 210100064 SDE Conference 26 E 2000 890 0000 021 189.00 189.00
"Differentiating Instruction
in a Whole-Group Setting"
Topeka, Kansas

12497 Shawnee Mission Ford, Inc W97899 150100632 Recall for 97 E-350  Keys 08 E 2740 439 0000 000 34.14 34.14
12498 Smallwood Lock Supply 421284 150100641 New Lock Set to replace 16 E 4700 430 0000 041 244.50 347.34

existing one @ Horizon
421332 150100011 Supplies-Maintenance 06 E 2600 610 0015 400 102.84

12499 The Supply Closet 1198 430100060 Deluxe Yacker Tracker for 16 E 1000 730 0000 043 131.99 131.99
noise control in the
cafeteria

12500 Varsity Spirit Fashions 3973744 300100097 Dance Team Uniforms 06 E 1000 681 0030 000 1,896.40 3,667.90
3973789 4000100018 Dance Uniforms 06 E 1000 681 0031 000 1,771.50

12501 WABA Fun, LLC 16424 50100058 STC Molding Sand for Honors 35 E 1000 610 0000 002 2,425.07 2,425.07
Archeology & Artifacts high
school course. Paid for with
donations. No taxpayer
dollars used.

12502 Western Extralite Company S3927921.001 150100623 400 watt Parking Lot Lights 06 E 2600 610 0015 400 537.30 537.30

84,083.01TOTAL OF COMPUTER CHECKS:



VISA  -  12/15/09

12/15/09 1

Transaction Date Transaction Detail Amount Total

12/10/09 USPS 19248600232215212 45.70
12/10/09 DOLLAR-GENERAL #7565 DE SOTO KS 7.58

                       Debbie Legler                                   $53.28
12/09/09 SHAWNEE STEEL&WELDING MERRIAM KS 750.00

                       David King                                  $750.00
11/16/09 SELECTBLINDS 76.43

                       Debbie Atwell                             $76.43
12/09/09 DOOR CONTROLS 63.75

                       Doyle Baker              $63.75
11/30/09 THE HOME DEPOT 2213 SHAWNEE KS 61.75
11/30/09 THE HOME DEPOT 2213 SHAWNEE KS 61.75
11/30/09 THE HOME DEPOT 2213 SHAWNEE KS 23.58

                       Irvin Greer         $147.08
11/16/09 SOUTHWESTAIR DALLAS TX 237.20
12/02/09 HYATT HOTELS WICHITA WICHITA KS 168.46

                       Dena Wilkerson               $405.66
11/16/09 UMKC CAREER TRANS CTR KANSAS CITY MO 100.00

                       Mark Schmidt $100.00
11/19/09 CIRCLEK6368 AS CASSODAY KS 27.60
11/19/09 BEST WESTERN WICHITA NOR WICHITA KS 148.38
12/04/09 WAL-MART #2855 SHAWNEE KS 147.12

                       Jack Deyoe     $323.10
11/14/09 WM SUPERCENTER SHAWNEE KS 37.50

                       Lorah A Smith      $37.50
12/11/09 USPS 19836215332280885 65.20

                       Sherri Poorman        $65.20
12/01/09 IRLEN INSTITUTE 21.95
12/08/09 WALGREENS #09425 SHAWNEE KS 3.96

                       Lori Koch $25.91
11/17/09 GHANN'S CRICKET FARM I AUGUSTA GA 24.69
11/30/09 GHANN'S CRICKET FARM I AUGUSTA GA 19.48
12/02/09 AVCORP BUSINESS SYSTEMS 175.00
12/03/09 GHANN'S CRICKET FARM I AUGUSTA GA 8.61

                       Debra Johnson $227.78
12/03/09 PITNEY BOWES RENTAL 36.74
12/08/09 PITNEYBOWES POSTAGE 60.00

                       Tim Drake $96.74
11/27/09 JOANN ETC #1926 OVERLAND PARK KS 141.86

                       Melissa Miller       $141.86
11/14/09 WAL-MART #0486 BONNER SPRIN KS 12.70

                       Amy Hileman $12.70
11/24/09 USPS 19836215332280885 108.67
11/30/09 PRICE CHOPPER #249 SHAWNEE KS 18.75

                       Melanie Blackmore $127.42
12/04/09 WM SUPERCENTER SHAWNEE KS 489.10
12/08/09 USPS 19836215332280885 160.00

                       Amy K Turner $649.10
12/08/09 PITNEY BOWES RENTAL 41.73

                       Stephen Ludwig $41.73
11/22/09 JO-ANN ETC #2070 SHAWNEE KS 14.57
11/24/09 PRICE CHOPPER #249 SHAWNEE KS 35.25
11/30/09 WM SUPERCENTER SHAWNEE KS 25.81
12/07/09 WAL-MART #2855 SHAWNEE KS 108.98
12/13/09 WAL-MART #2855 SHAWNEE KS 59.50

                       Mary Caroline Crady $244.11
11/18/09 PITNEYBOWES POSTAGE 200.00

                       Connie Groothuis $200.00
11/13/09 WAL-MART #2855 SHAWNEE KS 60.98



VISA  -  12/15/09

12/15/09 2

Transaction Date Transaction Detail Amount Total

11/23/09 WM SUPERCENTER SHAWNEE KS 61.79
12/04/09 WAL-MART #2855 SHAWNEE KS 79.98

                       Molly Young $202.75
11/19/09 TARGET 00017590 SHAWNEE KS 11.97
11/19/09 WM SUPERCENTER SHAWNEE KS 153.50
11/19/09 THE UPS STORE #5094 SHAWNEE KS 105.08
12/01/09 DYNAVOX SYSTEMS, LLC 78.00
12/03/09 WM SUPERCENTER SHAWNEE KS 138.88
12/03/09 WAL-MART #2855 SHAWNEE KS -101.29
12/07/09 WAL-MART #2855 SHAWNEE KS 50.62
12/08/09 USPS 19248600232215212 16.75

                       Janet Hopkins $453.51
12/04/09 PITNEYBOWES POSTAGE 100.00
12/04/09 USPS 19248600232215212 10.60

                       J Michele Altis $110.60
11/13/09 USPS 19248600232215212 10.05
11/16/09 USPS 19248600232215212 7.24
11/18/09 THE BLEU TOMATO DE SOTO KS(Principals&Learning Coaches) 132.00
12/02/09 CPC*CAFEPRESS.COM 30.22
12/02/09 THE BLEU TOMATO DE SOTO KS(Principals&Learning Coaches) 127.31

                       Julie Maurer $306.82
11/23/09 USPS 19248600232215212 11.30

                       Linda Acton $11.30

$4,874.33





































 
 35200 West 91st Street 
 De Soto, Kansas  66018 
 Phone:  913-583-8300 
 FAX:  913-583-8303 
 mschmidt@usd232.org 

 
 Dr. Mark Schmidt 
 Director Human Resources 

 
 
 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
The mission of De Soto Unified School District 232, a dynamic learning community, is to inspire the creative genius in each person by: 
leading in educational innovation and academic excellence; building visionary, world-class educational opportunities; fulfilling the 
evolving needs of citizens as lifelong learners; integrating the heritage and promise of our diverse rapidly growing community; and 
respecting the importance of the individual while promoting the common good. 
 

Unified School District 232 
 
De Soto – Shawnee – Lenexa – Olathe 
w w w . u s d 2 3 2 . o r g  
 

Date: January 11, 2009 
To: USD 232 Board of Education 
From:  Dr. Mark Schmidt - Director of Human Resources 
Re:    Consent Agenda – Letter of agreement for Health and Productivity Management 

 
As part of the health insurance program recently approved by the Board, Blue Cross Blue 
Shield of Kansas City (BCBSKC) is providing $25,000 for the support of the district’s 
wellness program, including contracting with Saint Luke’s Hospital to provide a Health 
Enhancement Coordinator for 10 hours per week.  BCBSKC will pay $1,587 per month 
($19,044 annually) to Saint Luke’s, leaving the balance to be used by the USD 232 
Wellness Committee.   
 
Please consider approving and signing the attached letter of agreement with Saint Luke’s 
to formalize the relationship. 
  
Please contact me at mschmidt@usd232.org or (913) 667-6205 if you have any questions 
or concerns. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Mark 

mailto:mschmidt@usd232.org


















 
           35200 West 91st Street 
           De Soto, Kansas  66018 
           Phone:  913/667-6200 
           Fax:      913/667-6201 
           Email:   klarsen@usd232.org 
 
         Mr. Ken Larsen 
         Director, Budget & Finance 

 
 
 

 

Unified School District 232 
 

De Soto – Shawnee – Lenexa – Olathe 
w w w . u s d 2 3 2 . o r g  
 

 
Date:   January 5, 2010 
To:      Board of Education, USD 232 
From:  Ken Larsen, Director of Budget & Finance 
Re:      Request approval for Board of Tax Appeals Application, Board of Education 
            Meeting January 11, 2010  
 
Dear Board Member: 
 
We request the Board’s approval to file an application with the Board of Tax Appeals 
(BOTA) for authority to levy an ad-valorem tax to assist the district to finance a portion of 
the costs attributable to the opening of new classroom additions at Mill Valley High School 
and the new Belmont Elementary School in August 2010, commonly referred to as 
“Extraordinary Growth”.  This would not be a new tax levy as we are currently levying such 
tax for past building projects.  The current BOTA approval is now in the declining years of 
the tax authority and will decrease by $1,366,000 over the next two years.  The approval 
we are requesting will replace this loss of current funding.  This item will appear on the 
consent agenda for approval. 
 
If any questions please feel free to contact me anytime.   
 
Thank you. 
 

  























 

 

David Morford 

Principal 

 

Chuck Mahon 

Associate Principal 

 

Steve Deghand 

Athletic Director 

 

Cindy Crabtree 

Counselor 

 

Chad Brecheisen 

Counselor 

 

Mike Murphy 

Learning Coach 

DDee  SSoottoo  HHiigghh  
SScchhooooll  

Home of the Wildcats! 

 

35000 W. 91st Street 

De Soto, Kansas  66018--0469 

Phone:  913-667-6250 

Fax:  913—667-6251 

    

 
 
 
 
 
December 17, 2009 
 
To:  USD 232 Board of Education 
From:  Steve Deghand 
RE:  Donation to DHS 
 
As per Board policy, I am requesting approval to accept a donation to the De Soto 
High School Football Team toward the purchase of a five-man chute with t-boards.  
Mr. and Mrs. Troy Oberle would like to donate $750 for the purpose of purchasing 
these items for the De Soto High School Football Players.  This equipment would 
be used by both middle school and high school football players to improve their 
speed, explosiveness, and overall pad level.  This would certainly be a great asset 
for our football program.  Thank you for the consideration.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

Steve Deghand 

Athletic Director   



 

1 
 

Unified School District 232 
 

 
 De Soto – Shawnee – Lenexa – Olathe 

w w w . u s d 2 3 2 .o r g  
 

 

Joan E. Robbins 
Director of Special Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:   December 18, 2009 
To:      Board of Education, USD 232 
From:  Joan Robbins, Director of Special Services 
Re:      Recommendation to accept donation   
 
I recommend the Board of Education accept the following donation: 
 

• A $500.00 donation from the family of a student enrolled in USD 232.  The 
student attends a center based program. 
 

The gift will be used to purchase materials and supplies for the program, such as games, 
math manipulatives, reading materials, books, and educational toys. 
 

 







 

 

         GILMORE & BELL, P.C. 
         Bond Resolution v2 
         January 4, 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 RESOLUTION 
 
 
 OF 
 
 
 UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 232, 
 JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS  
 
 
 PASSED 
 
 JANUARY 11, 2010 
 
                           
 
 
 
 $27,000,000 
 [TAXABLE] GENERAL OBLIGATION SCHOOL BONDS 

[(BUILD AMERICA BONDS – DIRECT PAY)] 
 SERIES 2010-A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

-i- 

 RESOLUTION 
 
 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 ARTICLE I 
 
 DEFINITIONS 
 
Section 101. Definitions of Words and Terms .......................................................................................   2 
 
 
 ARTICLE II 
 
 AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE BONDS 
 
Section 201. Authorization of the Bonds ................................................................................................  7 
Section 202. Description of the Bonds ...................................................................................................  7 
Section 203. Designation of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar .............................................................  8 
Section 204. Method and Place of Payment of the Bonds ......................................................................  9 
Section 205. Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds ..................................................................  9 
Section 206. Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Bonds. ....................................  10 
Section 207. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds ....................................................................  11 
Section 208. Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment ...................................................  11 
Section 209. Preliminary and Final Official Statement ........................................................................  11 
Section 210. Sale of the Bonds .............................................................................................................  12 
Section 211. Book-Entry Bonds; Securities Depository .......................................................................  12 
 
 
 ARTICLE III 
 
 REDEMPTION OF BONDS 
 
Section 301. Optional Redemption .......................................................................................................  13 
Section 302. Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed ................................................................................  13 
Section 303. Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption .......................................................................  14 
 
 
 ARTICLE IV 
 
 SECURITY FOR AND PAYMENT OF BONDS 
 
Section 401. Security for the Bonds .....................................................................................................  15 
Section 402. Levy and Collection of Annual Tax .................................................................................  16 
 
 



 

-ii- 

 ARTICLE V 
 
 ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 
 DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF MONEYS 
 
Section 501. Establishment of Funds and Accounts .............................................................................  16 
Section 502. Disposition of Bond Proceeds ..........................................................................................  16 
Section 503. Withdrawals from the 2010-A Project Account ...............................................................  17 
Section 504. Surplus in the 2010-A Project Account ............................................................................  17 
Section 505. Application of Moneys in 2010-A Principal and Interest Account ..................................  17 
Section 506. Deposits and Investment of Moneys ................................................................................  17 
Section 507. Nonpresentment of Bonds................................................................................................  18 
Section 508. Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays ........................................................ 18 
Section 509. Application of Moneys in the Rebate Fund ...................................................................... 18 
 
 
 ARTICLE VI 
 
 DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 
Section 601. Remedies ..........................................................................................................................  19 
Section 602. Limitation on Rights of Owners ......................................................................................  19 
Section 603. Remedies Cumulative ......................................................................................................  19 
 
 
 ARTICLE VII 
 
 DEFEASANCE 
 
Section 701. Defeasance .......................................................................................................................  20 
 
 
 ARTICLE VIII 
 
 TAX COVENANTS 
 
Section 801. General Covenants ...........................................................................................................  20 
Section 802. Rebate Covenant ............................................................................................................... 21 
[Section 803. Election of Bonds as Build America Bonds ....................................................................  22] 
Section 804. Survival of Covenants ......................................................................................................  22 
 
 
 ARTICLE IX 
 
 CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Section 901. Disclosure Requirements .................................................................................................. 22 
Section 902. Failure to Comply with Continuing Disclosure Requirements ......................................... 22 
 
 
 ARTICLE X 



 

-iii- 

 
 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
Section 1001. Annual Audit ....................................................................................................................  23 
Section 1002. Amendments ....................................................................................................................  23 
Section 1003. Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by Owners ......................................................  24 
Section 1004. Notices .............................................................................................................................  24 
Section 1005. Electronic Transactions ....................................................................................................  25 
Section 1006. Further Authority .............................................................................................................  25 
Section 1007. Severability ......................................................................................................................  25 
Section 1008. Governing Law ................................................................................................................  25 
Section 1009. Effective Date .................................................................................................................  S-1 
 
  Passage  ............................................................................................................................ S-1 
  Signatures and Seal .......................................................................................................... S-1 
  Exhibit A Form of Certificated Bond 
  Exhibit B Continuing Disclosure Instructions 



 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND DELIVERY OF 
$27,000,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF GENERAL OBLIGATION SCHOOL 
BONDS, SERIES 2010-A, OF UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 232, JOHNSON 
COUNTY, KANSAS; PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS OF SAID 
BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF AN ANNUAL 
TAX FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST 
ON SAID BONDS AS THEY BECOME DUE; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, Unified School District No. 232, Johnson County, Kansas (the “District”), is a 
unified school district, duly created, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Kansas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to proceedings duly had under the authority of K.S.A. 72-6761 and 
K.S.A. 75-2315 et seq., as amended, and an election duly held on November 4, 2008, the following 
proposition was submitted to the voters: 
 
 Shall Unified School District No. 232 (De Soto), Johnson County, Kansas, issue general 

obligation bonds in an amount not to exceed $75,000,000 for the purpose of acquiring, 
constructing, equipping, furnishing, repairing, remodeling or making additions to 
buildings used for school district purposes including without limitation (a) constructing, 
furnishing and equipping additions to both high school facilities, (b) constructing 
furnishing and equipping a new elementary school, (c) providing all necessary and 
related improvements and (d) paying fees and expenses incidental thereto including 
interest during construction, all pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 10-101 et seq., 
K.S.A. 25-2018(f), K.S.A. 75-2315 et seq. and K.S.A. 72-6761? 

 
 WHEREAS, said proposition was approved by a majority of the qualified electors voting 
thereon, such vote being 8,570 for and 6,806 against; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the District has previously issued $25,000,000 of the bonds authorized at said 
election; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is hereby found and determined that it is necessary at this time to issue and 
deliver an additional portion of the bonds authorized at said election in the principal amount of 
$27,000,000 for the purpose of paying a portion of the costs of the improvements authorized at said 
election; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Education has advertised the sale of such bonds in the principal 
amount of $27,000,000 in the manner provided by law and has awarded the sale of such bonds to the 
lowest bidder. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 232, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 



 

 
-2- 

 ARTICLE I 
 
 DEFINITIONS 
 
 Section 101. Definitions of Words and Terms.  In addition to words and terms defined 
elsewhere herein, the following words and terms as used in this Resolution shall have the following 
meanings: 
 
 “Beneficial Owner” of the Bonds includes any Owner of the Bonds and any other Person who, 
directly or indirectly, has the investment power with respect to such Bonds.   
 
 “Bond and interest Fund” means the Bond and Interest Fund of the District for its general 
obligation bonds. 
 
 “Bond Counsel” means the firm of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., or any other attorney or firm of 
attorneys with a nationally recognized standing in the field of municipal bond financing selected by the 
District. 
  
 “Bond Payment Date” means any date on which principal of or interest on any Bond is payable. 
 
 “Bond Register” means the books for the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds kept at the 
office of the Bond Registrar. 
 
 “Bond Registrar” means the Treasurer of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas, and its 
successors and assigns. 
 
 “Bonds” means the General Obligation School Bonds, Series 2010-A, authorized and issued by 
the District pursuant to this Resolution. 
 
 “Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or holiday on which the Paying 
Agent is scheduled in the normal course of its operations to be open to the public for conduct of its 
operations. 
 
 “Cede & Co.” means Cede & Co., as nominee name of The Depository Trust Company, New 
York, New York. 
 
 “Clerk” means the duly appointed and/or elected Clerk of the Board of Education or, in the 
Clerk’s absence, the duly appointed Deputy Clerk or Acting Clerk of the Board of Education of the 
District. 
 
 “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
 “Continuing Disclosure Instructions” means the Continuing Disclosure Instructions in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit B, as from time to time amended. 
  
 “Costs of Issuance” means all costs of issuing the Bonds, including all publication, printing, 
signing and mailing expenses in connection therewith, registration fees, financial advisory fees, all legal 
fees and expenses of Bond Counsel and other legal counsel, expenses incurred in connection with 
compliance with the Code and with the Continuing Disclosure Instructions and all expenses incurred in 
connection with receiving ratings on the Bonds. 



 

 
-3- 

 
 “Dated Date” means January 15, 2010. 
  
 “Defaulted Interest” means interest on any Bond which is payable but not paid on any Interest 
Payment Date. 
 
 “Defeasance Obligations” means any of the following obligations: 
 
  (a) United States Government Obligations that are not subject to redemption in 

advance of their maturity dates; or 
 
  (b) obligations of any state or political subdivision of any state, the interest on which 

is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and which meet the following 
conditions: 

 
   (1) the obligations are (i) not subject to redemption prior to maturity or (ii) 

the trustee for such obligations has been given irrevocable instructions concerning their 
calling and redemption and the district of such obligations has covenanted not to redeem 
such obligations other than as set forth in such instructions; 

 
   (2) the obligations are secured by cash or United States Government 

Obligations that may be applied only to principal of, premium, if any, and interest 
payments on such obligations; 

 
   (3) such cash and the principal of and interest on such United States 

Government Obligations (plus any cash in the escrow fund) are sufficient to meet the 
liabilities of the obligations; 

 
   (4) such cash and United States Government Obligations serving as security 

for the obligations are held in an escrow fund by an escrow agent or a trustee irrevocably 
in trust; 

 
   (5) such cash and United States Government Obligations are not available to 

satisfy any other claims, including those against the trustee or escrow agent; and 
 
   (6) the obligations are rated in the highest rating category by Moody’s  

(presently “Aaa”) or Standard & Poor’s (presently “AAA”). 
 
 “Derivative” means any investment instrument whose market price is derived from the 
fluctuating value of an underlying asset, index, currency or futures contract, including futures, options and 
collateralized mortgage obligations. 
 
 “District” means Unified School District No. 232, Johnson County, Kansas, and any successors 
or assigns. 

 
  



 

 
-4- 

 “Event of Default” means each of the following occurrences or events: 
 
  (a) Payment of the principal or the Redemption Price of any of the Bonds shall not 

be made when the same shall become due and payable, either at Stated Maturity or by 
proceedings for redemption or otherwise; or 

 
  (b) Payment of any installment of interest on any of the Bonds shall not be made 

when the same shall become due; or 
 
  (c) The District shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the 

covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds or in this Resolution on 
the part of the District to be performed (other than relating to the Continuing Disclosure 
Instructions), and such default shall continue for thirty (30) days after written notice specifying 
such default and requiring same to be remedied shall have been given to the District by the 
Owner of any of the Bonds then Outstanding. 

 
 “Federal Tax Certificate” means the Federal Tax Certificate with respect to the Bonds, dated as 
of the date of issuance and delivery of the Bonds, as the same may be amended or supplemented in 
accordance with the provisions thereof. 
 
 “Fiscal Year” means the twelve month period ending on June 30. 
 
 “Funds and Accounts” means funds and accounts created or referred to in Section 501 hereof. 
 
 “Improvements” means acquiring, constructing, equipping, furnishing, repairing, remodeling or 
making additions to buildings used for school district purposes including without limitation (a) 
constructing, furnishing and equipping additions to both high school facilities, (b) constructing furnishing 
and equipping a new elementary school, (c) providing all necessary and related improvements and (d) 
paying fees and expenses incidental thereto including interest during construction. 
 
 “Interest Payment Date(s)” means the Stated Maturity of an installment of interest on any Bond 
which shall be March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing September 1, 2010. 
 
 “Maturity” when used with respect to any Bond means the date on which the principal of such 
Bond becomes due and payable as therein and herein provided, whether at the Stated Maturity thereof or 
by call for redemption or otherwise. 
 
 “Moody’s” means Moody’s Investor’s Service, Inc. 
 
 “Notice Address” means with respect to the following entities: 
 
 (a) To the District at: 
 
   District Offices 
   35200 West 91st Street 
   P.O. Box 449 
   De Soto, Kansas 66018-0449 
   Attn:  Superintendent of Schools 
 
 



 

 
-5- 

 (b) To the Paying Agent at: 
 
   State Treasurer of the State of Kansas 
   Landon Office Building 
   900 Southwest Jackson, Suite 201 
   Topeka, Kansas 66612-1235 
   Attn:  Director of Bond Services 
 
 (c) To the Purchaser: 
 
   ___________________________ 
   ___________________________ 
   ___________________________ 
 
 (d) To the Rating Agency: 
 
   Moody’s Investors Service, Inc 
   99 Church Street 
   New York, New York 10007 
 
 [(e) To the Bond Insurer: 
 
   Assured Guaranty Corp. 
   1325 Avenue of the Americas 
   New York, New York 10019] 
 
 “Outstanding” means, when used with reference to the Bonds, as of a particular date of 
determination, all Bonds theretofore authenticated and delivered, except the following Bonds: 
 
 (a) Bonds theretofore canceled by the Paying Agent or delivered to the Paying Agent for 
cancellation; 
 
 (b) Bonds deemed to be paid in accordance with the provisions of Section 701 hereof; and 
 
 (c) Bonds in exchange for or in lieu of which other Bonds have been authenticated and 
delivered hereunder. 
 
 “Owner” when used with respect to any Bond means the Person in whose name such Bond is 
registered on the Bond Register.  Whenever consent of the Owners is required pursuant to the terms of 
this Resolution, and the Owner of the Bonds, as set forth in the Bond Register, is Cede & Co., the term 
“Owner” shall be deemed to be the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. 
 
 “Participants” means those financial institutions for whom the Securities Depository effects 
book-entry transfers and pledges of securities deposited with the Securities Depository, as such listing of 
Participants exists at the time of such reference. 
 
 “Paying Agent” means the Treasurer of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas, and any successors 
and assigns. 
 
 “Permitted Investments” means any of the following, provided, however, no moneys or funds 
shall be invested in a Derivative: (a) investments authorized by K.S.A. 12-1675 and amendments thereto; 



 

 
-6- 

(b) the municipal investment pool established pursuant to K.S.A. 12-1677a, and amendments thereto; (c) 
direct obligations of the United States Government or any agency thereof; (d) the District’s temporary 
notes issued pursuant to K.S.A. 10-123 and amendments thereto; (e) interest-bearing time deposits in 
commercial banks or trust companies located in the county or counties in which the District is located 
which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or collateralized by securities described 
in (c); (f) obligations of the federal national mortgage association, federal home loan banks or the federal 
home loan mortgage corporation; (g) repurchase agreements for securities described in (c) or (f); 
(h) investment agreements with or other obligations of a financial institution the obligations of which at 
the time of investment are rated in either of the three highest rating categories by Moody’s, Inc. or 
Standard & Poor’s; (i) investments in shares or units of a money market fund or trust, the portfolio of 
which is comprised entirely of securities described in (c) or (f); (j) receipts evidencing ownership interests 
in securities or portions thereof described in (c) or (f); (k) municipal bonds or other obligations issued by 
any municipality of the State as defined in K.S.A. 10-1101 which are general obligations of the 
municipality issuing the same; (l) bonds of any municipality of the State as defined in K.S.A. 10-1101 
which have been refunded in advance of their maturity and are fully secured as to payment of principal 
and interest thereon by deposit in trust, under escrow agreement with a bank, of securities described in (c) 
or (f); or (m) any other investments permitted by K.S.A. 10-131, as amended.   
 
 “Person” means any natural person, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, firm, 
joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, or government or any agency or political 
subdivision thereof or other public body. 
 
 “President” means the duly elected and acting President of the Board of Education, or in the 
President’s absence, the duly appointed and/or elected Vice President or Acting President of the Board of 
Education of the District. 
 
 “Purchase Price” means the principal amount of the Bonds plus accrued interest to the date of 
delivery and plus any premium [and less any discount] as set forth in the bid of the Purchaser. 
 
 “Purchaser” means ________________, ____________, ___________, the original purchaser of 
the Bonds. 
 
 “Rebate Fund” means the Rebate Fund for Unified School District No. 232, Johnson County, 
Kansas, General Obligation School Bonds, Series 2010-A created herein. 
 
 “Record Date” for the interest payable on any Interest Payment Date means the fifteenth day 
(whether or not a Business Day) of the month preceding such Interest Payment Date. 
 
 “Redemption Date” when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed means the date fixed 
for the redemption of such Bond pursuant to the terms of this Resolution. 
 
 “Redemption Price” when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed means the price at 
which such Bond is to be redeemed pursuant to the terms of this Resolution, including the applicable 
redemption premium, if any, but excluding installments of interest whose Stated Maturity is on or before 
the Redemption Date. 
 
 “Replacement Bonds” means Bonds issued to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds in accordance 
with Section 211 hereof. 
 
 “Resolution” means this resolution relating to the Bonds. 



 

 
-7- 

 
 “Securities Depository” means, initially, The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, 
and its successors and assigns. 
 
 “Special Record Date” means the date fixed by the Paying Agent pursuant to Section 204 hereof 
for the payment of Defaulted Interest. 
 
 “Standard & Poor’s” means Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw-
Hill Companies, Inc. 
 
 “State” means the state of Kansas. 
 
 “State Treasurer” means the duly elected Treasurer or, in the Treasurer’s absence, the duly 
appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the State. 
 
 “Stated Maturity” when used with respect to any Bond or any installment of interest thereon 
means the date specified in such Bond and this Resolution as the fixed date on which the principal of such 
Bond or such installment of interest is due and payable. 
 
 “Treasurer” means the duly appointed and/or elected Treasurer of the Board of Education or, in 
the Treasurer’s absence, the duly appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the Board of 
Education of the District. 
 
 “2010-A Principal and Interest Account” means the Principal and Interest Account for Unified 
School District No. 232, Johnson County, Kansas, General Obligation School Bonds, Series 2010-A 
created herein within the District’s Bond and Interest Fund. 
 
 “2010-A Project Account” means the 2010-A Project Account created herein within the 
District’s Capital Projects Fund. 
 
 “United States Government Obligations” means bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, 
treasury bills or other securities constituting direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and 
interest on which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to full and timely payment by, the United 
States of America, including evidences of a direct ownership interest in future interest or principal 
payment on obligations issued by the United States of America (including the interest component of  
obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation). 
 
 
 ARTICLE II 
 
 AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE BONDS 
 
 Section 201. Authorization of the Bonds.  There shall be issued and hereby are authorized 
and directed to be issued the General Obligation School Bonds, Series 2010-A, of the District in the 
principal amount of $27,000,000 for the purpose of providing funds to pay a portion of the cost of the 
Improvements. 
 
 Section 202. Description of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall consist of fully registered bonds in 
the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple and shall be numbered in such manner as the Bond 
Registrar shall determine.  All of the Bonds shall be dated January 15, 2010, shall become due in the 



 

 
-8- 

amounts on the Stated Maturities (subject to redemption and payment prior to their Stated Maturities as 
provided in Article III hereof), and shall bear interest at the rates per annum as follows: 
 

SERIAL BONDS 
 
Stated Maturity 

September 1 
Principal 
Amount 

Annual Rate 
of Interest 

 Stated Maturity 
September 1 

Principal 
Amount 

Annual Rate 
of Interest 

2011  $720,000   2024 $1,050,000  
2012 730,000   2025 1,090,000  
2013  745,000   2026 1,135,000  
2014 760,000   2027 1,185,000  
2015 780,000   2028 1,235,000  
2016 800,000   2029 1,290,000  
2017 820,000   2030 1,350,000  
2018 850,000   2031 1,410,000  
2019 875,000   2032 1,475,000  
2020 905,000   2033 1,545,000  
2021 940,000   2034 1,620,000  
2022 975,000   2035 1,705,000  
2023 1,010,000      

 
 The Bonds shall bear interest at the above specified rates (computed on the basis of a 360-day 
year of twelve 30-day months) from the later of the Dated Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date 
to which interest has been paid, payable on the Interest Payment Dates in the manner set forth in Section 
204 hereof. 
 
 Each of the Bonds, as originally issued or issued upon transfer, exchange or substitution, shall be 
typed or printed in accordance with the format required by the Attorney General of the State and shall be 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A or as may be required by the Attorney General 
pursuant to the Notice of Systems of Registration for Kansas Municipal Bonds, 2 Kan. Reg. 921 (1983), 
in accordance with the Kansas Bond Registration Law, K.S.A. 10-620 et seq. 
 
 Section 203. Designation of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar.  The Treasurer of the State 
of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas, is hereby designated as the Paying Agent for the payment of principal of and 
interest on the Bonds and Bond Registrar with respect to the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds.  
The President and Clerk of the District are hereby authorized and empowered to execute on behalf of the 
District an agreement with the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds. 
 
 The District will at all times maintain a Paying Agent and Bond Registrar meeting the 
qualifications herein described for the performance of the duties hereunder.  The District reserves the right 
to appoint a successor Paying Agent or Bond Registrar by (1) filing with the Paying Agent or Bond 
Registrar then performing such function a certified copy of the proceedings giving notice of the 
termination of such Paying Agent or Bond Registrar and appointing a successor, and (2) causing notice of 
appointment of the successor Paying Agent and Bond Registrar to be given by first class mail to each 
Owner.  No resignation or removal of the Paying Agent or Bond Registrar shall become effective until a 
successor has been appointed and has accepted the duties of Paying Agent or Bond Registrar. 
 
 Every Paying Agent or Bond Registrar appointed hereunder shall at all times meet the 
requirements of K.S.A. 10-501 et seq. and K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., respectively. 
 



 

 
-9- 

 Section 204. Method and Place of Payment of the Bonds.  The principal of or Redemption 
Price and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency which, on the respective dates of 
payment thereof, is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. 
 
 The principal or Redemption Price of each Bond shall be paid at Maturity to the Person in whose 
name such Bond is registered on the Bond Register at the Maturity thereof, by check, draft or electronic 
transfer (as provided in the next paragraph for the payment of interest) upon presentation and surrender of 
such Bond at the office of the Paying Agent. 
 
 The interest payable on each Bond on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the Owner of 
such Bond as shown on the Bond Register at the close of business on the Record Date for such interest (a) 
by check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to the address of such Owner shown on the Bond Register 
or (b) in the case of an interest payment to any Owner of $500,000 or more in aggregate principal amount 
of Bonds, by electronic transfer to such Owner upon written notice given to the Bond Registrar and 
signed by such Owner, not less than 15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest, containing the 
electronic transfer instructions including the bank (which shall be in the continental United States), 
address, ABA routing number and account number to which such Owner wishes to have such transfer 
directed. 
 
 Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, any Defaulted Interest with respect to 
any Bond shall cease to be payable to the Owner of such Bond on the relevant Record Date and shall be 
payable to the Owner in whose name such Bond is registered at the close of business on the Special 
Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which Special Record Date shall be fixed as 
hereinafter specified in this paragraph.  The District shall notify the Paying Agent in writing of the 
amount of Defaulted Interest proposed to be paid on each Bond and the date of the proposed payment 
(which date shall be at least 30 days after receipt of such notice by the Paying Agent) and shall deposit 
with the Paying Agent at the time of such notice an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount 
proposed to be paid in respect of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to the 
Paying Agent for such deposit prior to the date of the proposed payment.  Following receipt of such funds 
the Paying Agent shall fix a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest which shall 
be not more than 15 nor less than 10 days prior to the date of the proposed payment.  The Paying Agent 
shall promptly notify the District of such Special Record Date and, in the name and at the expense of the 
District, shall cause notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record 
Date therefor to be mailed, by first class mail, postage prepaid, to each Owner of a Bond entitled to such 
notice at the address of such Owner as it appears on the Bond Register not less than 10 days prior to such 
Special Record Date. 
 
 Section 205. Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds.  The District covenants that, as 
long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding, it will cause the Bond Register to be kept at the office of 
the Bond Registrar as herein provided.  Each Bond when issued shall be registered in the name of the 
Owner thereof on the Bond Register. 
 
 Bonds may be transferred and exchanged only on the Bond Register as provided in this Section.  
Upon surrender of any Bond at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, the Bond Registrar shall 
transfer or exchange such Bond for a new Bond or Bonds in any authorized denomination of the same 
Stated Maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount as the Bond that was presented for transfer or 
exchange.  
 
 Bonds presented for transfer or exchange shall be accompanied by a written instrument or 
instruments of transfer or authorization for exchange, in a form and with guarantee of signature 



 

 
-10- 

satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the Owner thereof or by the Owner’s duly authorized 
agent. 
 
 In all cases in which the privilege of transferring or exchanging Bonds is exercised, the Bond 
Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution.  The 
District shall pay the fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar for the registration, transfer and exchange 
of Bonds provided for by this Resolution and the cost of printing a reasonable supply of registered bond 
blanks.  Any additional costs or fees that might be incurred in the secondary market, other than fees of the 
Bond Registrar, are the responsibility of the Owners of the Bonds.  In the event any Owner fails to 
provide a correct taxpayer identification number to the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent may make a 
charge against such Owner sufficient to pay any governmental charge required to be paid as a result of  
such failure.  In compliance with Section 3406 of the Code, such amount may be deducted by the Paying 
Agent from amounts otherwise payable to such Owner hereunder or under the Bonds. 
 
 The District and the Bond Registrar shall not be required (a) to register the transfer or exchange 
of any Bond that has been called for redemption after notice of such redemption has been mailed by the 
Paying Agent pursuant to Section 303 hereof and during the period of 15 days next preceding the date of 
mailing of such notice of redemption; or (b) to register the transfer or exchange of any Bond during a 
period beginning at the opening of business on the day after receiving written notice from the District of 
its intent to pay Defaulted Interest and ending at the close of business on the date fixed for the payment of 
Defaulted Interest pursuant to Section 204 hereof. 
 
 The District and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose name any Bond is 
registered on the Bond Register as the absolute Owner of such Bond, whether such Bond is overdue or 
not, for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or Redemption Price of and 
interest on said Bond and for all other purposes.  All payments so made to any such Owner or upon the 
Owner’s order shall be valid and effective to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the 
extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the District nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any 
notice to the contrary. 
 
 At reasonable times and under reasonable regulations established by the Bond Registrar, the Bond 
Register may be inspected and copied by the Owners of 10% or more in principal amount of the Bonds 
then Outstanding or any designated representative of such Owners whose authority is evidenced to the 
satisfaction of the Bond Registrar. 
 
 Section 206. Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Bonds.  Each of the 
Bonds, including any Bonds issued in exchange or as substitutions for the Bonds initially delivered, shall 
be executed for and on behalf of the District by the manual or facsimile signature of the President, 
countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of the Treasurer, attested by the manual or  facsimile 
signature of the Clerk and the seal of the District shall be affixed thereto or imprinted thereon.  The 
President, Treasurer and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and execute the Bonds in the 
manner herein specified, and to cause the Bonds to be registered in the office of the  Clerk, which 
registration shall be evidenced by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk with the seal of the 
District affixed thereto or imprinted thereon.  The Bonds shall also be registered in the office of the State 
Treasurer, which registration shall be evidenced by the manual or facsimile signature of the State 
Treasurer with the seal of the State Treasurer affixed thereto or imprinted thereon.  In case any officer 
whose signature appears on any Bonds ceases to be such officer before the delivery of such Bonds, such 
signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, as if such person had remained in 
office until delivery.  Any Bond may be signed by such persons who at the actual time of the execution of 



 

 
-11- 

such Bond are the proper officers to sign such Bond although at the date of such Bond such persons may 
not have been such officers.   
 
 The Bonds shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A hereof, which shall be manually executed by the Bond Registrar or an 
authorized representative of the Bond Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same representative 
of the Bond Registrar sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds that may be issued 
hereunder at any one time.  No Bond shall be entitled to any security or benefit under this Resolution or 
be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless and until such certificate of authentication has been duly 
executed by the Bond Registrar.  Such executed certificate of authentication upon any Bond shall be 
conclusive evidence that such Bond has been duly authenticated and delivered under this Resolution.  
Upon authentication, the Bond Registrar shall deliver the Bonds to the Purchaser upon instructions of the 
District or its representative. 
 
 Section 207. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds.  If (a) any mutilated Bond is 
surrendered to the Bond Registrar or the Bond Registrar receives evidence to its satisfaction of the 
destruction, loss or theft of any Bond, and (b) there is delivered to the District and the Bond Registrar 
such security or indemnity as may be required by the Bond Registrar, then, in the absence of notice to the 
District or the Bond Registrar that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the District 
shall execute and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, in exchange for or in lieu of any such  
mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, a new Bond of the same Stated Maturity and of like tenor and 
principal amount. 
 
 If any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond has become or is about to become due and 
payable, the Bond Registrar, in its discretion, may pay such Bond instead of issuing a new Bond. 
 
 Upon the issuance of any new Bond under this Section, the District may require the payment by 
the Owner of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in 
relation thereto and any other expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent) connected 
therewith. 
 
 Every new Bond issued pursuant to this Section shall constitute a replacement of the prior 
obligation of the District, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution equally and ratably 
with all other Outstanding Bonds. 
 
 Section 208. Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment.  All Bonds that have 
been paid or redeemed or that otherwise have been surrendered to the Paying Agent, either at or before 
Maturity, shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent immediately upon the payment, redemption and 
surrender thereof to the Paying Agent and subsequently destroyed in accordance with the customary 
practices of the Paying Agent.  The Paying Agent shall execute a certificate in duplicate describing the 
Bonds so cancelled and destroyed and shall file an executed counterpart of such certificate with the 
District. 
 
 Section 209. Preliminary and Final Official Statement.  The Preliminary Official Statement 
prepared in connection with the Bonds, is hereby ratified and approved.  For the purpose of enabling the 
Purchaser to comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12(b)(1) of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission, the District hereby deems the information regarding the District contained in the 
Preliminary Official Statement to be “final” as of its date, except for the omission of such information as 
is permitted by Rule 15c2-12(b)(1), and the appropriate officers of the District are hereby authorized, if 
requested, to provide the Purchaser a letter or certification to such effect and to take such other actions or 



 

 
-12- 

execute such other documents as such officers in their reasonable judgment deem necessary to enable the 
Purchaser to comply with the requirement of such Rule. 
 
 The final Official Statement is hereby authorized to be prepared by supplementing, amending and 
completing the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes and additions thereto as are necessary 
to conform to and describe the transaction.  The President is hereby authorized to execute the final 
Official Statement as so supplemented, amended and completed, and the use and public distribution of the 
final Official Statement by the Purchaser in connection with the reoffering of the Bonds is hereby 
authorized.  The proper officials of the District are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a certificate 
pertaining to such Official Statement as prescribed therein, dated as of the date of payment for and 
delivery of the Bonds. 
 
 The District agrees to provide to the Purchaser within seven business days of the date of the sale 
of Bonds sufficient copies of the final Official Statement to enable the Purchaser to comply with the 
requirements of Rule 15c2-12(b)(4) of the Securities and Exchange Commission and with the 
requirements of Rule G-32 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 
 Section 210. Sale of the Bonds.  The sale of the Bonds to the Purchaser is hereby ratified and 
confirmed.  Delivery of the Bonds shall be made to the Purchaser as soon as practicable after the passage 
of this Resolution, upon payment of the Purchase Price. 
 
 Section 211. Book-Entry Bonds; Securities Depository. 
 
 (a) The Bonds shall initially be registered to Cede & Co., the nominee for the Securities 
Depository, and no Beneficial Owner will receive certificates representing their respective interests in the 
Bonds, except in the event the Bond Registrar issues Replacement Bonds as provided in subsection (b) 
hereof.  It is anticipated that during the term of the Bonds, the Securities Depository will make book-entry 
transfers among its Participants and receive and transmit payment of principal of, premium, if any, and 
interest on, the Bonds to the Participants until and unless the Bond Registrar authenticates and delivers 
Replacement Bonds to the Beneficial Owners as described in subsection (b). 
 
 (b) (1) If the District determines (A) that the Securities Depository is unable to properly 
discharge its responsibilities, or (B) that the Securities Depository is no longer qualified to act as a 
securities depository and registered clearing agency under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended, or (C) that the continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of any Bonds being issued 
to any Owner other than Cede & Co. is no longer in the best interests of the Beneficial Owners of the 
Bonds, or (2) if the Bond Registrar receives written notice from Participants having interests in not less 
than 50% of the Bonds Outstanding, as shown on the records of the Securities Depository (and certified to 
such effect by the Securities Depository), that the continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of 
any Bonds being issued to any Owner other than Cede & Co. is no longer in the best interests of the 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, then the Bond Registrar shall notify the Owners of such determination or 
such notice and of the availability of certificates to Owners requesting the same, and the Bond Registrar 
shall register in the name of and authenticate and deliver Replacement Bonds to the Beneficial Owners or 
their nominees in principal amounts representing the interest of each, making such adjustments as it may 
find necessary or appropriate as to accrued interest and previous calls for redemption; provided, that in 
the case of a determination under (1)(A) or (1)(B) of this subsection (b), the District, with the consent of 
the Bond Registrar, may select a successor securities depository in accordance with Section 211(c) hereof 
to effect book-entry transfers.  In such event, all references to the Securities Depository herein shall relate 
to the period of time when the Securities Depository has possession of at least one Bond.  Upon the 
issuance of Replacement Bonds, all references herein to obligations imposed upon or to be performed by 



 

 
-13- 

the Securities Depository shall be deemed to be imposed upon and performed by the Bond Registrar, to 
the extent applicable with respect to such Replacement Bonds.  If the Securities Depository resigns and 
the District, the Bond Registrar or Owners are unable to locate a qualified successor of the Securities 
Depository in accordance with Section 211(c) hereof, then the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and 
cause delivery of Replacement Bonds to Owners, as provided herein.  The Bond Registrar may rely on 
information from the Securities Depository and its Participants as to the names of the Beneficial Owners 
of the Bonds and shall not be responsible for any investigation to determine the Beneficial Owners.  The 
cost of printing, registration, authentication and delivery of Replacement Bonds shall be paid for by the 
District. 
 
 (c) In the event the Securities Depository resigns, is unable to properly discharge its 
responsibilities, or is no longer qualified to act as a securities depository and registered clearing agency 
under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the District may appoint a successor 
Securities Depository provided the Bond Registrar and the District receive written evidence with respect 
to the ability of the successor Securities Depository to discharge its responsibilities.  Any such successor 
Securities Depository shall be a securities depository which is a registered clearing agency under the 
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or other applicable statute or regulation that operates a 
securities depository upon reasonable and customary terms.  The Bond Registrar upon its receipt of a 
Bond or Bonds for cancellation shall cause the delivery of Bonds to the successor Securities Depository 
in appropriate denominations and form as provided herein. 
 
 
 ARTICLE III 
 
 REDEMPTION OF BONDS 
 
 Section 301. Optional Redemption.  At the option of the District, Bonds or portions thereof 
maturing on September 1, 2020, and thereafter may be called for redemption and payment prior to their 
Stated Maturity on March 1, 2020, and at any time thereafter, in whole or in part (selection of maturities 
and the amount of Bonds of each maturity to be redeemed to be determined by the District), at the 
Redemption Price of 100% (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount), plus accrued interest 
thereon to the Redemption Date. 
 
 [In addition to the foregoing optional redemption provisions, the Bonds will be subject to optional 
prepayment at any time, as a whole, at the redemption price of 100% (expressed as a percentage of the 
principal amount), plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, in the event that (1) a material adverse 
change has occurred to Section 54AA or 6431 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (as such Sections were 
added by Section 1531 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, pertaining to “Build 
America Bonds”) pursuant to which the District’s Build America Bond Interest Subsidy Payment from the 
United States Treasury is reduced or eliminated, or (2) substantial new condition(s) are placed on the receipt 
by the District of such Build America Bond Interest Subsidy Payment and such condition(s) are 
unacceptable to the District.] 
 
 Section 302. Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed.  Bonds shall be redeemed only in the 
principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  When less than all of the Bonds of the same 
maturity are to be redeemed and paid prior to their Stated Maturity, the Bonds to be redeemed shall be 
selected by the Bond Registrar in $5,000 units of principal amount in such equitable manner as the Bond 
Registrar may determine. 
 



 

 
-14- 

 In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds by lot when Bonds of denominations greater than 
$5,000 are then Outstanding, then for all purposes in connection with such redemption each $5,000 of 
face value shall be treated as though it were a separate Bond of the denomination of $5,000.  If it is 
determined that one or more, but not all, of the $5,000 units of face value represented by any Bond is 
selected for redemption, then upon notice of intention to redeem such $5,000 unit or units, the Owner or 
the Owner’s duly authorized agent shall forthwith present and surrender such Bond to the Bond Registrar: 
(1) for payment of the Redemption Price and interest to the Redemption Date of such $5,000 unit or units 
of face value called for redemption, and (2) for exchange, without charge to the Owner thereof, for a new 
Bond or Bonds of the aggregate principal amount of the unredeemed portion of the principal amount of 
such Bond.  If the Owner of any such Bond fails to present such Bond to the Paying Agent for payment 
and exchange as aforesaid, such Bond shall, nevertheless, become due and payable on the redemption 
date to the extent of the $5,000 unit or units of face value called for redemption (and to that extent only). 
 
 Section 303. Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption.  In the event the District desires to 
call the Bonds for redemption prior to maturity, written notice of such intent shall be provided to the Bond 
Registrar in accordance with K.S.A. 10-129, as amended, not less than 45 days prior to the Redemption 
Date.  The Bond Registrar shall call Bonds for redemption and payment and shall give notice of such 
redemption as herein provided upon receipt by the Bond Registrar at least 45 days prior to the 
Redemption Date of written instructions of the District specifying the principal amount, Stated Maturities, 
Redemption Date and Redemption Prices of the Bonds to be called for redemption.  If the Bonds are 
refunded more than 90 days in advance of such Redemption Date, any escrow agreement entered into by 
the District in connection with such refunding shall provide that such written instructions to the Paying 
Agent shall be given by the escrow agent on behalf of the District not more than 90 days prior to the 
Redemption Date.  The Paying Agent may in its discretion waive such notice period so long as the 
requirements for notices to the Owners set forth in this Section 303 are met. 
 
 Unless waived by any Owner of Bonds to be redeemed, the Bond Registrar shall give written 
notice of the redemption of said Bonds on a specified date, the same being described by maturity, said 
notice to be mailed by United States first class mail addressed to the Owners of said Bonds to be 
redeemed and to the Purchaser of the Bonds, each of said notices to be mailed not less than 30 days prior 
to the date fixed for redemption.  The District and Bond Registrar shall also give such additional notice as 
may be required by Kansas law or regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission in effect as of 
the date of such notice. 
 
 For so long as the Securities Depository is effecting book-entry transfers of the Bonds, the Bond 
Registrar shall provide the notices specified in this Section to the Securities Depository.  It is expected 
that the Securities Depository shall, in turn, notify its Participants and that the Participants, in turn, will 
notify or cause to be notified the Beneficial Owners.  Any failure on the part of the Securities Depository 
or a Participant, or failure on the part of a nominee of a Beneficial Owner of a Bond (having been mailed 
notice from the Bond Registrar, the Securities Depository, a Participant or otherwise) to notify the 
Beneficial Owner of the Bond so affected, shall not affect the validity of the redemption of such Bond. 
 
 All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall contain the following information: 
 
  (a) the Redemption Date; 
 
  (b) the Redemption Price; 
 



 

 
-15- 

  (c) if less than all Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the identification (and, in 
the case of partial redemption of any Bonds, the respective principal amounts) of the Bonds to be 
redeemed; 

 
  (d) a statement that on the Redemption Date the Redemption Price will become due 

and payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof called for redemption and that interest 
thereon shall cease to accrue from and after the Redemption Date; and 

 
  (e) the place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the Redemption 

Price, which shall be the principal office of the Paying Agent. 
 
 With respect to any notice given pursuant to this Section 303, the failure of any Owner to receive 
notice given as heretofore provided or any defect therein shall not invalidate any redemption. 
 
 Prior to any Redemption Date, the District shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount of 
money sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of all the Bonds or portions of Bonds that are to be 
redeemed on such Redemption Date. 
 
 Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds to 
be redeemed shall become due and payable on the Redemption Date, at the Redemption Price therein 
specified, and from and after the Redemption Date (unless the District defaults in the payment of the 
Redemption Price) such Bonds or portion of Bonds shall cease to bear interest.  Upon surrender of such 
Bonds for redemption in accordance with such notice, the Redemption Price of such Bonds shall be paid 
by the Paying Agent.  Installments of interest due on or prior to the Redemption Date shall be payable as 
herein provided for payment of interest.  Upon surrender for any partial redemption of any Bond, there 
shall be prepared for the Owner a new Bond or Bonds of the same Stated Maturity in the amount of the 
unpaid principal as provided herein.  All Bonds that have been surrendered for redemption shall be 
cancelled and destroyed by the Paying Agent as provided herein and shall not be reissued. 
 
 In addition to the foregoing, the District shall provide such notice of redemption as is required by 
the Continuing Disclosure Instructions.  The Bond Registrar and Paying Agent are also directed to comply 
with any mandatory standards then in effect for processing redemptions of municipal securities 
established by the State or the Securities and Exchange Commission.  Failure to comply with such 
standards shall not affect or invalidate the redemption of any Bond. 
 
 For so long as the Securities Depository is effecting book-entry transfers of the Bonds, the Paying 
Agent shall provide the notices specified in this Section to the Securities Depository.  It is expected that 
the Securities Depository shall, in turn, notify its Participants and that the Participants, in turn, will notify 
or cause to be notified the Beneficial Owners.  Any failure on the part of the Securities Depository or a 
Participant, or failure on the part of a nominee of a Beneficial Owner of a Bond (having been mailed 
notice from the Paying Agent, the Securities Depository, a Participant or otherwise) to notify the 
Beneficial Owner of the Bond so affected, shall not affect the validity of the redemption of such Bond. 
 

 
ARTICLE IV 

 
 SECURITY FOR AND PAYMENT OF BONDS 
 
 Section 401. Security for the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be general obligations of the District 
payable as to both principal and interest from ad valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as 



 

 
-16- 

to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of 
the District.  The full faith, credit and resources of the District are hereby irrevocably pledged for the 
prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same become due. 
 
 Section 402. Levy and Collection of Annual Tax.  The Board of Education of the District 
shall annually make provision for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same 
become due by levying and collecting the necessary taxes upon all of the taxable tangible property within 
the District in the manner provided by law. 
 
 The taxes referred to above shall be extended upon the tax rolls in each of the several years, 
respectively, and shall be levied and collected at the same time and in the same manner as the other ad 
valorem taxes of the District are levied and collected.  The proceeds derived from said taxes shall be 
deposited in the 2010-A Principal and Interest Account, shall be kept separate and apart from all other 
funds of the District and shall be used solely for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds 
as and when the same become due, taking into account any scheduled mandatory redemptions, and the 
fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent.  
 
 If at any time said taxes are not collected in time to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds 
when due, the Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to pay said principal or interest out of the 
general funds of the District and to reimburse said general funds for money so expended when said taxes 
are collected.  
 
 
 ARTICLE V 
 
 ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 
 DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF MONEYS 
 
 Section 501. Establishment of Funds and Accounts.  Simultaneously with the issuance of 
the Bonds, there shall be created within the treasury of the District the following funds and accounts: 
 
  (a) In the District’s Capital Projects Fund, the “2010-A Project Account;”  
 
  (b)     In the District’s Bond and Interest Fund, the “Principal and Interest Account for 

Unified School District No. 232, Johnson County, Kansas, General Obligation School Bonds, 
Series 2010-A” (the “2010-A Principal and Interest Account”); and 

 
  (c) The “Rebate Fund for Unified School District No. 232, Johnson County, Kansas, 

General Obligation School Bonds, Series 2010-A” (the “Rebate Fund”). 
 
 The Funds and Accounts established herein shall be administered in accordance with the 
provisions of this Resolution so long as the Bonds are Outstanding. 
 
 Section 502. Disposition of Bond Proceeds.  The proceeds of the Bonds, upon issuance and 
delivery thereof, shall be applied or deposited as follows: 
 
  (a) In the 2010-A Principal and Interest Account, a sum equal to the accrued interest 

received in payment for the Bonds. 
 
  (b) In the 2010-A Project Account, all remaining proceeds of the Bonds. 



 

 
-17- 

 
 Section 503. Withdrawals from the 2010-A Project Account. The Treasurer shall make 
withdrawals from the 2010-A Project Account solely for the purpose of (a) paying costs and expenses of 
the Improvements, including the Costs of Issuance; (b) paying interest on the Bonds during construction 
of the Improvements; and (c) transferring any amounts to the Rebate Fund as may be required by Section 
509 hereof.  Such withdrawals shall be made only on due authorization by the Board of Education. 
 
 Section 504. Surplus in the 2010-A Project Account.  All moneys remaining in the 2010-A 
Project Account after the completion of the Improvements, as determined by the Board of Education, 
shall be transferred immediately to the 2010-A Principal and Interest Account and applied to the next 
installment of interest due on the Bonds. 
 
 Section 505. Application of Moneys in 2010-A Principal and Interest Account.  All 
amounts paid and credited to the 2010-A Principal and Interest Account shall be expended and used by 
the District for the sole purpose of paying the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds 
as and when the same become due and the usual and customary fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar 
and Paying Agent; provided, however, that proceeds of the Bonds (other than accrued interest) deposited 
into said account pursuant to Section 502(a) hereof and interest earned on investment of moneys in the 
2010-A Project Account that are deposited into said Account pursuant to Section 506 hereof shall be used 
solely to pay interest on the Bonds.  The Treasurer is authorized and directed to withdraw from the 2010-
A Principal and Interest Account sums sufficient to pay both principal or Redemption Price of and interest 
on the Bonds and the fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent as and when the same 
become due, and to forward such sums to the Paying Agent in such manner and at such times as are 
agreed to by the District and the Paying Agent.  If, through the lapse of time or otherwise, the Owners of 
Bonds are no longer entitled to enforce payment of the Bonds or the interest thereon, the Paying Agent 
shall return said funds to the District.  All moneys deposited with the Paying Agent shall be deemed to be 
deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the provisions contained in this Resolution and shall be 
held in trust by the Paying Agent for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds entitled to payment from 
such moneys.  
 
 Any moneys or investments remaining in the 2010-A Principal and Interest Account after the 
retirement of the indebtedness for which the Bonds were issued shall be transferred and paid into the 
Bond and Interest Fund of the District. 
 
 Section 506. Deposits and Investment of Moneys.  Moneys in each of the Funds and 
Accounts shall be deposited in a bank or banks or federal or state chartered savings and loan 
association(s) with home offices located in the District, which are members of the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation.  All such deposits shall be continuously and adequately secured by the financial 
institutions holding such deposits as provided by the laws of the State.  All moneys held in the Funds and 
Accounts shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the District so that there shall be no 
commingling of such funds with any other funds of the District.   
 
 Moneys held in the Funds and Accounts may be invested by the District in Permitted Investments 
or in other investments allowed by Kansas law in such amounts and maturing at such times as shall 
reasonably provide for moneys to be available when required in said accounts or funds; provided, 
however, that no such investment shall be made for a period extending longer than to the date when the 
moneys invested may be needed for the purpose for which such fund or account was created.  All interest 
on any Permitted Investment held in any fund or account shall accrue to and become a part of such fund 
or account; provided, however, that interest earned on investments of moneys held in the Project Account 
may, at the direction of the Board of Education, be paid and credited to the 2010-A Principal and Interest 



 

 
-18- 

Account and used to pay interest on the Bonds.  In determining the amount held in any fund or account 
under the provisions of the Resolution, Permitted Investments shall be valued at their principal par value 
or at their then redemption value, whichever is lower. 
 
 The staff of the District is hereby authorized to receive bids for the investment of the Bond 
proceeds for the time prior to when the proceeds will be needed by the District.  The President is hereby 
authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the District any and all agreements and instruments relating 
to the investment of the Bond proceeds.  The President, Clerk, Treasurer and other officials of the District 
are hereby further authorized and directed to execute any and all other documents and take such actions as 
they shall deem necessary to carry out the investment of the Bond proceeds, and the taking of such action 
shall be conclusive evidence of such necessity. 
 
 Section 507. Nonpresentment of Bonds.  If any Bond is not presented for payment when the 
principal thereof becomes due at Maturity, if funds sufficient to pay such Bond have been made available 
to the Paying Agent all liability of the District to the Owner thereof for the payment of such Bond shall 
forthwith cease, determine and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the duty of the Paying 
Agent to hold such funds, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Owner of such Bond, 
who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part 
under this Resolution or on, or with respect to, said Bond.  If any Bond is not presented for payment 
within four years following the date when such Bond becomes due at Maturity, the Paying Agent shall 
repay to the District the funds, without liability for interest thereon, theretofore held by it for payment of 
such Bond, and such Bond shall, subject to the defense of any applicable statute of limitation, thereafter 
be an unsecured obligation of the District, and the Owner thereof shall be entitled to look only to the 
District for payment, and then only to the extent of the amount so repaid to it by the Paying Agent, and 
the District shall not be liable for any interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee of such 
money. 
 
 Section 508. Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays, and Holidays.  In any case where a 
Bond Payment Date is not a Business Day, then payment of principal, Redemption Price or interest need 
not be made on such Bond Payment Date but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day with the 
same force and effect as if made on such Bond Payment Date, and no interest shall accrue for the period 
after such Bond Payment Date. 
 

Section 509.  Application of Moneys in the Rebate Fund. 
 

(a) There shall be deposited in the Rebate Fund such amounts as are required to be deposited 
therein pursuant to the Federal Tax Certificate.  All money at any time deposited in the 
Rebate Fund shall be held in trust, to the extent required to satisfy the Rebate Amount (as 
defined in the Federal Tax Certificate), for payment to the United States of America, and 
neither the District nor the Registered Owner of any Bonds shall have any rights in or 
claim to such money.  All amounts deposited into or on deposit in the Rebate Fund shall 
be governed by this Section and the Federal Tax Certificate. 

 
(b) The District shall periodically determine the rebatable arbitrage under Section 148(f) of 

the Code in accordance with the Federal Tax Certificate, and the District shall make 
payments to the United States of America at the times and in the amounts determined 
under the Federal Tax Certificate.  Any moneys remaining in the Rebate Fund after 
redemption and payment of all of the Bonds and payment and satisfaction of any Rebate 
Amount, or provision made therefor, shall be released to the District. 

 



 

 
-19- 

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution, including in particular Article 
VII hereof, the obligation to pay rebatable arbitrage to the United States and to comply 
with all other requirements of this Section and the Federal Tax Certificate shall survive 
the defeasance or payment in full of the Bonds. 

 
(d) The Federal Tax Certificate may be amended or replaced in accordance with the 

provisions thereof. 
 

 
 ARTICLE VI 
 
 DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 
 Section 601. Remedies.  The provisions of the Resolution, including the covenants and 
agreements herein contained, shall constitute a contract between the District and the Owners of the 
Bonds.  If an Event of Default occurs and shall be continuing, the Owner or Owners of not less than 10% 
in principal amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding shall have the right for the equal benefit and 
protection of all Owners of Bonds similarly situated: 
 
  (a) by mandamus or other suit, action or proceedings at law or in equity to enforce 

the rights of such Owner or Owners against the District and its officers, agents and employees, 
and to require and compel duties and obligations required by the provisions of the Resolution or 
by the Constitution and laws of the State; 

 
  (b) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to require the District, its 

officers, agents and employees to account as if they were the trustees of an express trust; and 
 
  (c) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to enjoin any acts or things 

which may be unlawful or in violation of the rights of the Owners of the Bonds. 
 
 Section 602. Limitation on Rights of Owners.  The covenants and agreements of the District 
contained herein and in the Bonds shall be for the equal benefit, protection, and security of the Owners of 
any or all of the Bonds, all of which Bonds shall be of equal rank and without preference or priority of 
one Bond over any other Bond in the application of the funds herein pledged to the payment of the 
principal of and the interest on the Bonds, or otherwise, except as to rate of interest, date of maturity and 
right of prior redemption as provided in this Resolution.  No one or more Owners secured hereby shall 
have any right in any manner whatever by his or their action to affect, disturb or prejudice the security 
granted and provided for herein, or to enforce any right hereunder, except in the manner herein provided, 
and all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained for the equal benefit of all 
Outstanding Bonds. 
 
 Section 603. Remedies Cumulative.  No remedy conferred herein upon the Owners is 
intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each such remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to 
every other remedy and may be exercised without exhausting and without regard to any other remedy 
conferred herein.  No waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Owner of any Bond shall 
extend to or affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or shall impair any rights or 
remedies thereon.  No delay or omission of any Owner to exercise any right or power accruing upon any 
default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or 
acquiescence therein.  Every substantive right and every remedy conferred upon the Owners of the Bonds 
by this Resolution may be enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed 



 

 
-20- 

expedient.  If action or proceedings taken by any Owner on account of any default or to enforce any right 
or exercise any remedy has been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined 
adversely to such Owner, then, and in every such case, the District and the Owners of the Bonds shall be 
restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, and all rights, remedies, powers and 
duties of the Owners shall continue as if no such suit, action or other proceedings had been brought or 
taken. 
 
 
 ARTICLE VII 
 
 DEFEASANCE 
 
 Section 701. Defeasance.  When any or all of the Bonds or scheduled interest payments 
thereon have been paid and discharged, then the requirements contained in this Resolution and the pledge 
of the District’s faith and credit hereunder and all other rights granted hereby shall terminate with respect 
to the Bonds or scheduled interest payments thereon so paid and discharged.  Bonds or scheduled interest 
payments thereon shall be deemed to have been paid and discharged within the meaning of this 
Resolution if there has been deposited with the Paying Agent, or a commercial bank or trust company 
located in the State and having full trust powers, at or prior to the Stated Maturity or Redemption Date of 
said Bonds or the interest payments thereon, in trust for and irrevocably appropriated thereto, moneys 
and/or Defeasance Obligations which, together with the interest to be earned on any such Defeasance 
Obligations, will be sufficient for the payment of the principal of said Bonds and/or interest accrued to the 
Stated Maturity or Redemption Date, or if default in such payment has occurred on such date, then to the 
date of the tender of such payments; provided, however, that if any such Bonds are to be redeemed prior 
to their Stated Maturity, (1) the District has elected to redeem such Bonds, and (2) either notice of such 
redemption has been given, or the District has given irrevocable instructions, or shall have provided for an 
escrow agent to give irrevocable instructions, to the Bond Registrar to give such notice of redemption in 
compliance with Section 303 of this Resolution.  Any money and Defeasance Obligations that at any time 
shall be deposited with the Paying Agent or such commercial bank or trust company by or on behalf of 
the District, for the purpose of paying and discharging any of the Bonds, shall be and are hereby assigned, 
transferred and set over to the Paying Agent or such bank or trust company in trust for the respective 
Owners of the Bonds, and such moneys shall be and are hereby irrevocably appropriated to the payment 
and discharge thereof.  All money and Defeasance Obligations deposited with the Paying Agent or such 
bank or trust company shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the 
provisions of this Resolution. 
 
 
 ARTICLE VIII 
 
 TAX COVENANTS 
 
 Section 801. General Covenants. 
 
 (a) The District covenants and agrees that (1) it will comply with all applicable provisions of 
the Code, including Sections 103 and 141 through 150, necessary to maintain the exclusion from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes of the interest on the Bonds and (2) it will not use or permit the 
use of any proceeds of Bonds or any other funds of the District, will not take or permit any other action, 
or fail to take any action, if any such action or failure to take action would adversely affect the exclusion 
from gross income of the interest on the Bonds.  The District will, in addition, adopt such other 
ordinances or resolutions and take such other actions as may be necessary to comply with the Code and 



 

 
-21- 

with all other applicable future laws, regulations, published rulings and judicial decisions, in order to 
ensure that the interest on the Bonds will remain excluded from federal gross income, to the extent any 
such actions can be taken by the District. 
 
 (b) The District covenants and agrees that (1) it will use the proceeds of the Bonds as soon as 
practicable and with all reasonable dispatch for the purposes for which the Bonds are issued, and (2) it 
will not invest or directly or indirectly use or permit the use of any proceeds of the Bonds or any other 
funds of the District in any manner, or take or omit to take any action, that would cause the Bonds to be 
“arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148(a) of the Code. 
 

(c) The District covenants and agrees that it will pay or provide for the payment from time to 
time of all rebatable arbitrage to the United States pursuant to Section 148(f) of the Code and the Federal 
Tax Certificate.  This covenant shall survive payment in full or defeasance of the Bonds.  The Federal Tax 
Certificate may be amended or replaced if, in the opinion of Bond Counsel nationally recognized on the 
subject of municipal bonds, such amendment or replacement will not adversely affect the exclusion from 
federal gross income of the interest on the Bonds. 
 
 (d) The District covenants and agrees that it has not and will not use any portion of the 
proceeds of the Temporary Notes, including any investment income earned on such proceeds, directly or 
indirectly, in a manner that would cause any Bond to be a “private activity bond” within the meaning of 
Section 141 of the Code. 
 
 (e) The District will not enter into or renew any “management contract” (defined below) 
with any person, other than a governmental unit, without first obtaining an opinion of Bond counsel that 
such management contract will not adversely affect the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes.  The term “management contract” is defined in Regulation 
§1.141-3(b) of the Code as a management, service, or incentive payment contract with an entity that 
provides services involving all or a portion of any function of the Improvements, such as a contract to 
manage the entire Improvements or a portion of the Improvements.  Contracts for services that are solely 
incidental to the primary governmental function of the Improvements (for example, contracts for 
janitorial, office equipment repair, billing or similar services) are not treated as management contracts. 
 
 (f) Other than pursuant to part (d) above, the District will not enter into or renew a lease of 
all or any portion of the Improvements (disregarding portions used by members of the general public who 
occupy such Improvements on a short-term basis in the ordinary course of the District’s business) with 
any tenant that is not a governmental unit, without first obtaining an opinion of Bond Counsel that such 
lease will not adversely affect the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes. 
 
 [(g) The District hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with all applicable 
provisions of the Code necessary to maintain the election made in Section 803 hereof that the Bonds will 
qualify as Build America Bonds and it will not use or permit the use of any proceeds of the Bonds or any 
other funds of the District, will not take or permit any other action, or fail to take any action, if any such 
action or failure to take action would adversely effect such election.] 
 
 Section 802. Rebate Covenant.  The District covenants and agrees that it will pay or provide 
for the payment from time to time of all amounts required to be rebated to the United States pursuant to 
Section 148(f) of the Code and the Federal Tax Certificate.  This covenant shall survive payment in full or 
defeasance of the Bonds. The Federal Tax Certificate may be amended or replaced if, in the opinion of 
Bond Counsel, such amendment or replacement will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income 



 

 
-22- 

for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Bonds [the qualification of the Bonds as Build America 
Bonds]. 
 
 [Section 803. Election of Bonds as Build America Bonds.  The District hereby irrevocably 
elects under Code § 54AA(d) to treat the Bonds as “Build America Bonds” and elects under Code 
§ 54AA(g)(2) to treat the Bonds as “qualified bonds,” eligible for interest subsidy payments from the 
United States.  In addition, the District hereby represents that: 
 
 (a) The Bonds are “Build America Bonds” as defined in Code § 54AA(d); 
 
 (b) The Bonds will be issued prior to January 1, 2011; and 
 
 (c) One-hundred percent of the sale proceeds of the Bonds, less not more than 2% of sale 
proceeds used to pay Costs of Issuance, plus investment proceeds on those proceeds, will be used for 
capital expenditures on the Improvements. 
 
 The President and/or Treasurer are hereby authorized to take such other action as may be 
necessary to make effective the election contained in this Section.] 
 
 Section 804. Survival of Covenants.  The covenants contained in this Article shall remain in 
full force and effect notwithstanding the defeasance of the Bonds pursuant to Article VII hereof or any 
other provision of this Resolution until the final maturity date of all Bonds Outstanding. 
 
 
 ARTICLE IX 
 
 CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 Section 901. Disclosure Requirements.  The District hereby covenants with the Purchaser 
and the Beneficial Owners (as defined in the Continuing Disclosure Instructions) to provide and 
disseminate such information as is required by Rule 15c2-12 (as defined in the Continuing Disclosure 
Instructions) and is further set forth in the Continuing Disclosure Instructions.  Such covenant shall be for 
the benefit of and enforceable by the Purchaser and such Beneficial Owners. 
 
 Section 902. Failure to Comply with Continuing Disclosure Requirements.  In the event 
the District fails to comply in a timely manner with its covenants contained in the preceding section, the 
Purchaser and/or any such Beneficial Owner may make demand for such compliance by written notice to 
the District.  In the event the District does not remedy such noncompliance within 10 days of receipt of 
such written notice, the Purchaser or any such Beneficial Owner may in its discretion, without notice or 
demand, proceed to enforce compliance by a suit or suits in equity for the specific performance of such 
covenant or agreement contained in the preceding section or for the enforcement of any other appropriate 
legal or equitable remedy as the Purchaser and/or any such Beneficial Owner shall deem effectual to 
protect and enforce any of the duties of the District under such preceding section.  Failure to comply with 
the Instructions will not constitute a default or an event of default under this Resolution. 
 
 



 

 
-23- 

 ARTICLE X 
 
 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
 Section 1001. Annual Audit.  Annually, promptly after the end of the Fiscal Year, the District 
will cause an audit to be made of its Funds and Accounts for the preceding Fiscal Year by a certified 
public accountant or firm of certified public accountants. 
 
 Within 30 days after the completion of each such audit, a copy thereof shall be filed in the office 
of the Clerk, and a duplicate copy of the audit shall be mailed to the Purchaser.  Such audit shall at all 
times during the usual business hours be open to the examination and inspection by any taxpayer, any 
Owner of any of the Bonds, or by anyone acting for or on behalf of such taxpayer or Owner.  Upon 
payment of the reasonable cost of preparing and mailing the same, a copy of any annual audit will, upon 
request, be sent to any Owner or prospective Owner. 
 
 As soon as possible after the completion of the annual audit, the Board of Education of the 
District shall review such audit, and if the audit discloses that proper provision has not been made for all 
of the requirements of this Resolution, the District shall promptly cure such deficiency. 
 
 Section 1002. Amendments.  The rights and duties of the District and the Owners, and the 
terms and provisions of the Bonds or of this Resolution, may be amended or modified at any time in any 
respect by resolution of the District with the written consent of the Owners of not less than a majority in 
principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, such consent to be evidenced by an instrument or 
instruments executed by such Owners and duly acknowledged or proved in the manner of a deed to be 
recorded, and such instrument or instruments shall be filed with the Clerk, but no such modification or 
alteration shall:  
 
  (a) extend the maturity of any payment of principal or interest due upon any Bond;  
 
  (b) effect a reduction in the amount which the District is required to pay as principal 

of or interest on any Bond;  
 
  (c) permit preference or priority of any Bond over any other Bond; or 
 
  (d) reduce the percentage in principal amount of Bonds required for the written 

consent to any modification or alteration of the provisions of this Resolution.  
 
 Any provision of the Bonds or of this Resolution may, however, be amended or modified by 
resolution duly adopted by the Board of Education of the District at any time in any legal respect with the 
written consent of the Owners of all of the Bonds at the time Outstanding.  
 
 Without notice to or the consent of any Owners, the District may amend or supplement this 
Resolution for any one or more of the following purposes:  (i) curing any formal defect, omission, 
inconsistency or ambiguity therein or in connection with any other change therein which is not materially 
adverse to the interests of the Owners; (ii) conferring upon the Owners any additional rights, remedies, 
powers or authority that may be granted to or conferred upon the Owners; (iii) conforming the Resolution 
to the Code or future applicable federal law or regulations concerning tax-exempt obligations [taxable 
Build America Bonds]; or (iv) making any other change which is not materially adverse to the interests of 
the Owners. 
 



 

 
-24- 

 Every amendment or modification of the provisions of the Bonds or of this Resolution, to which 
the written consent of the Owners is given, as above provided, shall be expressed in a resolution adopted 
by the Board of Education of the District amending or supplementing the provisions of this Resolution 
and shall be deemed to be a part of this Resolution.  A certified copy of every such amendatory or 
supplemental resolution, if any, and a certified copy of this Resolution shall always be kept on file in the 
office of the Clerk, and shall be made available for inspection by the Owner of any Bond or a prospective 
purchaser or owner of any Bond authorized by this Resolution, and upon payment of the reasonable cost 
of preparing the same, a certified copy of any such amendatory or supplemental resolution or of this 
Resolution will be sent by the Clerk to any such Owner or prospective Owner. 
 
 Any and all modifications made in the manner hereinabove provided shall not become effective 
until there has been filed with the Clerk a copy of the resolution of the District hereinabove provided for, 
duly certified, as well as proof of any required consent to such modification by the Owners of the Bonds 
then Outstanding.  It shall not be necessary to note on any of the Outstanding Bonds any reference to such 
amendment or modification.  
 
 The District shall furnish to the Paying Agent a copy of any amendment to the Bonds or this 
Resolution which affects the duties or obligations of the Paying Agent under this Resolution. 
 
 Section 1003. Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by Owners.  Any notice, consent, 
request, direction, approval or other instrument to be signed and executed by the Owners may be in any 
number of concurrent writings of similar tenor and may be signed or executed by such Owners in person 
or by agent appointed in writing.  Proof of the execution of any such instrument or of the writing 
appointing any such agent and of the ownership of Bonds, if made in the following manner, shall be 
sufficient for any of the purposes of this Resolution, and shall be conclusive in favor of the District and 
the Paying Agent with regard to any action taken, suffered or omitted under any such instrument, namely: 
 
  (a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such instrument may be 

proved by a certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to take 
acknowledgments within such jurisdiction that the person signing such instrument acknowledged 
before such officer the execution thereof, or by affidavit of any witness to such execution. 

 
  (b) The fact of ownership of Bonds, the amount or amounts, numbers and other 

identification of Bonds, and the date of holding the same shall be proved by the Bond Register. 
 
 In determining whether the Owners of the requisite principal amount of Bonds Outstanding have 
given any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver under this Resolution, 
Bonds owned by the District shall be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding under this 
Resolution, except that, in determining whether the Owners shall be protected in relying upon any such 
request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver, only Bonds which the Owners know 
to be so owned shall be so disregarded.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Bonds so owned which have been 
pledged in good faith shall not be disregarded as aforesaid if the pledgee establishes to the satisfaction of 
the Owners the pledgee’s right so to act with respect to such Bonds and that the pledgee is not the District. 
 
 Section 1004. Notices.  Any notice, request, complaint, demand or other communication required 
or desired to be given or filed under this Bond Resolution shall be in writing, given to the Notice 
Representative at the Notice Address and shall be deemed duly given or filed if the same shall be:  (a) duly 
mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid; or (b) communicated via fax, with electronic or 
telephonic confirmation of receipt.  Copies of such notices shall also be given to the Paying Agent.  The 
District, the Paying Agent and the Purchaser may from time to time designate, by notice given hereunder to 



 

 
-25- 

the others of such parties, such other address to which subsequent notices, certificates or other 
communications shall be sent. 
 
 All notices given by:  (a) certified or registered mail as aforesaid shall be deemed duly given as of 
the date they are so mailed; (b) fax as aforesaid shall be deemed duly given as of the date of confirmation of 
receipt.  If, because of the temporary or permanent suspension of regular mail service or for any other 
reason, it is impossible or impractical to mail any notice in the manner herein provided, then such other form 
of notice as shall be made with the approval of the Paying Agent shall constitute a sufficient notice. 
 
 Section 1005. Electronic Transactions.  The issuance of the Bonds and the transactions related 
thereto and described herein may be conducted and documents may be stored by electronic means. 
 
 Section 1006. Further Authority.  The officers and officials of the District, including the 
President, Clerk and Treasurer, are hereby authorized and directed to execute all documents and take such 
actions as they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of this 
Resolution and to make ministerial alterations, changes or additions in the foregoing agreements, 
statements, instruments and other documents herein approved, authorized and confirmed which they may 
approve, and the execution or taking of such action shall be conclusive evidence of such necessity or 
advisability. 
 
 Section 1007. Severability.  If any section or other part of this Resolution, whether large or 
small, is for any reason held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect the validity of the other 
provisions of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 1008. Governing Law.  This Resolution shall be governed exclusively by and 
construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State. 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



 

S-1 

 Section 1009. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and 
after its passage by the Board of Education of the District. 
 
 PASSED by the Board of Education of the District on January 11, 2010. 
 
 
(SEAL)             
       President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bond Resolution 



 

S-2 

 CERTIFICATE 
 
 I, the undersigned, hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the 
Resolution of Unified School District No. 232, Johnson County, Kansas, passed by the Board of 
Education on January 11, 2010 as the same appears of record in my office, and that the Resolution has not 
been modified, amended or repealed and is in full force and effect as of this date. 
 
 DATED:  January 11, 2010. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)       _______________________________________ 
       Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bond Resolution 
 



 

  
 A-1 

 EXHIBIT A 
 (FORM OF BONDS) 
 
 EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THE RESOLUTION (DESCRIBED 

HEREIN), THIS BOND MAY BE TRANSFERRED, IN WHOLE BUT NOT IN 
PART, ONLY TO ANOTHER NOMINEE OF THE SECURITIES DEPOSITORY 
(DESCRIBED HEREIN) OR TO A SUCCESSOR SECURITIES DEPOSITORY 
OR TO A NOMINEE OF A SUCCESSOR SECURITIES DEPOSITORY. 

 
REGISTERED REGISTERED 
NUMBER _____ $___________ 
 
 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 STATE OF KANSAS 
 UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 232, 

JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS 
 [TAXABLE] GENERAL OBLIGATION SCHOOL BONDS 

[(BUILD AMERICA BONDS – DIRECT PAY)] 
 SERIES 2010-A 
 
 Interest Rate Maturity Date Dated Date CUSIP 
 
  September 1, ____ January 15, 2010  
 
REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO. 
 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:  
 
 KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  That Unified School District No. 232, 
Johnson County, in the State of Kansas (the “District”), for value received, hereby acknowledges itself to 
be indebted and promises to pay to the Registered Owner shown above, or registered assigns, the 
Principal Amount shown above on the Maturity Date shown above, unless called for redemption prior to 
said Maturity Date, and to pay interest thereon at the Interest Rate per annum shown above (computed on 
the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months), from the Dated Date shown above or from the most 
recent date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, payable semiannually on March 1 and 
September 1 of each year, commencing September 1, 2010 (the “Interest Payment Dates”), until the 
Principal Amount has been paid. 
 
 The principal or redemption price of this Bond shall be paid at maturity or upon earlier 
redemption to the person in whose name this Bond is registered at the maturity or redemption date thereof 
by check, draft, or electronic transfer (as hereinafter provided for the payment of interest), upon 
presentation and surrender of this Bond at the principal office of the Treasurer of the State of Kansas, 
Topeka, Kansas (the “Paying Agent” and “Bond Registrar”).  The interest payable on this Bond on any 
Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the person in whose name this Bond is registered on the 
registration books maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date(s) for 
such interest, which shall be the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month next 
preceding the Interest Payment Date.  Such interest shall be payable by check or draft mailed by the 
Paying Agent to the address of such Owner shown on the Bond Register or, in the case of an interest 
payment to any Owner of $500,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds, by electronic 



 

  
 A-2 

transfer to such Owner upon written notice given to the Bond Registrar and signed by such Owner, not 
less than 15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest, containing the electronic transfer instructions 
including the bank (which shall be in the continental United States), address, ABA routing number and 
account number to which such Registered Owner wishes to have such transfer directed.  The principal or 
redemption price of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency that, on the 
respective dates of payment thereof, is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. 
 
 This Bond is one of an authorized series of Bonds of the District designated “[Taxable] General 
Obligation School Bonds [(Build America Bonds – Direct Pay)], Series 2010-A,” aggregating the 
principal amount of $27,000,000 (the “Bonds”) issued for the purposes set forth in the Resolution of the 
District authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (the “Resolution”).  The Bonds are issued by the authority 
of and in full compliance with the provisions, restrictions and limitations of the Constitution and laws of 
the State of Kansas, including  K.S.A. 10-101 to 10-132, inclusive, K.S.A. 72-6761, K.S.A. 75-2315 et. 
seq., as amended, and all other provisions of the laws of the State of Kansas applicable thereto.   
 
 The Bonds constitute general obligations of the District payable as to both principal and interest 
from ad valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable 
tangible property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of the District.  The full faith, credit and 
resources of the District are hereby pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond 
and the issue of which it is a part as the same respectively become due. 
 
 At the option of the District, Bonds or portions thereof maturing on September 1, 2020, and 
thereafter, may be called for redemption and payment prior to maturity on March 1, 2020, and at any time 
thereafter, in whole or in part (selection of maturities and the amount of the Bonds of each maturity to be 
redeemed to be determined by the District), at the Redemption Price of 100% (expressed as a percentage 
of the principal amount), plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption. 
 
 [In addition to the foregoing optional redemption provisions, the Bonds will be subject to optional 
prepayment at any time, as a whole, at the redemption price of 100% (expressed as a percentage of the 
principal amount), plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, in the event that (1) a material adverse 
change has occurred to Section 54AA or 6431 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (as such Sections were 
added by Section 1531 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, pertaining to “Build 
America Bonds”) pursuant to which the District’s Build America Bond Interest Subsidy Payment from the 
United States Treasury is reduced or eliminated, or (2) substantial new condition(s) are placed on the receipt 
by the District of such Build America Bond Interest Subsidy Payment and such condition(s) are 
unacceptable to the District.] 
 
 Whenever the Bond Registrar is to select Bonds for the purpose of redemption, it shall, in the 
case of Bonds in denominations greater than $5,000, if less than all of the Bonds then outstanding are to 
be called for redemption, treat each $5,000 of face value of each such Bond as though it were a separate 
Bond in the denomination of $5,000. 
 
 If any Bonds are called for redemption and payment prior to maturity, the District shall cause the 
Bond Registrar to give written notice of its intention to call and pay such Bonds on a specified date, the 
same being described by maturity, said notice to be mailed by United States first class mail addressed  to 
the Original Purchaser of the Bonds and to the registered owners of said Bonds to be redeemed, each of 
said notices to be mailed not less than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption.  Notice of 
redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall, on the 
redemption date, become due and payable at the redemption price therein specified, and from and after 



 

  
 A-3 

such date (unless the District defaults in the payment of the redemption price) such Bonds or portions of 
Bonds shall cease to bear interest. 
 
 The Bonds are being issued by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of 
bond certificates to be made except as provided in the Resolution.  One Bond certificate with respect to 
each date on which the Bonds are stated to mature, registered in the nominee name of the Securities 
Depository, is being issued and required to be deposited with the Securities Depository and immobilized 
in its custody.  The book-entry system will evidence positions held in the Bonds by the Securities 
Depository’s participants, beneficial ownership of the Bonds in authorized denominations being 
evidenced in the records of such participants.  Transfers of ownership shall be effected on the records of 
the Securities Depository and its participants pursuant to rules and procedures established by the 
Securities Depository and its participants.  The District, the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent will 
recognize the Securities Depository nominee, while the registered owner of this Bond, as the owner of 
this Bond for all purposes, including (i) payments of principal of, and redemption premium, if any, and 
interest on, this Bond, (ii) notices and (iii) voting.  Transfers of principal, interest and any redemption 
premium payments to participants of the Securities Depository, and transfers of principal, interest and any 
redemption premium payments to beneficial owners of the Bonds by participants of the Securities 
Depository will be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of such beneficial owners.  
The District, the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent will not be responsible or liable for such transfers 
of payments or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing the records maintained by the Securities 
Depository, the Securities Depository nominee, its participants or persons acting through such 
participants.  While the Securities Depository nominee is the owner of this Bond, notwithstanding the 
provision hereinabove contained, payments of principal of and interest on this Bond shall be made in 
accordance with existing arrangements among the District, the Bond Registrar and the Securities 
Depository.   
 
 EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THE RESOLUTION, THIS BOND MAY BE 
TRANSFERRED, IN WHOLE BUT NOT IN PART, ONLY TO ANOTHER NOMINEE OF THE 
SECURITIES DEPOSITORY OR TO A SUCCESSOR SECURITIES DEPOSITORY OR TO A 
NOMINEE OF A SUCCESSOR SECURITIES DEPOSITORY.  The Bonds are issued in fully 
registered form in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  This Bond may be 
exchanged at the office of the Bond Registrar for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same 
maturity of other authorized denominations upon the terms provided in the Resolution. 
 
 The District and the Bond Registrar may deem and treat the registered owner hereof as the 
absolute owner hereof for purposes of receiving payment of or on account of principal hereof and interest 
due hereon and for all other purposes and neither the District nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by 
any notice to the contrary. 
 
 This Bond is transferable by the registered owner hereof in person or by the registered owner’s 
agent duly authorized in writing, at the office of the Bond Registrar, but only in the manner, subject to the 
limitations and upon payment of the charges provided in the Resolution and upon surrender and 
cancellation of this Bond.  The District shall pay all costs incurred in connection with the issuance, 
payment and initial registration of the Bonds and the cost of a reasonable supply of bond blanks. 
 
 This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any security 
or benefit under the hereinafter defined Resolution until the Certificate of Authentication and Registration 
hereon shall have been lawfully executed by the Bond Registrar. 
 



 

  
 A-4 

 IT IS HEREBY DECLARED AND CERTIFIED that all acts, conditions, and things required 
to be done and to exist precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond have been properly done and 
performed and do exist in due and regular form and manner as required by the Constitution and laws of 
the State of Kansas, and that the total indebtedness of the District, including this series of bonds, does not 
exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District has caused this Bond to be executed by the manual or 
facsimile signature of its President, countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of its Treasurer 
and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Clerk, and its seal to be affixed hereto or imprinted 
hereon. 
 

UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 232, 
JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS 
 
 
 
By ________________________________ 
 President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By ________________________________ 
 Clerk 
 
COUNTERSIGNED: 
 
 
 
By ________________________________ 
 Treasurer 
 
 
(SEAL) 



 

  
 A-5 

 
 
 CERTIFICATE OF CLERK 
 
 
STATE OF KANSAS   ) 
     )  SS. 
COUNTY OF JOHNSON  ) 
 
 
 The undersigned, Clerk of Unified School District No. 232, Johnson County, Kansas, does hereby 
certify that the within Bond has been duly registered in my office according to law as of January 11, 2010. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
(SEAL)       ____________________________________ 
       Clerk 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
AND REGISTRATION 

 
 
 This Bond is one of a series of General Obligation School Bonds, Series 2010-A, of Unified 
School District No. 232, Johnson County, Kansas, described in the within-mentioned Resolution. 
 
Registration Date:______________________ 
 
 
 

OFFICE OF THE STATE TREASURER, 
TOPEKA, KANSAS, 
as Bond Registrar and Paying Agent 
 
 
 
By _____________________________ 

 
 
Registration Number: __________________________



 

  
 A-6 

 
 
 
 CERTIFICATE OF STATE TREASURER 
 
 
OFFICE OF THE TREASURER, STATE OF KANSAS 
 
 
 DENNIS MCKINNEY, Treasurer of the State of Kansas, does hereby certify that a transcript of 
the proceedings leading up to the issuance of this Bond has been filed in his office, and that this Bond was 
registered in his office according to law on __________________________. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
(SEAL)       ______________________________________ 
       Treasurer of the State of Kansas 
 
 
       By _______________________________ 
        Assistant State Treasurer 
 
 
 

[STATEMENT OF INSURANCE 
 

Assured Guaranty Corp. (“Assured Guaranty”), a Maryland-domiciled insurance company, has 
delivered its financial guaranty insurance policy (the “Policy”) with respect to the scheduled payments of 
principal of and interest on this Bond to Treasurer of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas, as paying 
agent on behalf of the holders of the Bonds (the “Paying Agent”).  Such Policy is on file and available for 
inspection at the principal office of the Paying Agent and a copy thereof may be obtained from Assured 
Guaranty or the Paying Agent.  All payments required to be made under the Policy shall be made in 
accordance with the provisions thereof.  The owner of this Bond acknowledges and consents to the 
subrogation rights of Assured Guaranty as more fully set forth in the Policy.] 

 
 
  

 



 

  
 A-7 

 
  
 BOND ASSIGNMENT 
 
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned do(es) hereby sell, assign and transfer to 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 (Name and Address) 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
(Social Security or Taxpayer Identification No.) 

 
the Bond to which this assignment is affixed in the outstanding principal amount of $____________, 
standing in the name of the undersigned on the books of the Bond Registrar.  The undersigned do(es) 
hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint ___________________________ as agent to transfer said Bond 
on the books of said Bond Registrar with full power of substitution in the premises.   
 
 
Dated                    .     ______________________________________ 
       Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Social Security or 
       Taxpayer Identification No. 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature (Sign here exactly as name(s) 
       appear on the face of Certificate) 
 
       Signature guarantee: 
 
 
       By ________________________________ 

     [Name of Eligible Guarantor Institution as 
defined by SEC Rule 17ad-15 (12CFR 240.17 
Ad-15) or any similar rule which the Bond 
Registrar deems applicable] 

  
 
  



 

 

LEGAL OPINION 
 

 The following is a true and correct copy of the approving legal opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., 
Bond Counsel, which was dated and issued as of the date of original issuance and delivery of the Bonds: 



 

B-1 

EXHIBIT B 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE INSTRUCTIONS 
 
 

$27,000,000 
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 232,  

JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS (DE SOTO) 
[TAXABLE] GENERAL OBLIGATION SCHOOL BONDS 

[(BUILD AMERICA BONDS – DIRECT PAY)] 
SERIES 2010-A 

DATED JANUARY 15, 2010 
 
 
 THESE CONTINUING DISCLOSURE INSTRUCTIONS (the “Disclosure Instructions”) are 
executed and delivered by the Issuer in connection with the issuance of the above-described bonds (the 
“Bonds”) which are being issued simultaneously herewith as of January 28, 2010, pursuant to the Bond 
Resolution, in which the Issuer covenants to enter into this undertaking to provide certain financial and 
other information with respect to the Bonds in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying 
with the provisions of the SEC Rule.  The Issuer is the only “obligated person” with responsibility for 
continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds. 
 
 Section 1.  Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Bond Resolution, which 
apply to any capitalized term used in these Disclosure Instructions, unless otherwise defined herein, the 
following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 
 
 “Annual Report” means any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as described 
in, Section 2 of these Disclosure Instructions. 
 
 “Beneficial Owner” means any registered owner of any Bonds and any person which (a) has the 
power, directly or indirectly, to vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds 
(including persons holding Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated 
as the owner of any Bonds for federal income tax purposes. 
 
 “Bond Resolution” means the resolution of the governing body of the Issuer authorizing the 
issuance of the Bonds. 
 
 “Designated Agent” means Gilmore & Bell, P.C. or one or more other entities designated in 
writing by the Issuer to serve as a designated agent of the Issuer for purposes of these Disclosure 
Instructions. 
 
 “Dissemination Agent” means any entity designated in writing by the Issuer to serve as 
dissemination agent pursuant to these Disclosure Instructions and which has filed with the Issuer a written 
acceptance of such designation substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
 
 “District” means Unified School District No. 232, Johnson County, Kansas. 
 
 “EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system for municipal securities 
disclosures, which can be accessed at www.emma.msrb.org. 



 

B-2 

 
 “Financial Information” means the financial information of the Issuer described in Section 
2(a)(1) hereof. 
 
 “Fiscal Year” means the one year period ending June 30, or such other date or dates as may be 
adopted by the Issuer for its general accounting purposes. 
 
 “Issuer” means the District and any successors or assigns. 
 
 “Material Events” means any of the events listed in Section 3(a) hereof. 
 
 “MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 
 “Official Statement” means the Issuer’s Official Statement for the Bonds. 
 
 “Operating Data” means the operating data of the Issuer described in Section 2(a)(2) hereof. 
 
 “Participating Underwriter” means any of the original underwriters of the Bonds required to 
comply with the SEC Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds. 
 
 “Repository” means the MSRB via EMMA. 
 
 “SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission of the United States. 
 
 “SEC Rule” means Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 
 
 Section 2. Provision of Annual Reports. 
 

  (a) The Issuer shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than 180 days after the 
end of the Issuer’s Fiscal Year, commencing with the Fiscal Year ended in 2010, provide to the Repository, 
the Issuer’s Financial Information and Operating Data (jointly, the “Annual Report”), as follows: 
 
  (1) Financial Information.  The financial statements of the Issuer for such prior Fiscal 

Year, accompanied by an audit report resulting from an audit conducted by an Independent 
Accountant in conformity with generally accepted auditing standards.  Such financial statements 
will be prepared on a basis of accounting other than GAAP which demonstrates compliance with 
the State’s “cash-basis” and “budget” laws.  The Issuer has received a waiver from GAAP 
accounting from the State.  A more detailed explanation of the accounting basis is contained in 
Appendix A to the Official Statement.  If such audit report is not available by the time the Annual 
Report is required to be filed pursuant to this Section, the Annual Report shall contain unaudited 
financial statements and the audit report and accompanying financial statements shall be filed in the 
same manner as the Annual Report promptly after they become available.  The method of 
preparation and basis of accounting of the Financial Information may not be changed to a basis 
less comprehensive than contained in the Official Statement, unless the Issuer provides notice of 
such change in the same manner as for a Material Event under Section 3(b) hereof. 

 



 

B-3 

  (2) Operating Data.  Updates as of the end of the Fiscal Year of substantially all of the 
information and data contained in those sections of the Official Statement entitled “DEBT 
STRUCTURE OF THE DISTRICT” and “FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE 
DISTRICT.”  

 
 Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents, 
including official statements of debt issues with respect to which the Issuer is an “obligated person” (as 
defined by the SEC Rule), which have been filed with the Repository, the MSRB or the SEC.  If the 
document included by reference is a final official statement, it must be available from the MSRB via 
EMMA.  The Issuer shall clearly identify each such other document so included by reference.  In each 
case, the Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a 
package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in this Section; provided that the audit 
report and accompanying financial statements may be submitted separately from the balance of the 
Annual Report and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if they are not 
available by that date.  If the Issuer’s Fiscal Year changes, it shall give notice of such change in the same 
manner as for a Material Event under Section 3(b). 
 
 b) If no Dissemination Agent has been appointed, the Issuer shall file the Annual Report as 
specified by Section 2(a) hereof; or if the Annual Report is not filed within the time period specified in 
Section 2(a) hereof, the Issuer shall send a notice to each Repository in substantially the form attached as 
Exhibit A. 

 
 Section 3. Reporting of Material Events.  
 

  (a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the Issuer shall give, or cause the Dissemination 
Agent, if any, to give, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if 
the Issuer deems such events to be material: 
 

 (1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
 
 (2) non-payment related defaults; 
 
 (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 
 
 (4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 
 
 (5) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;  
 
 (6) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the Bonds; 
 
 (7) modifications to rights of bondowners; 
 
 (8) optional, contingent or unscheduled bond calls; 
 
 (9) defeasances; 
 
 (10) release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds; or 
 



 

B-4 

 (11) rating changes.  
 

  (b) Such notice shall be given by promptly filing a notice of such occurrence with the 
Repository.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Material Events described in subsections (a)(8) and 
(9) need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the underlying event is 
given to the Owners of affected Bonds pursuant to the Bond Resolution. 

 
  Section 4. Dissemination Agent.   
 
  (a) General.  The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a Dissemination Agent to 

assist it in carrying out its obligations under these Disclosure Instructions, and may discharge any such 
Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.  

 
  (b) Annual Reports.  If a Dissemination Agent is appointed, not later than 15 Business Days 

prior to the date specified in Section 2(a) for providing the Annual Report to the Repository, the Issuer shall 
provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent or the Repository.  The Dissemination Agent shall 
file a report with the Issuer certifying that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to these Disclosure 
Instructions, stating the date it was provided, or that the Issuer has certified to the Dissemination Agent that 
the Issuer has provided the Annual Report to the Repository.  If the Dissemination Agent has not received 
an Annual Report or has not received a written notice from the Issuer that it has provided an Annual Report 
to the Repository, by the date required in Section 2(a), the Dissemination Agent shall send a notice to the 
Repository in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A. 
 

(c) Material Event Notices.   
 

(1) The Dissemination Agent shall, promptly after obtaining actual 
knowledge of the occurrence of any event that it believes may constitute a Material 
Event, contact the chief financial officer of the Issuer or his or her designee, or such other 
person as the Issuer shall designate in writing to the Dissemination Agent from time to 
time, inform such person of the event, and request that the Issuer promptly notify the 
Dissemination Agent in writing whether or not to report the event pursuant to Section 
4(c)(3). 

 
(2) The Issuer will promptly respond in writing to any such request.  

Whenever the Issuer obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Material Event, because of 
a notice from the Dissemination Agent pursuant to this subsection (c) or otherwise, the 
Issuer shall promptly determine if such event would be material under applicable federal 
securities law.  If the Issuer has determined that knowledge of the occurrence of a 
Material Event would be material under applicable federal securities law, the Issuer shall 
promptly so notify the Dissemination Agent in writing.  Such notice shall instruct the 
Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to Section 4(c)(3).  If the Issuer 
has determined that knowledge of a Material Event would not be material under federal 
securities law, the Issuer shall promptly so notify the Dissemination Agent in writing.  
Such notice shall instruct the Dissemination Agent not to report the occurrence pursuant 
to Section 4(c)(3). 

 
(3) If the Dissemination Agent has been given written instructions by the 

Issuer to report the occurrence of a Material Event, the Dissemination Agent shall 



 

B-5 

promptly file a notice of such occurrence with the Repository, with copies to the Issuer.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Material Events described in Sections 3(a)(9) 
and (9) need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the 
underlying event is given to the Owners of affected Bonds pursuant to the Bond 
Resolution. 

 
  (d) Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent.  The Dissemination Agent 

shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in these Disclosure Instructions, and the Issuer agrees 
to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless 
against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance 
of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including attorneys fees) of defending 
against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent’s negligence or 
willful misconduct.  The obligations of the Issuer under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of 
the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds.  The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in 
any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared by the Issuer pursuant to these Disclosure 
Instructions. 

 
 (e) Other Designated Agents.  The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or designate a 
Designated Agent to submit Annual Reports, Material Event notices, and other notices or reports pursuant 
to these Disclosure Instructions.  The Issuer hereby appoints the Dissemination Agent and the Designated 
Agent(s) solely for the purpose of submitting Issuer-approved Annual Reports, Material Event notices, 
and other notices or reports pursuant to these Disclosure Instructions.  The Issuer may revoke this 
designation at any time upon written notice to the Designated Agent. 

   
 Section 5. Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The Issuer’s obligations under these 
Disclosure Instructions shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all 
of the Bonds.  If the Issuer’s obligations hereunder are assumed in full by some other entity as permitted in 
the Bond Resolution, such person shall be responsible for compliance with under these Disclosure 
Instructions in the same manner as if it were the Issuer, and the Issuer shall have no further responsibility 
hereunder.  If such termination or substitution occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Issuer shall 
give notice of such termination or substitution in the same manner as for a Material Event under 
Section 3(b). 
 
 Section 6. Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of these Disclosure 
Instructions, the Issuer and the Dissemination Agent, if any, may amend of these Disclosure Instructions 
(and the Dissemination Agent shall not unreasonably refuse to execute any amendment so requested by the 
Issuer) and any provision of these Disclosure Instructions may be waived, provided that:  (a) Bond Counsel 
or other counsel experienced in federal securities law matters provides the Issuer and the Dissemination 
Agent, if any, with its opinion that the undertaking of the Issuer contained herein, as so amended or after 
giving effect to such waiver, is in compliance with the SEC Rule and all current amendments thereto and 
interpretations thereof that are applicable to of these Disclosure Instructions; (b) if the amendment or waiver 
relates to Sections 2(a) or 3(a), it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that 
arises from a change in law or legal requirements, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated 
person with respect to the Bonds, or the type of business conducted; and (c) the amendment or waiver is 
either (1) approved by the Owners of the Bonds in the same manner as provided in the Bond Resolution 
with consent of the Owners, or (2) does not in the opinion of Bond Counsel materially impair the interests of 
the Owners or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.  
  



 

B-6 

 If there is an amendment or waiver of a provision of these Disclosure Instructions, the Issuer shall 
describe such amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative 
explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or, in the case of a change 
of accounting principles, on the presentation) of Financial Information or Operating Data being presented by 
the Issuer.  In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing 
financial statements:  (a) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Material Event 
under Section 3(b), and (b) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made should present a 
comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements as 
prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former 
accounting principles. 
 
 Section 7. Additional Information.  Nothing in these Disclosure Instructions shall be 
deemed to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination 
set forth in these Disclosure Instructions or any other means of communication, or including any other 
information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Material Event, in addition to that which is 
required by these Disclosure Instructions.  If the Issuer chooses to include any information in any Annual 
Report or notice of occurrence of a Material Event, in addition to that which is specifically required by these 
Disclosure Instructions, the Issuer shall have no obligation under these Disclosure Instructions to update 
such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Material Event.   
 
 Section 8. Noncompliance.  In the event of a failure of the Issuer or the Dissemination Agent, 
if any, to comply with any provision of these Disclosure Instructions, the Participating Underwriter or any 
Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including 
seeking mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the Issuer or the Dissemination Agent, 
if any, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under these Disclosure Instructions.  
Noncompliance with the provisions of these Disclosure Instructions shall not be deemed an Event of Default 
under the Bond Resolution, and the sole remedy under these Disclosure Instructions in the event of any 
failure of the Issuer or the Dissemination Agent, if any, to comply with these Disclosure Instructions shall 
be an action to compel performance. 
 
 Section 9. Notices.  Any notices or communications to or among any of the parties referenced 
in these Disclosure Instructions may be given as follows: 
 
 (a) To the Issuer at: 
 
   35200 West 91st Street, P.O. Box 449 
   De Soto, Kansas 66018-0449 
    
 
 (b) To the Participating Underwriter at: 
 
   ________________________ 
   ________________________ 
   ________________________ 
 
or such other address as is furnished in writing to the other parties referenced herein. 
 
  (c) To the Dissemination Agent at the address set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto. 
 



 

B-7 

 Any person may, by written notice to the other persons listed above, designate a different address or 
telephone number(s) to which subsequent notices or communications should be sent. 
 
 Section 10. Electronic Transactions.  Actions taken hereunder and the arrangement described 
herein may be conducted and related documents may be stored by electronic means. 
 
 Section 11. Beneficiaries.  These Disclosure Instructions shall inure solely to the benefit of the 
Issuer, the Dissemination Agent, if any, the Participating Underwriter and Beneficial Owners from time to 
time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 
 
 Section 12. Severability.  If any provision in these Disclosure Instructions, the Bond 
Resolution or the Bonds relating hereto, shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and 
enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 
 
 Section 13. Governing Law.  These Disclosure Instructions shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Kansas. 
 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



 

B-8 

       UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 232. 
       JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS  
       (DE SOTO) 
 
 
 
(SEAL)             
         President 
 
 
 
      
  Clerk 
 



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

NOTICE TO REPOSITORY OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 
 
 
Name of Issuer: Unified School District No. 232, Johnson County, Kansas (De Soto) 
 
Name of Bond Issue:  $27,000,000 General Obligation School Bonds, Series 2010-A, dated as of 

January 15, 2010 
 
Name of Obligated Person: Unified School District No. 232, Johnson County, Kansas (De Soto) 
 
Date of Issuance: January 28, 2010 
 
NOTICE IS GIVEN that Unified School District No. 232, Johnson County, Kansas (De Soto) (the 
“Issuer”) has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-named Bonds as required by the 
Continuing Disclosure Instructions dated as of January 28, 2010.  The Issuer anticipates that the Annual 
Report will be filed by _____________.   
 
Dated:      
 
     UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 232,  
     JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS (DE SOTO) 
 
 
 
     By       
 
 
 
 
     By      , as 
      Dissemination Agent 
 
cc:  Unified School District No. 232, Johnson County, Kansas (De Soto) 
 



 

 B-1 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF DISSEMINATION AGENT 

 
 
Name of Issuer:  UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 232, 
    JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS (DE SOTO) 
 
Name of Bond Issue:  $27,000,000 General Obligation School Bonds, Series 2010-A, dated as of 

January 15, 2010 
 
Dissemination Agent: 
 
Notice Address of Dissemination Agent: 
 
 _________________________, having been duly appointed by Unified School District No. 232, 
Johnson County, Kansas (De Soto) to act in the capacity of Dissemination Agent pursuant to the Continuing 
Disclosure Instructions to which this acceptance is attached, accepts such duties and responsibilities set forth 
therein. 
 
 Dated:             
 

 
 

 
 



 
 8355 Peoria Street 
 De Soto, Kansas  66018 
 Phone:  913/667-6220 
 FAX:  913/667-6221 
 e-mail:  denisj@usd232.org 
 
 Denis D. Johnson 
 Director of Facilities 
 

Unified School District 232 
 
De Soto – Shawnee – Lenexa – Olathe 
w w w . u s d 2 3 2 . o r g  
 

 

Date: December 29, 2009       
To: Board of Education, USD 232 
From: Denis D. Johnson 

Director of Facilities, USD 232 
Re: Capital Outlay Expenditure Recommendation for 2010 
 
 On the attached documents is an update of the “District Long Range Capital Outlay Plan” as it pertains to district facilities. The 
document is a projection of projects needed thru 2010/11 school year. The sheets depict: 

• Building – What building the project is requested for 
• Project – Statement of what the project is 
• Maintenance – Cost estimates for projects that are necessary for the upkeep of the facility 
• Requested Projects  – Cost estimates for projects that have been requested or recommended that would improve 

the facility or a particular district program 
• Project Description – Provides a brief description of the project 

  
The chart below shows what USD 232 currently has in capital outlay reserve and what the projected revenues and expenditures will be. 
(Prepared by Ken Larsen, Director of Budget and Finance.) 
 

CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTIONS 
  08-09  09-10   10-11   11-12   12-13  

Cash Carry Over From Prior Yr  $   10,904,093   $   10,210,206   $      9,253,333   $     8,285,603   $      7,332,438  

Ad Valorem Tax  $     1,801,552   $     1,484,014   $      1,498,251   $     1,529,816   $      1,562,013  
Motor Vehicle Taxes  $         165,761   $        173,094   $         170,000   $        170,000   $         170,000  
Interest  $         121,004   $           20,000   $            10,000   $           10,000   $            10,000  
Reimbursements  $           25,348   $           24,000   $            24,000   $           24,000   $            24,000  
St of Ks - State Aid  $         232,991      

TOTAL REVENUE =   $   13,250,749   $   11,911,314   $    10,955,584   $   10,019,419   $      9,098,451  
      

Technology Allocation =   $     2,992,900   $     3,655,175   $      4,000,000   $     4,000,000   $      4,000,000  
Technology Expenditures =   $       (119,037)     

Technology Balance =   $     2,873,863   $     3,655,175   $      4,000,000   $     4,000,000   $      4,000,000  
      
Facility Allocation =   $   10,257,849   $     8,256,139   $      6,955,584   $     6,019,419   $      5,098,451  

Facility Expenditures =   $    (2,921,506)  $   (1,000,000)  $    (1,000,000)  $   (1,000,000)  $    (1,000,000) 
Maint. & Grounds Salaries =    $       (782,981)  $        (782,981)  $       (782,981)  $        (782,981) 

Contracted Services (Copy Machines, Mowing, etc) =   $       (270,000)  $        (270,000)  $       (270,000)  $        (270,000) 

General Ongoing Maintenance =    $       (405,000)  $        (417,000)  $       (434,000)  $        (450,000) 
Building Allocations =    $       (200,000)  $        (200,000)  $       (200,000)  $        (200,000) 

Facility Balance =   $     7,336,343   $     5,598,158   $      4,285,603   $     3,332,438   $      2,395,470  
      

Unencumbered Cash Balance     at End of 
Year =   

 $   10,210,206   $     9,253,333   $      8,285,603   $     7,332,438   $      6,395,470  

Est. Assessed Valuation =   $ 390,656,256   $390,656,256   $ 394,562,819   $402,454,075   $ 410,503,157  

  0.00% 1.00% 2.00% 2.00% 

 
I request approval from the Board of Education to proceed with the projects listed as “Maintenance” in the 
Capital Outlay 2010/11 plan totaling $1,057,000.00. Of that amount $557,000 is for the projects listed for 
Maintenance and the remaining $500,000.00 to be held in reserve for anticipated future HVAC replacements at 
DHS, MTMS and DSC. I also request that the Board of Education review the projects listed as “Requested 
Projects” in the Capital Outlay 2010/11 plan and approve those projects they would like to move forward with.  



Building Project Description Maintenance Project Description

CSLC Replace doors and hardware $50,000.00 Existing doors and hardware are 50 years old and in rough condition

DHS/LTMS Additional Lockers for Field House $22,000.00 Additional lockers are needed for increased numbers in football program at high school level

DHS/MTMS/DSC Reserve/Replacement of Rooftop HVAC $500,000.00 See note #1 below

DHS Furniture Replacement $25,000.00 Student desk and chairs are on a staged schedule for replacement due to deteriorated condition

DHS Resurface and Paint Parking Lots $50,000.00

MTMS Sound Panels in the Gym $10,000.00 Sound panels needed to help with the acoustics in the gym 

MVHS/MTMS Repair and Resurface Parking Lots $210,000.00
Repairs and resurfacing of MTMS and MVHS parking lots due to both construction and normal traffic 
activity

District Wide Curb and Sidewalk Replacement $110,000.00
Sections of curb and sidewalk are in need of replacement at buildings  across the district, (see 
attached document)

Vehicle Rep. Grounds Department Skid-Steer $40,000.00
New Equipment - There is a need for a larger type skid-steer and ability to have equipment on both 
sides of the district 

Vehicle Rep. Replacement of School Vans $40,000.00

Total Expected Expenditures $1,057,000.00

Major Maintenance Capital Outlay Projects 2010/11    December 29, 2009   Prepared by Denis D. Johnson - Director of Facilities USD 232

All district buildings are on a seven year schedule for parking lot sealing and painting

Vans replaced on a ten year cycle

Moving forward with the projects listed totaling $1,057,000.00, and $500,000.00 of that amount being held in reserve for DHS/MTMS/DSC HVAC replacement, would leave a Facility Balance 
as shown in the Capital Outlay Projection Sheet prepared by Ken Larsen of $4,285,603.00. 

#1 - Consideration should be given to MTMS and DHS and Service Center rooftop heating and cooling units, which are fifteen years old. Typically units are in need of  replacement between 
15 and 20 years of age. Repair cost and unit efficiency are evaluated yearly to determine when it is cost effective to recommend replacement. This year we do not anticipate any units 
needing replacement Keeping funds in reserve for possible unit replacement over the next five years is recommended. 



Building Project Description Requested Projects Project Description

ADC Entrance Canopy $30,000.00 Construct a short canopy at each entrance to shield people from the weather as they enter

DHS 8 Lane Track $300,000.00 Convert current 6 lane track to a an 8 lane track

DHS Football Field Synthetic Turf $800,000.00 Converting the football field from a grass turf field to synthetic turf

DHS Expand Bleachers $500,000.00
Expand seating to 3000, change the home bleachers to the west side with press box to view both 
football and soccer fields 

HE Canopies $45,000.00
Add canopies at the south exits from the building and the west exit to protect students from the weather 
during  student dismissal

PRE Canopies $25,000.00 Extend the existing canopy to the drive to protect students from weather during dismissal 

RE Classroom Addition $1,500,000.00
Four classroom addition to accommodate programs and class's over four sections current 
projections do not show a need for the expansion for the next two years

MTMS Band Room Addition $1,500,000.00 Construction of new band room and renovation of existing band and choir area 

MVHS Football Field Synthetic Turf $800,000.00 Converting the football field from a grass turf field to synthetic turf

3&2 Complex Synthetic Turf for Baseball Infields $550,000.00 Converting the two baseball infields from turf fields to synthetic turf 

3&2 Complex Stadium Bleacher for all four fields $1,200,000.00 Installation of stadium style bleacher for the two baseball and two softball fields at 3&2

Total Expected Expenditures $7,220,000.00

Requested  Major Capital Outlay Projects  2010/11    December 29, 2009    Prepared by Denis D. Johnson - Director of Facilities USD 232

 As shown on the Capital Outlay Projections Sheet prepared by Ken Larsen, if Maintenance Capital Outlay items are approved there is approximately $4,285,000.00 remaining in the "Facility 
Balance" line, that the Board of Education could consider for further Capital Outlay expenditures. I would like to point out that with the current mill levy and expenditure projections, as shown on 
the Capital Outlay Projections Sheet, that amount is decreasing by approximately $1,000,000.00 per year. 



 
       35200 West 91st Street 
       De Soto, Kansas  66018 

                                                                                                                                                                                                        Phone:  913/667-6230 
                                                                                                                                                                                                        FAX:  913/667-6231 
                                                                                                                                                                                                        e-mail:  jmildner@usd232.org 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                    Jeff Mildner 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Director of Technology 
 
 
 

 

Unified School District 232 
 

De Soto – Shawnee – Lenexa – Olathe 
w w w . u s d 2 3 2 . o r g  
 

Date: December 14, 2009 
To:      Board of Education, USD 232 
From:  Jeff Mildner 
Re: Request Action for Purchase of New Data Center Hardware and Related Services 
Funding Source:  Remaining 2002 Bond Dollars and Technology Capital Outlay 
 
USD 232 is on its final year of support on HP hardware in the data center. The technology 
department has assessed hardware and support from HP, IBM, Cisco and Dell and recommends 
moving forward with Dell.  It is the goal of the technology department to move forward with 
server consolidation and virtualization.  The aspects of this plan compared to our current data 
center setup are as follows: 
 

1.  Our current hardware will no longer be supported after June 30, 2010 
2. 280 current servers will be consolidated down to 64 servers in a virtual environment 
3. Through consolidation and virtualization the district will realize tremendous electrical 

savings  
a. Fewer physical servers using power 
b. Significant reduction in heating/cooling as fewer servers create less heat 
c. Servers can be powered down nightly further reducing costs 

4. Expand data storage for students and staff, especially their H: Drive 
a. K-5 to 500MB which is nearly double current allocation 
b. 6-8 to 1GB which is more than triple current allocation 
c. 9-12 to 2GB which is more than six times current allocation 
d. Staff to 2GB which is four times current allocation 

*Easily expandable for future growth 
5. Creation of a true off-site back-up model for disaster recovery 
6. Dell Tier 2 reimbursement   

Direct cost comparison: 
1.  Initial hardware purchase 

a. HP with 3yr warranty $2,032,478.90 (Additional $340,000.00 support last 3yrs) 
b. Dell with 5yr warranty $820,569.00 

2. Services related to hardware installation and configuration 
a. Original data center setup was $147,600.00 
b. Related Dell/Citrix XenServer setup will be $105,000.00 

3. Total cost 
a. Original data center hardware build and configuration $2,180,078.90 
b. Dell hardware build and configuration $926,569.00 

Purchase options: 
1.  Full purchase (see attached quote) 
2. 3, 4, or 5 year lease to purchase options 



Page 1 of 2

DeSoto School District
Consolidation Project

Quantity Description Unit Price Extension Quote #

Blade Chassis1
4 M1000e $16,188.00 $64,752.00 514751293

Redundant Power included
Flex Addressing included
Redundant Chassis Management Controllers included
Intergrated KVM/Intergrated Dell Remote Access Cards included
Power cables and PDUs/208v single phase included
Stacking modules and cables included
OpenManage Tools included
Altiris Deployment Solution for up to 16 servers included
Rapid Rails included
5 years 4-hour mission critical support included

Xen Servers 48GB
64 PowerEdge M610 $7,508.87 $480,567.68 514751293

qty 2 5570 Procs included
48GB RAM 1333MHz (12x4GB) included
2x73GB 15K Drives included
8 1GB Interfaces included
5 years 4-hour Mission Critical Support included

Blade Switching
8 PowerConnect M6348 Switches with $5,054.40 $40,435.20 515731260
2 3m stacking cable $112.49 $224.98

5 years 4-hour mission critical support included

16 PowerConnect M6220 with Stacking $5,136.99 $82,191.84 511117210
4 3m stacking cable $99.99 $399.96

5 years 4-hour mission critical support included

Equallogic Storage (RAID 50 - 6.2TB usable/array)
2 PS6000XV, 15K Drives, 9.6TB Raw $57,889.08 $115,778.16 514746920

Onsite Installation and configuration included
5 years Onsite support, 7x24 support included

Equallogic Storage (RAID 50 - 10.4TB usable/array)
2 PS6000e, 7.2K Drives, 16TB Raw $48,789.23 $97,578.46 514746636

Onsite Installation and configuration included
5 years Onsite support, 7x24 support included

SAN Switching
2 PowerConnect 6248 $3,090.54 $6,181.08 513418507

 



Page 2 of 2

1 3m stacking cable $99.99 $99.99
5 years Onsite support, 7x24 support included

Top of Rack Switching
2 PowerConnect 6248 $3,090.54 $6,181.08 513418507
1 3m stacking cable $99.99 $99.99

5 years Onsite support, 7x24 support included

Training
1 Advanced EQL Management - Onsite $9,995.00 $9,995.00 516511278
1 Blade  - Onsite $13,995.00 $13,995.00 516511511

XenServer/PVS Services
1 XenServer/PVS Services $125,000.00 $125,000.00

Racks
2 PE5410 $1,039.20 $2,078.40 513409046

Solution Discounts
1 Include Onsite EQL training ($9,995.00) ($9,995.00)
1 Include Onsite Blade Training ($13,995.00) ($13,995.00)
1 Bundled Discount ($75,000.00) ($75,000.00)
1 Intel Jumpstart Funding ($20,000.00) ($20,000.00)

Solution Total $926,569











 
 35200 West 91st Street 
 De Soto, Kansas  66018 
 Phone:  913-667-6208 
 FAX:  913-6676202 
  
 
  

  
 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
The mission of De Soto Unified School District 232, a dynamic learning community, is to inspire the creative genius in each person by: leading in 
educational innovation and academic excellence; building visionary, world-class educational opportunities; fulfilling the evolving needs of citizens 
as lifelong learners; integrating the heritage and promise of our diverse rapidly growing community; and respecting the importance of the 
individual while promoting the common good. 

 

Unified School District 232 
 
De Soto – Shawnee – Lenexa – Olathe 
w w w . u s d 2 3 2 . o r g  
 

  
  
  
Date:   December 14, 2009 
To:   Board of Education 
From:   Earl Martin, Director of Teaching & Learning 
Re:   Overview of No Child Left Behind 
 
Purpose  
The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of No Child Left Behind, concerns about NCLB, 
and potential changes as NCLB is reauthorized.  There will be a short presentation providing this 
information. 
 
What is NCLB? 

• NCLB is the federal act of the US Congress aimed at closing the academic “achievement gap with 
accountability, flexibility, and choice so that no child is left behind” Public Law 107-110, January 8, 
2002 

• NCLB is the reauthorization of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA). 
 
Key Premises of NCLB: 

• All children can achieve to high standards. 
• All schools are accountable for all students. 
• A unitary accountability system must apply to all schools. 
• All teachers must be highly qualified. 

 
Positive results of NCLB: 

• NCLB has served as a catalyst for some educational reform and school improvement. 
• NCLB has increased focus on standards-based teaching and learning. 
• NCLB has focused more energy on meeting the needs of challenged learners. 

 
Adequate Yearly Progress. 
NCLB increased accountability through establishing AYP = % of students “proficient” or above on 
state assessments and other accountability measures.  Each state established their own formula for 
AUYP and definition of “proficient.”  All students must be proficient or above by 2014. 
 
Concerns About NCLB: 

•ALL children judged on same standards, regardless of learning rates/ability. 

•Focus on one testing measure 

•Lack of equity across states, in regards to:  definitions of “proficient,” assessment standards,   
              and subgroup numbers. 
 



 
 
 
Potential Changes to NCLB in Reauthorization, According to Arne Duncan, Secretary of 
Education: 

•“Race to the Top” Grant Awards for results-based innovation 

•Include a measure of individual student growth 

•Additional measures on state results – e.g. National Assessment of Educational Progress 
(NAEP) 

•Restructuring of lowest-achieving schools 

•Data systems that tie student progress to individual teachers 

•Push for more Charter Schools 

•Data measure for how well high schools keep ninth graders on track. 
 
 
 



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Unified School District 232 
 

 
 De Soto – Shawnee – Lenexa – Olathe 

w w w . u s d 2 3 2 .o r g  
 

Alvie L. Cater, II 
Director of Community Relations 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
January 6, 2010 
 
To: Board of Education 
Re: Webcasting of board meetings 
 
Members of the Board: 
 
At the request of the board, we researched the possibility of video recording Board of Education 
meetings and posting the video files on a Web site. Interested persons would then be able to watch the 
video online at their convenience. In this written report, I will outline the goal of video 
streaming/webcasting, policy and operational considerations, video and technology requirements, and 
estimated one-time costs and recurring costs. (Jeff Mildner, director of technology, Doug Blattman systems 
engineer, Adam Hicks, systems administrator, and Jeremy Turner, applications administrator, assisted with the 
research.) 
 
I would like to thank the Olathe School District, Shawnee Mission School District, and Blue Valley School 
District for allowing us to learn more about the video/television programming they provide for their 
patrons and the technology they use to deliver video content. We conducted site visits to Olathe and 
Shawnee Mission and visited with Blue Valley over the telephone. 
 
Of the six school districts in Johnson County, only one video records Board of Education meetings. The 
Olathe School District shows previously recorded meetings on its cable access channel through Time 
Warner and Cox Cable. It also publishes board meetings on a video streaming Web site. Shawnee 
Mission and Blue Valley have extensive video and television programming and may provide updates on 
board meetings, but do not video meetings as a matter of public record. 
 
The Objective  
The primary goal of providing online video content of board meetings should be to enhance the 
district’s communication efforts by allowing interested persons to view meetings at their convenience. 
Because the video would be easily available, we would likely increase the exposure of the Board of 
Education among stakeholders.  
 
First Impressions 
We would like to emphasize the importance of making positive first impressions when considering video 
recording board meetings. For many patrons, parents, and employees the online video would be their 
first exposure to a working meeting of the board. Thus, we believe it is important to ensure decent 
video quality and clean audio (able to hear all board members and presenters).  Having good, clean 
audio will help prevent board discussions from being taken out of context. We will cover video and 
technical requirements later in this report. 
 
Policy Considerations 
The Olathe Board of Education has been video recording its meetings for many years. As such, it 
determined a need to incorporate the procedure into its policy. For example, the Olathe board has a 
policy on the following: 

• Recording of Board Meetings 
• Recording of Public Comments 
• Restrictions on Public Comments 

• Editing of Recorded Meetings 
• Editing of Recorded Comments 

 



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

If you decide to move forward with recording meetings, then we suggest the board first adopt policy to 
cover the procedure. 
 
What is a Webcast? 
A webcast is a media file distributed over the Internet using streaming media technology. A webcast 
may either be distributed live or on demand. Essentially, webcasting is “broadcasting” over the 
Internet.  
 
What is Streaming Media? 
With streaming media the end user can start watching the file almost as soon as it begins downloading. 
In effect, the file is sent to the user in a (more or less) constant stream, and the user watches it as it 
arrives. The obvious advantage with this method is that no waiting is involved. Streaming media has 
additional advantages such as being able to broadcast live events (sometimes referred to as a webcast 
or netcast). True streaming video must be delivered from a specialized streaming server. 
 
Video & Technology Requirements  
The first step is to have the necessary tools to capture and record board meetings. There are six basic 
components we must consider. 
1) Video cameras & lighting 
2) Capturing audio/video and recording to a computer hard drive 
3) Editing and compressing video for online use 
4) Uploading content to a specialized streaming server 
5) Linking video files to Web site 
6) Computer storage for archiving recorded board meetings 
 

Video Cameras & Lighting 
We would recommend starting with two fixed-position cameras which would be ceiling 
mounted and controlled remotely, eliminating the need for a person to operate the camera. 
One camera would be a wide-angle position to capture all seven board members, the 
superintendent, and the board clerk. A second camera would be positioned to capture the 
presenters’ station. We make this recommendation based on feedback from other school 
districts.  In particular, Olathe recently switched to fixed-position cameras in the board room 
to maximize its limited resources. 
 
To help ensure quality video recording, we also recommend installing three studio fluorescent 
light fixtures to enhance the current lighting available in the board room. Two of the fixtures 
would illuminate the board member area and one fixture would focus on the presenters’ 
station. 
 
Audio 
It is imperative to have good, clean audio to accompany the video image. As mentioned earlier, 
decent audio of board discussions would help prevent statements from being taken out of 
context. It would also create a positive experience for viewers who watch the video and for 
those who attend the meetings. We have reviewed the current audio system in the board room 
and found it to be sub-par at best and not designed to record audio for webcasting. We would 
need to improve the audio capability in the board room because our current system is pieced 
together with equipment that is now ten years old, or older. On a side note, the board room is 
used frequently for training, staff development, community meetings, and other events. Any 
audio improvements would benefit more than just regular board meetings. 
 
Recording Digitally 
Our research shows significant cost savings, over time, by recording audio/video digitally to 
computer hard drives. This type of recording is now the industry standard and would allow us 
to easily migrate the finished content onto the Web. 
 



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Other Video Equipment & Technology  
A key piece of equipment that would allow us to digitally record board meetings and easily 
compress video for online viewing is known as a TriCaster. This portable production unit would 
allow us to switch between two or more cameras in the board room, capture the audio, edit a 
finished product, and compress the video for webcasting. It also has the capability of streaming 
live video. The TriCaster, due to advances in video and computer technology, would provide 
high quality video production at a fraction of the cost.  In fact, the Olathe School District is 
moving to this technology to reduce its video production costs. 
 
Another consideration is providing a computer server designed specifically for streaming video. 
Our research found it would be cost-prohibitive to host the video ourselves due to the file size 
capacity needed for video, the type of server needed, bandwidth issues, archiving, and 
required technical expertise. It is recommended we use a third party in the video hosting 
business. The Olathe School District uses a company known as LiveStream to host and archive 
its video of board meetings. The district pays an annual fee of about $4,000 for a terabyte of 
storage and appropriate bandwidth to allow multiple viewers. The company is used by other 
public agencies for streaming video and is proven to be a cost-effective solution. The Blue 
Valley School district uses its current Web hosting company to stream video. It pays an annual 
fee for the high-capacity storage which is rolled into its overall Web costs. 

 
Operational Considerations 
The school districts we contacted conveyed the same message when it comes to recording board 
meetings. Once a district begins the process, it must be committed and consistent. We asked about the 
use of student volunteers and all districts provided the same advice. It is important to look for ways to 
incorporate students into valuable learning experiences. However, student volunteers should not be 
viewed as dependent and reliable if they would be the primary human resource needed to accomplish 
the end goal.  
 
The districts in Johnson County with video/television programming have full time employees dedicated 
to providing online and television content. Students are incorporated at varying levels, depending on 
the district and level of funding. In our case, we would investigate using existing staff to ensure the 
consistent recording of Board of Education meetings with the idea of looking for learning opportunities 
to incorporate students.  
  

Closed Captioning 
Another consideration would be to accommodate the hearing impaired by providing closed 
captioning of all board meetings and have it as an option in the video posted online. Providing 
accessible media for the deaf and hard of hearing community would be an aspect of social 
responsibility. When we offer captioned video, we would help increase the value of the 
programming -- making it available to a group of people who otherwise would not have had 
access to the content. Captioning is a service that betters our community and enhances the 
teaching power of media. The Olathe School District is investigating closed captioning and 
currently pays a professional to offer sign-language during board meetings.  The person is 
superimposed in the right-hand corner of the video image during meetings.  

 
Once a board meeting is concluded we estimate a turnaround period of approximately 72-96 hours 
before video content would be available for public viewing. This would allow for any editing required 
(removing breaks & executive sessions from the video) adding any necessary graphics, compressing 
video and posting online. Lengths of meetings vary and would determine time necessary to edit and 
compress. 
 
 

 
 
 



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Estimated Costs 
We are providing you a general estimate of what it might take to begin webcasting of board meetings. 
Please keep in mind the following information is general in nature and is only intended to give you an 
idea of the initial investment. 
 

 
One-time costs 
Cameras (2 units) = $3,000 - $8,000 (ranged depends on model, quality, resolution, etc.) 
Fluorescent Studio Lighting (3 units) = $3,000 - $6,000 
TriCaster portable production unit = $9,000 - $15,000 (could save money by purchasing a used 
unit) 
Audio upgrade of board room = $16,785 (includes all equipment, labor and product warranties) 
 
Recurring costs 
LiveStream annual fee for hosting, storage & bandwidth = $4,000 
Incidental equipment maintenance, light bulbs, etc. = absorb within existing resources 
Closed Captioning = varies upon program length, number of words, and other variables;  
 

Another Idea – Podcasting 
Instead of webcasting video of board meetings, you may be inclined to consider audio-only recording – 
or podcasting. We have been working for several months, prior to your request to research webcasting, 
on a plan to slowly improve the audio capability in the board room. This would be a cost-effective 
approach and would allow you to consider video at another time in the future. We would utilize our 
existing Web site to host and archive the podcasts. 
 
A podcast is a series of digital media files (either audio or video) that are released episodically and 
downloaded through web syndication. A commonly used audio file format is MP3. Audio files are much 
smaller in size when compared to video files. 
 
We look forward to discussing this report with you at the board meeting. It is listed as a discussion item 
only. 
 
 



 
 35200 West 91st Street 
 De Soto, Kansas  66018 
 Phone:  913-583-8300 
 FAX:  913-583-8303 
 mschmidt@usd232.org 

 
 Dr. Mark Schmidt 
 Director Human Resources 

 
 
 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
The mission of De Soto Unified School District 232, a dynamic learning community, is to inspire the creative genius in each person by: 
leading in educational innovation and academic excellence; building visionary, world-class educational opportunities; fulfilling the 
evolving needs of citizens as lifelong learners; integrating the heritage and promise of our diverse rapidly growing community; and 
respecting the importance of the individual while promoting the common good. 
 

Unified School District 232 
 
De Soto – Shawnee – Lenexa – Olathe 
w w w . u s d 2 3 2 . o r g  
 

Date: January 11, 2010 

To: USD 232 Board of Education 

From:  Dr. Mark Schmidt - Director of Human Resources 

Re:    Discussion Item: Morgan Hunter Education Division Substitute Contract 

 
On December 14, 2009, the Board was provided with a written report regarding the Morgan 
Hunter Education Division Substitute Contract and their performance in USD 232 (see attached).  
During the January 11, 2010 Board meeting, representatives from the Human Resource 
Department and from Morgan Hunter will be available to answer questions and receive feedback 
concerning past, current, and future substitute services. 
 
Based on the automatic renewal, the District has a valid contract with MHED to continue to 
provide short-term substitutes at the current fee of $138 per day for the 2009-10 school year.  If 
the Board would like to reopen negotiations of contract terms with MHED, or if the Board would 
like to cancel our contract for the 2010-11 school year, written notice must be provided prior to 
April 1, 2010.  If no Board action is taken, the contract will automatically renew for the 2010-11 
school year.  To meet this deadline, the Human Resource Department will request the Board 
provide direction at the February 8, 2010 meeting. 
 
In order to have all necessary information available to the Board, please contact me at 
mschmidt@usd232.org or (913) 667-6205 if you have any questions or comments. 
 
Mark 
  
 

 

 

mailto:mschmidt@usd232.org


  
 
 35200 West 91st Street 
 De Soto, Kansas  66018 
 Phone:  913-583-8300 
 FAX:  913-583-8303 
 mschmidt@usd232.org 
 
 Dr. Mark Schmidt 
 Director Human Resources 

 

Unified School District 232 
 
De Soto – Shawnee – Lenexa – Olathe 
w w w . u s d 2 3 2 . o r g  

 
 
Date: December 14, 2010 
To: The Board of Education 
From:   Dr. Mark Schmidt - Director of Human Resources 
Re:    Written Report—Morgan Hunter Education Division Substitute Contract 
 

In August 2007, the De Soto Unified School District entered an agreement with Morgan Hunter Educational Division 
(MHED) to provide short-term substitutes for our certified staff.  All long-term substitutes (11 days or more) are selected 
and hired by the principals along with the support of Human Resources.  Substitutes for paraprofessionals are coordinated 
by the Special Services Department. 

Currently MHED provides the following services and staff in exchange for $138 paid for each substitute day. 
 A full-time substitute specialist that is available starting at 5:30 am to fill last minute substitute requests 
 Secretarial and payroll department to meet needs of substitutes, principals, teachers, and substitutes 
 Advertisement (as needed) to maintain a quality substitute pool 
 Face to face interview with all substitute candidates 
 Reference checks for all substitute candidates 
 Annual background check through Validity for all active substitute teachers 
 Short-term substitutes (paid $100 per day) 
 Workman Comp insurance 
 Unemployment insurance 
 SubFinder – Automated 24/7 Substitute Management Program 
 Ability for teachers to identify favorite and restricted substitutes for their classrooms 
 Ability for principals to identify favorite and restricted substitutes for their buildings 
 Substitute Training (monthly) 
 Opportunity for teachers to provide feedback/evaluation on substitute performance.  The MHED Substitute 

specialist coaches substitutes for improvement when suggestions are made 
 Reporting includes quarterly reports to HR and daily reports to secretaries and principals on who is substituting in 

the building 
 

When the District entered the agreement with MHED, we were interested in improving the fill rate of open positions, 
expanding the number of substitutes available in the system, providing training for substitutes, creating substitute 
evaluation, creating a system to track the reasons for substitutes, and developing a process to deliver systematic feedback 
to our substitutes.  Listed below is a summary of performance in each of these areas: 

 Improve “Fill Rate”:  The fill rate has continued to improve since the district began working with MHED in 2007.  
During the 2007-08 school year, the fill rate was 99.6%.  In 2008-09, the fill rate was 99.74%.  Through November 
20th, 2009, the fill rate has been 100% (see attachment for details). 

 Expand the number of available substitutes:  The available number of substitutes has increased from 120 in 2007 to 
over 240 as of November 20th, 2009. MHED has a waiting list of licensed staff members who would like to substitute 
in USD 232.  Currently only fully licensed teachers who complete student teaching in USD 232 and/or are 
recommended by the Human Resource Director (high need areas) are added to the 240 active list. 

 Provide training for substitutes:  Professional development training opportunities have increased from once quarterly 
in 2007 to the current monthly training.  Staff development topics have included: classroom management, dealing with 
difficult behaviors,   safety procedures established by the district, and teaching within a Special Education classroom. 



Morgan Hunter Report  Page 2 of 13 
 

 

 Substitute evaluation instrument:  MHED has developed and trained district staff on the use of a quick, one minute 
survey based on the performance of their substitute.  Teachers have the opportunity to complete this survey every time 
they have a substitute in their classroom. 

 System for tracking the reason for substitutes:  SubFinder produces detailed reports that are used by principals and 
Human Resources staff to track the reasons for substitutes.  Data from these reports are attached. 

 Systematic feedback for substitutes:  Teachers and substitutes have access to an on-line substitute scheduler that 
matches the short-term teaching assignment with the substitute’s licensed subject areas, building, and date preferences.  
MHED has provided teachers with a list of areas in which substitutes are licensed.  To further secure good matches 
between substitutes and classrooms, each teacher may submit a list of “preferred” and “restricted” substitutes.  This 
feature has allowed teachers to screen out substitutes who do not operate well in their classroom and avoid potential 
problems.  When there is a concern about a substitute’s behavior, MHED has been quick to address the issue before 
allowing a substitute to return to the classroom.  Based on feedback on the recent evaluation, MHED distributed a 
summary sheet reminding teachers how to modify their individual “preferred” and “restricted” lists. 

In November 2009, the Human Resource Department sought input from staff members regarding their experiences with 
MHED.  A comprehensive survey was created and distributed to all certified staff members.  Combining the scores of 
seven questions directly related to MHED’s performance, 94.4% of staff indicated they were as either “Very Satisfied” 
(51.5%) or “Satisfied” (42.9%) with their experiences. Please find a copy of all survey results attached. 

With the contracted automatic renewal clause, the District has a valid contract with MHED to provide short-term 
substitutes at the current fee of $138 per day for the 2009-10 school year.  If the Board would like to reopen negotiations 
of contract terms with MHED, or if the Board would like to cancel our contract for the 2010-11 school year, written notice 
must be provided to MHED prior to April 1, 2010.  To meet this deadline, the Human Resources Department will add the 
MHED Contract for discussion during the January Board Meeting and ask for Board action at the February Meeting. 
 
Please contact me at mschmidt@usd232.org or (913) 667-6205 if you would like any additional information that would be 
helpful in deciding how we will provide for the District substitute needs during the 2010-11 school year. 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
Dr. Mark Schmidt 
Director of Human Resources 
 
Encl: Performance Data, Staff Survey Data, Staff Feedback and MHED Responses, MHED Contract 
 
  



Morgan Hunter Report  Page 3 of 13 
 

 

Morgan Hunter Performance Data 

 
 

2007‐2008 
 

2008 ‐ 2009  Aug. 11, 2009 – Dec. 3, 2009 

 
Number of Short‐Term 
Substitute Requests: 

 

4392  4926  1947 

 
Actual Fill Rate of Requests: 

 
99.46%  99.72%  100% 

 
Daily Cost to the District: 

 
$138  $138  $138 

 
Daily Paid to Substitute: 

 
$100  $100  $100 

 
Percentage of Days (Professional 

Leave) 
 

34.5%  33.1%  23.1% 

 
Percentage of Days  

(Sick Leave) 
 

49%  50.6%  56.2% 

 
Percentage of Days 
(Discretionary) 

 

15.6%  14.5%  20.1% 

 
Percentage of Days 

(Maternity/Paternity Leave – 
When a long‐term sub needs a 

sub) 
 

1.0%  1.8%  0.7% 

 
Day of the Week Absences: 

 

Monday 18.6% 
Tuesday 17.3% 

Wednesday 19.9% 
Thursday 18.6% 
Friday 24.9% 

Monday 20.0% 
Tuesday 19.3% 

Wednesday 18.0% 
Thursday 19.6% 
Friday 23.1% 

Monday 18.9% 
Tuesday 18.3% 

Wednesday 17.1% 
Thursday 20.0% 
Friday 25.6% 

 
Number of Substitutes Available 

for USD 232: 
 

120  190  240 

 
Substitute Professional 

Development: 
 

Quarterly  Monthly  Monthly 

 



Morgan Hunter Report  Page 4 of 13 
 

 

Morgan Hunter Survey Summary 

Home Building  # of Respondents 

ADC  7 

TC  0 

DSC  0 

CLC  2 

CCE  34 

HE  26 

ME  26 

PRE  34 

RE  22 

SE  23 

LTMS  25 

MCMS  31 

MTMS  25 

DHS  33 

MVHS  45 

 

Position in the District  Percent of Respondents 

Teacher  85.9% 

Administrator/Principal  4.8% 

Secretary  3.9% 

Central Office Staff  1.8% 

Other  3.6% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Morgan Hunter Report  Page 5 of 13 
 

 

Morgan Hunter Survey Summary (Cont.) 

Question  Rating

‐ 
Very 

Important/
Satisfied 

3  2 
Not 

Important/
Satisfied 

How satisfied are you with the overall quality of substitutes recruited, 
hired, and placed by Morgan Hunter Education Division? 

42.8%  54.2%  2.8%  .3% 

How important is it that all substitutes have an annual background 
screening? 

75.3%  19.4%  4.6%  .6% 

How important is it that all newly hired substitutes have a face‐to‐face 
interview and verbal reference check before placement in the schools? 

81.9%  14.7%  2.8%  .6% 

How important is it to hire only fully licensed teachers for new substitutes 
(exclude emergency licensed staff when possible)? 

23.6%  48.8%  21.2%  6.4% 

How important is it to provide monthly training opportunities to our 
substitutes? 

24.3%  43.1%  25.8%  6.8% 

How important is it to provide all substitutes with training that includes 
information about policies and procedures outlined in the De Soto 
Employee Manual and USD 232 Crisis Manual? 

66.1%  27.2%  5.8%  .9% 

How important is it to provide USD 232 teachers with an automated 
system that provides 24‐hour access to teachers and administrators to 
review absences and learn which substitute are filling the jobs? 

78.8%  17.4%  2.8%  .9% 

How satisfied are you with SubFinder as the automated system?  67.7%  28.2%  4.1%  0.0% 

How important is it to allow buildings and individual teachers to control 
which substitutes see open jobs with both “favorite” and “blocked” lists? 

60.3%  32.3%  6.8%  .6% 

How satisfied are you with Morgan Hunter’s ability to place substitutes 
with late notice? 

52.0%  42.4%  3.7%  1.8% 

How important is it that first‐time subs and random “experienced” subs 
are evaluated by teachers? 

39.4%  51.2%  9.0%  .3% 

How important is it for teachers to have the option of submitting an 
evaluation following any substitute? 

50.6%  41.9%  7.1%  .3% 

When a concern exists, how satisfied have you been with MHED’s 
handling of the situation? 

49.6%  41.9%  6.0%  2.6% 

   



Morgan Hunter Report  Page 6 of 13 
 

 

Morgan Hunter Survey Summary (Cont.) 

Question  Rating 

‐ 
Very 

Important/
Satisfied 

3  2 
Not 

Important/
Satisfied 

How satisfied are you with the friendliness of service when dealing 
directly with Morgan Hunter? 

63.6%  33.2%  2.8%  .5% 

How satisfied are you with the quality of feedback provided by substitutes 
when you return (were the notes helpful and/or detailed enough)? 

44.7%  47.8%  6.2%  1.4% 

How satisfied are you with how effectively the substitutes followed lesson 
plans? 

40.4%  52.7%  5.5%  1.4% 

How important is it to track Absence Reasons and Budget Codes for 
analysis? 

28.4%  33.7%  16.8%  21.1% 

How important is it for Principals and lead secretaries to receive daily 
report of absences? 

70.1%  22.4%  5.6%  1.9% 

How important is it to receive quarterly absence reporting to identify 
trends? 

29.7%  37.4%  20.9%  12.1% 

Are reports from Morgan Hunter useful for your needs?  40.5%  25.7%  24.3%  9.5% 

When Morgan Hunter substitutes are at your building:  Always  3  2  Never 

Are substitutes on time?  60.3%  36.3%  3.1%  0.0% 

Are substitutes dressed appropriately?  63.9%  33.1%  3.0%  0.0% 

Do substitutes know their assignment upon arrival?  65.6%  31.7%  2.7%  0.0% 

Do substitutes interact positively with staff?  51.1%  45.2%  3.6%  0.0% 

 

 

 



Morgan Hunter Report  Page 7 of 13 
 

 

Comments from Staff and Morgan Hunter’s Response 

*Notes:   1)  Grammatical errors may exist as data was downloaded directly from Survey Monkey. 
2)  Per our request, MHED has responded to some of the areas of concern.  Their comments are noted below 

in bold. 

 I have been extremely pleased with the substitutes I've interacted with in our building.  The overall quality of 
substitutes that come to Horizon is excellent. 

 I really find it valuable to be able to go in and request our favorite subs or subs that are familiar with the 
building. It gives teachers a sigh of relief knowing who will be with their class. :) 

 The only problem we consistently have is bad directions to our building. 

 We have great subs and I always feel comfortable having MH get a sub for me. 

 Overall, I have had a positive experience.  On a rare occasion I have had a substitute not follow the lesson plans. 

 I understand and agree with the idea of hiring only certified teachers for substitutes in theory. This can be done 
somewhat easily right now due to the number of certified teachers looking for work, but I am concerned about 
how that will work long term. I don't want to undermine the value of many substitutes that are not certified, but 
have been in our buildings for years. Their knowledge and experiences are just as valuable as certification in 
many cases. Some of my favorite subs are not certified, but have been in the building for years ‐ they know me 
and understand how I run my classroom and they know my students. In most cases I would rather have them in 
my room than a newly certified teacher who lacks that knowledge. Responsible teachers will leave their 
substitute detailed lesson plans to carry out. In my opinion this often takes over the need for certification. 
Knowledge of buildings, staff, and students by many of our long term non‐certified subs takes care of the 
classroom management issue that can easily cause trouble for subs. 
MH:  “We agree and want to keep experienced subs, certified or emergency, on board and happy!  One idea 
we have is to provide training for "building substitutes" at the start of every school year.  Most schools have 
approximately 5 ‐ 10 subs on their site preference list.  We are hopeful these substitutes could receive extra 
training at the start of each school year pertinent to specific buildings.  We believe this would be particularly 
helpful with special education classrooms and maintaining consistency.”

 MH has worked very well with our building's needs and details that make all the difference. Ken Belko and Jim 
Peters are amazing!  We love the fact that we can block subs from coming back that have caused a disturbance 
or been ineffective.   Several of us also love the idea of choosing subs for awards based on teacher evaluations. 
Great Job MH! 

 I have worked on both sides, sub and teacher using Morgan Hunter.  I must say, in all of my experience with 
them, I cannot give them enough praise.  They are top notch through and through. 

 While Morgan Hunter provides a great service...there are times when a person would be better for the 
situation.  For example, when a sub is needed to be switched from a half time position to a full time position 
somewhere else, or when extraneous circumstances occur that would require one sub to be moved to a 
classroom that will cover more days than just a job to job position (and where the sub has been requested for a 
day or so of that time). 

 I would like for substitutes to not be placed within their child’s classroom or maybe even grade level. In the past 
it has been a negative experience regarding privacy and favoritism. We seem to have a lot of parents subbing at 
our school and at times the professional and personal areas tend to collide. 

 It would be nice to know which subs are currently actively seeking placement. Sometimes when searching by a 
specialty (such as art) the most recent sub additions were over a year old. I have no idea which of those subs are 
still available and which have subbed in our district. I would like more feedback on which subs are new and 
which have been used before or never used. 

 It is nice to be able to have the 24 hr access when you are a teacher with children who tend to get sick at all of 
hours of the night.  Also, it has been nice to be able to request a sub that has worked well for your team or for 
yourself and to be able to keep ineffective subs from being chosen first. 

 I really enjoy the service provided by MH and feel that they are doing a fabulous job of finding and keeping 
quality substitutes. 

 



Morgan Hunter Report  Page 8 of 13 
 

 

Comments and Responses (Cont.) 
 We have had district parents with no teaching experience be placed to sub in the classroom of their own child or 

the grade level of their child.  This has been awkward as they have sometimes favored their child (e.g. had only 
the girls eat lunch in the classroom with them because their daughter was in the room and no other reason for 
excluding the boys).  I also feel that they are violating privacy issues, by having access to private or academic 
information about students that their child interacts with on a social level.  I see more and more unlicensed 
parents coming in as substitutes.  I get the feeling that many of them just want to collect gossip.  I think it would 
be more appropriate for them to only sub in the grade levels and/or schools that their child is not in. 

 Allowing any person to come into the classroom to be a substitute regardless of their hands on educational 
experience is disappointing.  We have had several substitutes who do not have education degrees and should 
not have been in charge of children's well being or education. 

 The MH SubFinder System and the office staff of MH are extremely helpful.   I believe the system saves a lot of 
time due to the fact it's automated.   I can only recall a few times that a job went unfilled.  I remember the days 
before MH that I spent a lot of wasted time trying to find substitutes on my own when I was not able to contact 
the "sub coordinator".  I believe the MH SubFinder system to be very reliable.  I use a lot of the online reports 
available to me on the MH website. 

 I think it's a great service for any school district! 

 We would like to see more subs with access to the computers.  We need a list of subs that have been offered 
and taken the time to go get their passwords and logins.  This may be a district issue?   I'm not sure where or 
how to update my preferred sub list each year.  Would MH mind sending out directions each year?  Thanks! 

 This isn't necessarily directed towards Morgan Hunter, but our building has a substitute that is used on almost a 
daily basis that is not a certified teacher, but goes above and beyond the call of duty, is very adaptable, and is 
very flexible. This person knows our students and communicates with them effectively and efficiently. I would 
trust this person over any unknown certified teacher any day of the week.  I would strongly discourage our 
district moving towards a system that only allows certified substitutes in our buildings. 
MH:  “We agree.  All substitutes employed by MHED are licensed by the state of Kansas to be an emergency 
substitute, regularly licensed substitute, or fully licensed teacher.  At this time, MHED has not been asked to 
refrain from using the proven emergency licensed substitutes in De Soto schools.” 

 No problems...ever.  thank you 

 MH has been extremely helpful in finding subs for us in "emergency" type situations. 

 I feel that it is truly important that all substitutes have training and for educators to have access to giving 
feedback easily for ALL substitutes. 

 Only had good experiences. 

 There are many great subs, and we have a long preferred list for the DR.  There are also some people I don't 
think should ever be subbing and I wonder how they "get past" screening. 
MH:  “We will continue to encourage teachers to provide feedback through the use of the evaluation tool .  
This also allows us to address teacher concerns immediately.”

 The only issue I have had is that one sub's name will be listed as my sub, and then another person comes. ??? 
This has happened almost every time I have had a sub. 

 I feel if a candidate has experience in a school setting dealing with students academically, this person should be 
able to substitute even without a teaching license. 

 I request subs to rove to different classrooms while teachers attend IEP meetings.  We have been very pleased 
with our service from Morgan Hunter and with the subs sent.  On the few occasions we have had someone that 
didn't fit what we needed; Morgan Hunter was extremely helpful in dealing with these situations. 

 I am concerned that we have experienced subs that have done an excellent job that might not be invited back 
due to a decision to hire only fully licensed teachers.  That shows a lack of appreciation for the great job they 
have done and would be shooting ourselves in the foot for future needs. 

 
 
 
 
 



Morgan Hunter Report  Page 9 of 13 
 

 

Comments and Responses (Cont.) 
 I would like to be able to provide a list of preferred substitutes that are asked to sub for me first. It is frustrating 

that I can only provide one sub request and if that person can't do it, someone else is randomly placed. Other 
than that, I am happy with Morgan hunter. It's very simple and easy to request a sub. Thanks! 
MH:  “The current system allows for teachers to set up a preference list for the order in which substitutes are 
called.  We will provide written directions and training upon request so teachers may maximize this feature in 
SubFinder.”  Please see directions for setting up “favorites” below. 

 It would be helpful to be able to view available subs from our favorite lists when submitting a request.  It would 
also be helpful to know which subs prefer which areas.  Not everyone is "suited" for working with the 
population of kids I work with, and it would be helpful to know which subs would prefer not to work in my 
position. 

 I wish there was a way for the teacher to have the opportunity to reselect a sub if the sub who had accepted the 
job has to cancel for a personal reason. With the current system, if that happens, a random sub is contacted, 
and most often times not from our "preferred list" provided. This is really challenging especially for 
resource/sped teachers as we have a very specific set of subs who work best with some of the challenges our 
students face each day. 

 I have been very pleased with this system. 

 I LOVE Morgan Hunter.  They have been nothing but helpful to our building.  In crisis they come thru for us. If we 
have an issue with a sub they are very helpful (although this rarely happens).  We have had almost zero "mess 
ups" on Morgan Hunters part. I would give them an A+ for a job well done. 

 I would like an evaluation sent to me electronically by MH the day after I have had a substitute in my classroom.  
It will be my choice to fill it out or not, but I would like to be given the opportunity to evaluate the substitute 
right away.  It would also be helpful to see the credentials of the sub when requesting them.  Perhaps next to 
each sub's name could be their qualifications (any specific areas they are certified in, as well as if they are K‐12 
certified). 

 Please allow student teachers from our building to be hired as substitutes even if you are on a hiring freeze.  
They are already familiar with the students, teachers and procedures of the school. 

 My only concern is that when a requested sub cannot fill the job, it does not inform you so that you can select a 
new "requested sub."  This has been an issue in my position where there is a great deal of confidentiality and 
mobility around the building.  I like the service, but wish this could be addressed. 

 I have really enjoyed using the Morgan Hunter system and feel it is very effective.  However, the one thing I 
would like to see changed is the system just randomly choosing a sub if the one you requested declines the job 
for whatever reason.  I wish there was a way to select back up subs so a random person is not immediately 
assigned.  I noticed the question regarding the fully licensed subs.  In theory, that sounds amazing, but I am 
concerned that 1. there would not be enough subs to accommodate needs and 2. That would eliminate the subs 
who are in fact outstanding at what they do, because they are not certified.  I know of 4 absolutely, amazing 
subs who are not licensed/certified and we would be doing all an injustice by letting them go.  We are truly 
lucky to have them.  Thank you for hearing our concerns and taking the time to get our input. 

 It would be nice if Morgan Hunter had a separate "certified" teacher sub list that we could refer to when looking 
for a long‐term sub.  Instead we have to submit names of subs, they look them up, and then they tell us whether 
they are or are not a certified sub. 

 I have been very satisfied with Morgan Hunter. I like having the option to request a specific sub and being able 
to do this 24 hours a day. It is very convenient and easy to do. The only change I would like to see is that when I 
request a sub and she isn't available, I would like to be notified so that I can choose someone else familiar with 
my special education students. Currently, if the sub you requested doesn't accept the job, you get whomever 
they send. 

 I really appreciate that we are provided with Requested sub! 

 Could those substitutes with teaching licenses and experience be places first before those without true teaching 
credentials? 

 In the past we had to call a district employee that was in charge of this process, it was stressful because you 
never knew if your request for a sub was filled. There was no feedback with the old way. Using Morgan Hunter is 
an effective communication tool for finding subs and receiving feedback. 



Morgan Hunter Report  Page 10 of 13 
 

 

Comments and Responses (Cont.) 
 Carol Green exhibits every positive part of this survey. If substitutes are taught to go above and beyond and 

seek out things to do during recess breaks/plan time it helps tremendously. We have had subs who just sit and 
read a novel or play on their phone when they could be helping out other grade level teachers with copies, 
filing, etc. We love when subs want to reach out and help with whatever they can. 

 I can't answer #4 since I am not in the building, and usually never meet my sub.  My only concern is the ease in 
making contact after 6:30am after the internet is closed and before our building phones are open. 

 I greatly appreciate being able to request a substitute online at any hour of the day. 

 I would like to be able to request more than one sub in the event the first requested sub turns down the job.  If 
they turn down a job, it opens up to everyone, and I don't always get someone who knows math! 

 The majority of the subs at Morgan Hunter are very good. Occasionally, subs have behaved inappropriately, but 
MH handles it well. 

 Since establishing the working relationship with Morgan Hunter, we have had virtually every absence covered 
without delay no matter what time of the day we have needed to request a substitute.  In previous years we 
would have 2‐3 occasions each year without substitute coverage which placed routine instructional procedures 
in a disrupted state.  Morgan Hunter substitutes have been prompt, enthusiastic about their job, and highly 
professional in their demeanor. 

 It would be helpful to know areas of specialized training not just sub numbers...i.e.: who can teach math or 
computers 

 I usually use subs I know, and my answers reflect that.  I have rarely had a sub come that was not someone I 
selected (I'm not gone often and plan ahead with someone I trust). 

 I like the service. I teach music and it would be great to create a list of subs that have ability in this area so I 
could choose someone with experience. 

 As with any job, some substitutes are exceptional and some are not.  I evaluated one of the latter and never got 
any feedback.  When a teacher goes through the effort of detailed sub plans it is expected that the sub will 
follow these or at least try.  If issues arise they should let you know what they weren't able to cover or how they 
strayed and why. 

 Overall, I am happy with the service.  I do feel a lack of connection.  Sometimes I am sick and don't want to/can't 
get to a computer.  Also, I would like the website to be a little more user friendly.  I would like to be able to see 
who my sub will be and review/change my list of favorites/dislikes.  And if this survey is just for the district, the 
subs I get from Morgan Hunter and the same subs I had when Mrs. Brown was in charge. 

 I have been very fortunate to know ahead of time the dates I will be absent, so I have 1‐2 subs that I rely on 
each time.  They know my routines, students, and expectations.  Robin Palmer is the main one and she does an 
amazing job!  It world be helpful to have a building list of recommended subs, along with their number so that I 
could request one of them in case Robin is not available. 
MH:  “We will provide a list of requested substitutes to each building secretary for their use.  Thank you for the 
suggestion.” 

 It is extremely frustrating that we are not able to request more than one person.  If our first choice is not 
available we don't know and sometimes receive someone we really would rather not have if we'd had the 
chance to choose a second or third choice. 

 When a sub has been requested and they accept, it would be nice to know if they have to cancel so a different 
request might be made instead of going "pot luck" 

 I have worked with Wendy and Anna at MH, and I have always been extremely pleased with their friendliness, 
promptness to returning emails, helpfulness, and overall professionalism.  If MH hires people like these 2 ladies, 
then MH will always be doing the right thing.  Thank you for having such a quality program. 

 My responses are based on requested subs only.  They are great! 

 The subs I almost always request do not have a teacher certification, however they are wonderful with the 
students and I would request them over some of the certified subs I have had in the past. 

 I would like to have my subs called in order of preference.  For instance, if Mrs. Green is not available when I 
request her it would automatically call my 2nd, 3rd and so on choices rather than just randomly calling and not 
know who I get. 



Morgan Hunter Report  Page 11 of 13 
 

 

Comments and Responses (Cont.) 
 I have been very pleased with the substitutes that we use regularly in the discovery room at Prairie Ridge 

Elementary.  They are extremely flexible and work well with students in a variety of environmental settings. 

 Should not be parents of students in the building. Should be told they need to follow the lesson plans and not 
deviate from them. 

 Is there a way we could get the area the teachers are licensed in to better help teachers make selections for 
substitutes? 

 It has been very nice working with Morgan Hunter as when we did not we frequently received emails that there 
were no subs or few subs available on days.  This was a stressful situation when teachers were sick and needing 
a sub.   MH has reduced this concern. 

 Overall happy 

 It would be so helpful if teachers could request more than 1 sub, so that if the Morgan Hunter system calls our 
first choice and they are unavailable, the automated system would move on to our 2nd choice instead of putting 
in a random sub. 

 I feel as though our "back‐up" or "favorites" list is not being used appropriately when we are unable to get the 
sub we requested.  It does not go to our list but out to all subs in the Morgan Hunter database.  I would like to 
see this problem fixed so that we may get the subs that we know better.  Thanks. 

 It would be nice to be able to submit a second or even third choice when you request a sub.  It is too bad when 
you request one, they decline it and then you get whoever can take the job.  I also think it is important to find a 
balance between quality and quantity.  I am afraid that if we require all subs to be fully licensed, there will be 
major shortages and we would lose good subs that are parents of district students or are out of another work 
force and doing a great job working as a sub. 

 Since I teach a computer class it is important that I find a sub who can log into our computer system.  It would 
be helpful to know who has computer access. Also who is knowledge about Microsoft products so they can carry 
out my lesson plans. 

 I think substitutes need training on the ethical policies of being in a classroom.  Making sure they understand 
they are not to talk about the children they work with in the classroom to others.  I also think that parents 
should NOT substitute in their child's classroom or grade level ‐ even in an emergency situation.  It puts the 
parent and the other children in a compromising position because it is often hard for a parent to take of the 
"parent hat" and put on the "substitute hat" when in a classroom. 

 It is a good program for the district to use.  Substitutes are of high quality and come back to our building many 
times so we are comfortable with who subs for us (the majority of time). 

 I haven't used the service that often, but have been very pleased when I have used it.  My only suggestion would 
be for Morgan Hunter to send an e‐mail directly to the requesting teacher confirming that a sub has indeed 
been placed and the name of that individual.  Including contact info for the sub is asking a lot, but would be 
great of possible. 
MH:  “As we move forward, we will discuss the possibility of ‘confirmation’ emails.  However, we want to be 
sensitive to not overload email inboxes as substitutes accept jobs and then make changes to their schedules.”

 I have been very pleased with the service of the MH staff ‐ specifically we asked about subs with science 
certification for a long‐term sub need and we got a list of 6 within about 2 hours. 

 We love having Julie Koehn and Sara Gehrt in our building.  You can ask anyone. 

 It would be helpful to be able to have a "second choice" of substitute if my first choice is not available. 

 Can I make a list of multiple favorites?  How do I do that? How do I activate it to be used every time? 
MH:  “Yes. As noted above, we will provide written instructions and training upon request.”  Please see below 
for a summary of information provided to teachers regarding “favorites.” 

 There definitely needs to be an evaluation around 1st time or newly experienced subs.  Some are simply not cut 
out for being a sub. 

 
 
 
 



Morgan Hunter Report  Page 12 of 13 
 

 

 

Comments and Responses (Cont.) 
 The only frustration I see is the cost and compensation to substitutes‐ are we still competitive with neighboring 

Johnson County School Districts? 
 MH:  “Currently the dollars paid to substitutes are lower than surrounding Johnson County school districts.  
However, we have increased the number of available substitutes and have been able to fill 100% of the 
requests this school year.  This has been done without passing on any additional costs to the district.  We will 
continue to monitor our competiveness and communicate with district administration.” 

 I have had some Great subs and then some that are friendly but with NO education background and therefore 
have a hard time with lesson plans. 

 I have had the pleasure to have outstanding substitutes for the last couple of years.  I appreciate their hard 
work. 

 It would be VERY helpful if Morgan Hunter would use our "preferred" list if our requested sub cannot take the 
job.  Instead, the job is open for anyone to take.  In my classroom, I have children on IEP's, 504's and students' 
with special situations.  I need to be able to trust each sub that enters my classroom. 

 When I am able to get my requested subs, I am usually happy with the results.  When I can't get my request, I 
have not been happy with the results of random subs.  Luke Hosler always does an exceptional job with students 
AND following lesson plans.  It amazes me how many subs do NOT follow the plans! 
MH:  “We will continue to encourage teachers to complete the on‐line evaluation for substitutes who exceed 
or might not meet expectations.” 

 I am very pleased with Amy Bauer.  She is a great substitute. 
 

 

 

   



Morgan Hunter Report  Page 13 of 13 
 

 

 

De Soto Unified School District ‐ SubFinder Process  

Call Processor will call substitutes for: 

Same day absences – 5:30 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 

Future absences – 4:30 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

 Absence Reporting Definitions: 

o Requested Substitute – Allows the teacher to select one specific substitute that can exclusively see that job 

assignment online or via the phone up until 12 hours before the start time. 

o Substitute Required – Opens up the job assignment to sub pool, except those on that teacher’s personal 

Exclusion List or Site Exclusion List. 

 How the SubFinder Call Processor Works: 

o A teacher enters an absence and requests a specific substitute. If a substitute is not available to take a call for a 

requested job the call processor will hold the job for them until they can accept or reject it.  Once it gets to 12 

hours before start time, it changes the status to substitute required rather than substitute requested. 

o If the requested substitute is unavailable the call processor then calls the remaining substitutes on that classroom 

teacher’s personal preference list. Obviously the more substitutes on a teacher’s preference list the better the 

chances are of getting someone in the classroom that they know and are more comfortable with. 

o If everyone on a teacher’s personal preference list is unavailable the call processor then starts calling the 

substitute teachers on the school’s preference list.  In some cases these lists are very similar but it will call anyone 

that hasn’t been called from that teacher’s personal preference list yet. 

o After calling all the subs on a teacher’s personal preference list and then on the school’s preference list, the call 

processor will begin calling out to the general substitute pool.  The substitutes have their own preference lists as 

well so it will only call the subs that named a specific grade/subject as a preference.  This helps to eliminate the 

call processor calling subs that are not comfortable with that specific subject/grade. 

o The call processor will NEVER call anyone on a teacher’s personal exclusion list or anyone on the teacher’s school 

exclusion list.  Jobs are also NEVER visible online to a substitute that is on an exclusion list.  Hence the importance 

of an exclusion list.  

 Preference and Exclusion Lists: 

o Preference Lists ‐ You can submit a list of substitutes that you prefer to MHED.  This does not guarantee that you 

will secure a sub on the list for your absence; it simply means that when the SubFinder call processor starts calling 

out for your absence, it will call the substitutes on your preference list first.  Keep in mind that the sooner you 

report an absence the more likely you are going to get the substitute you want.  Great subs are rarely available 

for last minute calls because they are requested in advance. 

o Exclusion Lists ‐ The SubFinder call processor will NEVER call anyone on your personal exclusion list!!  If you are 

not satisfied with a substitute teacher, you may call or email MHED and we will place that substitute on your 

personal exclusion list. MHED can coach substitutes. If you were unhappy with a substitute but feel that the 

action can be corrected, please call us or complete an evaluation and let us know. We are happy to remedy the 

situation. We are committed to providing the most qualified substitute teachers possible for your classroom. 

Keep in mind if you add substitutes to your exclusion list for minor issues, this will decrease the number of 

substitutes available to you. 

 



Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 1 0 1 1 1 2 1 3
11:30a Shawnee Chamber Happy
Luncheon "State of the City" Birthday Tammy!
Shawnee Town Hall

6p   BOE meeting

1 4 1 5 1 6 1 7 1 8 1 9 20
NO SCHOOL 11:30a Lenexa Chamber

FOR STUDENTS Luncheon "State of the City"
AND STAFF DoubleTree Hotel, O.P.

President's 
Day       

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 A LOOK INTO THE FUTURE . . . . . .
3/8- BOE meeting, 6 pm, Boardroom
3/12 - No School for Students / 1/2 Professional - 1/2 Workday 
3/15-3/19 - SPRING BREAK
4/10-4/12 - NSBA Convention  in Chicago,  IL

No School for All 
Students

Parent/Teacher 
Conferences

No School for All 
Students - K-5

Conferences, 6-12 

No School for Kdg 
Students Only
Parent/Teacher 

Conferences

KASB Gov Rel Seminar 







     CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION REPORT 
 

De Soto Elementary School #7  HTK # 0811.01   

 
 ROUTING COPIES TO: 

 MEF  Original To File ............ HTK  Struct. Engineer ....... Greg Litterick 
 TJP  Princ. In Charge ........... Mark Franzen  Civil Engineer. ......... Dan Brown/ Mike Haake 
 AJL  Project Manager .......... Travis Palangi  MEPT Engineer. ....... Carson Moser 
 File  Job Captain .................. Aaron Ledesma  Const Manager ........ Kevin Blackwell/ Joel Grimmett 
  Owner Rep.  ................. Denis Johnson  Jobsite Super. .......... Jeff McCracken 

 
HTK Architects, P.A.                                55 Corp. Woods, 9300 w. 110th St.,  Suite 150                             Overland Park, Kansas 66210-1443 
(913) 663-5373   FAX (913) 663-5270 

1 of 9 

 
DATE December 17, 2009 TIME 11:00am TO 2:30pm 
 
WEATHER Partly Cloudy TEMPERATURE: HI 50 LOW 32 
 
MATERIALS DELIVERED  
 
Structural Steel, Brick Veneer, Door Frames, CMU, Insulation Air Barrier, Concrete, Roof Deck 
 
 
CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS 
 
Exterior/Site/Building: 
 

 CMU installation continues in all Areas. 
o Area A CMU – 90% complete -  
o Area B CMU – 60% complete 
o Area C CMU – 40% complete 
o Area D CMU – 30% complete 

 Brick Veneer has started at Area A – North & West Elevations of Gymnasium. 
o Cold weather procedures are in place due to the cold temperatures. Temporary tent is up for brick 

veneer installation.  
 Structural Steel installation has started in Areas A & B. 
 Roof Deck installation has started in Area A 
 Hollow core concrete floor slab has been installed at Area B Mechanical Mezzanine.  
 Exterior mechanical yard concrete pads have been installed. 
 Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing Rough-in continues in all Areas. 
 Building transformer is on-site and installed on exterior concrete pad.  
 Asphalt – base courses installed in south parking lot and bus loop.  
 Belmont St. has been installed and approved by the City of Shawnee. This includes the concrete curbs and 

gutters.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



     CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION REPORT 
 

De Soto Elementary School #7  HTK # 0811.01   

 
 ROUTING COPIES TO: 

 MEF  Original To File ............ HTK  Struct. Engineer ....... Greg Litterick 
 TJP  Princ. In Charge ........... Mark Franzen  Civil Engineer. ......... Dan Brown/ Mike Haake 
 AJL  Project Manager .......... Travis Palangi  MEPT Engineer. ....... Carson Moser 
 File  Job Captain .................. Aaron Ledesma  Const Manager ........ Kevin Blackwell/ Joel Grimmett 
  Owner Rep.  ................. Denis Johnson  Jobsite Super. .......... Jeff McCracken 

 
HTK Architects, P.A.                                55 Corp. Woods, 9300 w. 110th St.,  Suite 150                             Overland Park, Kansas 66210-1443 
(913) 663-5373   FAX (913) 663-5270 

2 of 9 

 
FIELD CONSTRUCTION PHOTOS 
 

  
 
Area B – South Elevation looking East   Areas A & B – South Elevations looking North 
 
 

  
 
Area A – East Elevation looking Northwest   Area B – Structural Steel installation looking East 
 
 
 
 
 



     CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION REPORT 
 

De Soto Elementary School #7  HTK # 0811.01   

 
 ROUTING COPIES TO: 

 MEF  Original To File ............ HTK  Struct. Engineer ....... Greg Litterick 
 TJP  Princ. In Charge ........... Mark Franzen  Civil Engineer. ......... Dan Brown/ Mike Haake 
 AJL  Project Manager .......... Travis Palangi  MEPT Engineer. ....... Carson Moser 
 File  Job Captain .................. Aaron Ledesma  Const Manager ........ Kevin Blackwell/ Joel Grimmett 
  Owner Rep.  ................. Denis Johnson  Jobsite Super. .......... Jeff McCracken 

 
HTK Architects, P.A.                                55 Corp. Woods, 9300 w. 110th St.,  Suite 150                             Overland Park, Kansas 66210-1443 
(913) 663-5373   FAX (913) 663-5270 

3 of 9 

 
FIELD CONSTRUCTION PHOTOS CON’T 
 

  
 
Area B – Structural Steel installation looking Northwest Area B – Corridor B158 looking East 
 
 
 

  
 
Area B – Discovery Area looking Southeast   Area C – Corridor C208 looking West 
 
 
 
 



     CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION REPORT 
 

De Soto Elementary School #7  HTK # 0811.01   

 
 ROUTING COPIES TO: 

 MEF  Original To File ............ HTK  Struct. Engineer ....... Greg Litterick 
 TJP  Princ. In Charge ........... Mark Franzen  Civil Engineer. ......... Dan Brown/ Mike Haake 
 AJL  Project Manager .......... Travis Palangi  MEPT Engineer. ....... Carson Moser 
 File  Job Captain .................. Aaron Ledesma  Const Manager ........ Kevin Blackwell/ Joel Grimmett 
  Owner Rep.  ................. Denis Johnson  Jobsite Super. .......... Jeff McCracken 

 
HTK Architects, P.A.                                55 Corp. Woods, 9300 w. 110th St.,  Suite 150                             Overland Park, Kansas 66210-1443 
(913) 663-5373   FAX (913) 663-5270 

4 of 9 

 
FIELD CONSTRUCTION PHOTOS CON’T 
 

  
 
Area C looking Northwest     Area B – Alternate 2 classrooms looking South 
 
 
 

  
 
Area B – Alternate Classrooms – East Elevation looking N. Area B looking West 
 
 
 
 



     CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION REPORT 
 

De Soto Elementary School #7  HTK # 0811.01   

 
 ROUTING COPIES TO: 

 MEF  Original To File ............ HTK  Struct. Engineer ....... Greg Litterick 
 TJP  Princ. In Charge ........... Mark Franzen  Civil Engineer. ......... Dan Brown/ Mike Haake 
 AJL  Project Manager .......... Travis Palangi  MEPT Engineer. ....... Carson Moser 
 File  Job Captain .................. Aaron Ledesma  Const Manager ........ Kevin Blackwell/ Joel Grimmett 
  Owner Rep.  ................. Denis Johnson  Jobsite Super. .......... Jeff McCracken 

 
HTK Architects, P.A.                                55 Corp. Woods, 9300 w. 110th St.,  Suite 150                             Overland Park, Kansas 66210-1443 
(913) 663-5373   FAX (913) 663-5270 

5 of 9 

 
FIELD CONSTRUCTION PHOTOS CON’T 
 

  
 
Area B – Media Center B132 looking East   Area C – West Elevation looking North 
 
 
 

   
 
Area D looking Northwest    Area D – Corridor D259 looking West 
 
 
 
 



     CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION REPORT 
 

De Soto Elementary School #7  HTK # 0811.01   

 
 ROUTING COPIES TO: 

 MEF  Original To File ............ HTK  Struct. Engineer ....... Greg Litterick 
 TJP  Princ. In Charge ........... Mark Franzen  Civil Engineer. ......... Dan Brown/ Mike Haake 
 AJL  Project Manager .......... Travis Palangi  MEPT Engineer. ....... Carson Moser 
 File  Job Captain .................. Aaron Ledesma  Const Manager ........ Kevin Blackwell/ Joel Grimmett 
  Owner Rep.  ................. Denis Johnson  Jobsite Super. .......... Jeff McCracken 

 
HTK Architects, P.A.                                55 Corp. Woods, 9300 w. 110th St.,  Suite 150                             Overland Park, Kansas 66210-1443 
(913) 663-5373   FAX (913) 663-5270 

6 of 9 

 
FIELD CONSTRUCTION PHOTOS CON’T 
 

  
 
Area A – North Elevation – Brick Veneer installation  Area A – Corridor A100 – Weather protection installation 
 
 
 

  
 
Area A – Staff Development A108 looking South  Area A – Corridor A100 looking South 
 
 
 
 



     CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION REPORT 
 

De Soto Elementary School #7  HTK # 0811.01   

 
 ROUTING COPIES TO: 

 MEF  Original To File ............ HTK  Struct. Engineer ....... Greg Litterick 
 TJP  Princ. In Charge ........... Mark Franzen  Civil Engineer. ......... Dan Brown/ Mike Haake 
 AJL  Project Manager .......... Travis Palangi  MEPT Engineer. ....... Carson Moser 
 File  Job Captain .................. Aaron Ledesma  Const Manager ........ Kevin Blackwell/ Joel Grimmett 
  Owner Rep.  ................. Denis Johnson  Jobsite Super. .......... Jeff McCracken 

 
HTK Architects, P.A.                                55 Corp. Woods, 9300 w. 110th St.,  Suite 150                             Overland Park, Kansas 66210-1443 
(913) 663-5373   FAX (913) 663-5270 

7 of 9 

 
FIELD CONSTRUCTION PHOTOS CON’T 
 

  
 
Area A – Art A110 looking South    Area A – Exterior mechanical yard – pad installation 
 
 
 

  
 
Area A – South entrance into Cafeteria looking West Area A – Kitchen suite looking Northeast 
 
 
 
 



     CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION REPORT 
 

De Soto Elementary School #7  HTK # 0811.01   

 
 ROUTING COPIES TO: 

 MEF  Original To File ............ HTK  Struct. Engineer ....... Greg Litterick 
 TJP  Princ. In Charge ........... Mark Franzen  Civil Engineer. ......... Dan Brown/ Mike Haake 
 AJL  Project Manager .......... Travis Palangi  MEPT Engineer. ....... Carson Moser 
 File  Job Captain .................. Aaron Ledesma  Const Manager ........ Kevin Blackwell/ Joel Grimmett 
  Owner Rep.  ................. Denis Johnson  Jobsite Super. .......... Jeff McCracken 

 
HTK Architects, P.A.                                55 Corp. Woods, 9300 w. 110th St.,  Suite 150                             Overland Park, Kansas 66210-1443 
(913) 663-5373   FAX (913) 663-5270 

8 of 9 

 
FIELD CONSTRUCTION PHOTOS CON’T 
 

  
 
Area A – South opening into Mechanical Mezzanine Area A – West opening into Mechanical Mezzanine 
 
 
 

  
 
Area A – East low roof area – Roof Deck installation  Area A – Mechanical Mezzanine 
 
 
 
 



     CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION REPORT 
 

De Soto Elementary School #7  HTK # 0811.01   

 
 ROUTING COPIES TO: 

 MEF  Original To File ............ HTK  Struct. Engineer ....... Greg Litterick 
 TJP  Princ. In Charge ........... Mark Franzen  Civil Engineer. ......... Dan Brown/ Mike Haake 
 AJL  Project Manager .......... Travis Palangi  MEPT Engineer. ....... Carson Moser 
 File  Job Captain .................. Aaron Ledesma  Const Manager ........ Kevin Blackwell/ Joel Grimmett 
  Owner Rep.  ................. Denis Johnson  Jobsite Super. .......... Jeff McCracken 

 
HTK Architects, P.A.                                55 Corp. Woods, 9300 w. 110th St.,  Suite 150                             Overland Park, Kansas 66210-1443 
(913) 663-5373   FAX (913) 663-5270 

9 of 9 

 
FIELD CONSTRUCTION PHOTOS CON’T 
 

  
 
Area A – Gym looking from Mechanical Mezzanine  Area A – West Elevation – Cold weather protection for Brick 
 
 
 

  
 
Areas A & D – West elevations looking East  Northwest corner of site looking back at building. 
 



 

 

CONSTRUCTION UPCONSTRUCTION UPCONSTRUCTION UPCONSTRUCTION UP----DATE NUMBER DATE NUMBER DATE NUMBER DATE NUMBER 3333    

De Soto Mill Valley High School De Soto Mill Valley High School De Soto Mill Valley High School De Soto Mill Valley High School     

    

DATE OF REPORT:  DATE OF REPORT:  DATE OF REPORT:  DATE OF REPORT:  January 5January 5January 5January 5, 20, 20, 20, 2010101010        

    

    

The construction status is as follows: 

 

-  All concrete slab on grade is poured 

-  West classroom addition has the roof dried in [final roofing plys yet to be installed] 

-  Metal stud walls are being erected and drywall is being stocked in west classroom addition 

-  Electrical rough-in is underway in west classroom addition 

-  Brick veneer is being installed on west classroom addition 

-  Gymnasium is bricked and the roof structure is in place awaiting roofing 

-  Masonry walls, to the right of the main entry, are being erected at this time 

-  The bleacher installation in the existing gymnasium is complete 

-  Shop submittals continue to come in from the Contractors for review and comment 

-  The cold weather is impacting exterior work 

 

 

HOLLIS + MILLER ARCHITECTS 

 

 

 

 

 

Ed Carlson 

 

Attachment 

 

 
pc:  0878-7M 
 

J:\0800\0878\photos\report three 010510.doc 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
                   
                  
  

 

 

 

 

 
 

Photo 1:  The Event Lobby and Auxiliary Gym taken from Prairie Ridge 

 

 
 

Photo 2:  The Event Lobby with applied air barrier 

 



 
                   
                  
  

 
 

Photo 3: The West Classroom Addition taken from Prairie Ridge  

 
 

Photo 4: The West Classroom Addition taken from Prairie Ridge 

 

 
 

Photo 5:  Construction going on around the two permanent Corridors on the front of the building 



 
 35200 West 91st Street 
 De Soto, Kansas  66018 
 Phone:  913-667-6208 
 FAX:  913-6676202 
  
 
  

  
 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
The mission of De Soto Unified School District 232, a dynamic learning community, is to inspire the creative genius in each person by: leading in 
educational innovation and academic excellence; building visionary, world-class educational opportunities; fulfilling the evolving needs of citizens 
as lifelong learners; integrating the heritage and promise of our diverse rapidly growing community; and respecting the importance of the 
individual while promoting the common good. 

 

Unified School District 232 
 
De Soto – Shawnee – Lenexa – Olathe 
w w w . u s d 2 3 2 . o r g  
 

  
  
  
Date:   January 11, 2010 
To:   Board of Education 
From:   Earl Martin, Director of Teaching & Learning, Kimberly Barney, Associate Director of 

Teaching & Learning and Kelly Ott, Coordinator of Teaching & Learning 
Re:   District-Wide Differentiated Professional Development Day, January 4, 2010 
 
Purpose  
The purpose of this report is to update the Board of Education on the district-wide Professional 
Development Day held at Lexington Trails MS on January 4th, involving all certified staff in the district.   
 
Summary 
 
Professional Development is critical to the on-going learning needs of certified staff, and the January 
4th “Differentiated Day” is the center piece of the De Soto School District professional development, 
providing over 140 different learning sessions for over 550 certified staff in the district.  The theme of 
the day was “Continuous Improvement,” and staff have an opportunity to choose topics of interest.  
Over 120 district colleagues offered their expertise to present these sessions. 
 
Some of the topics presented were:   core curricular topics in reading and math, science and social 
studies, as well as technology applications, classroom management, assessment, differentiating 
instruction, critical thinking, exploratory topics, and many, many more.  Collaboration time was also 
provided for K-12 district collaboration and building collaboration.   
 
An effort was made to inform and involve the local community in this district-wide event.  Some local 
businesses offered coupons/door prizes for presenters. 
 
Staff members submit an evaluation of their sessions, and these evaluations are reviewed for future 
consideration.  A surprise highlight of the day was the “Shuttle Service” provided by Dr. Wimmer, Dr. 
Schmidt, Alvie Cater, Jack Deyoe for those parked further away in the DHS north parking lot.  Initial 
staff comments were very positive about the learning benefits of the day. 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda 011110
	BOEMinutes121409 - DRAFT
	CJ 121709
	CJ 122209
	Card Srvcs Att  1215091
	Memo - Robbins - Policies-Practices and Procedures Manual
	Memo - Schmidt - Letter of agreement for Health & Productivity Management
	Summary Report - Consulting Agreements for Construction Services
	Memo - Larsen - Request approval for BOTA Application
	Change Order #3 - Belmont Elementary
	Change Order #4 - Mill Valley High School Addition-Renovation Project
	Memo - Deghand - Donation to DHS
	Memo - Robbins - Recommendation to accept donation
	Memo - Martin - Recommendation to accept donation
	Bond Resolution
	Memo - D Johnson - Capital Outlay Expenditure Recommendation for 2010
	Memo - Mildner - Request Action for Purchase of New Data Center Hardware and Related Services
	Letter from Mayor Meyers - I-435-Johnson Drive TIF District
	Memo - Robbins & Schmidt - Possible Relocation of Early Childhood Programs for 2010-2011
	Memo - Martin - Overview of No Child Left Behind
	Memo - Cater - Webcasting of board meetings
	Memo - Schmidt - Discussion Item - Morgan Hunter Education Division Substitute Contract
	February BOE Calendar
	Bond Projects Update
	Memo - Martin-Barney-Ott - District-Wide Differentiated Professional Development Day

